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Summit Power Limited (SPL), 
sponsored by Summit Group, is 
the first Bangladeshi Independent 
Power Producer (IPP) in Bangladesh 
in private sector providing power to 
national grid. SPL was incorporated 
in Bangladesh on March 30, 1997 as a 
Private Limited Company. On June 7, 2004 
the Company was converted to Public Limited 
Company under the Companies Act 1994.
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Company 
Information

Summit Power Limited in 2001, has successfully established 
three power plants of 11 MW capacity each, for sale of electricity 
to Rural Electrification Board (REB) on Build, Own and Operate 
basis at Savar, Narsingdi and Comilla. During 2006 and 2007 
in each of the above three places, 2nd unit was commissioned 
enhancing the capacity of SPL to 105 MW. In 2009 SPL with its 
99% owned two subsidiaries has established 4 new power plants 
raising its capacity to 215 MW. In 2011 SPL has commissioned 
another power plant of 102 MW capacity at Narayanganj 
under Summit Narayanganj Power Limited, where SPL has 55% 
ownership.  

In the year 2011 Summit Power Limited has consolidated its 
position further by acquiring 53,955,326 numbers of ordinary 
shares of Khulna Power Company Limited (KPCL). It gives SPL the 
status of 18.7% of the ownership of KPCL and with that status an 
additional capacity of 50 MW (approximately) has been added with 
that of SPL being the total capacity of 367 MW.  

Considering the immense opportunities, the company is striving to 
establish more power plants around the country. The fast-growing 
company has set a mission to expand the company with a power 
generation capacity to the tune of 1000 MW, which is a modest 20% 
of the electricity requirement in Bangladesh.
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Corporate Directory
Board of Directors

Company Secretariat 

Muhammed Aziz Khan	 Chairman 

Md. Latif Khan	 Vice-Chairman
Tauhidul Islam	 Managing Director
Anjuman Aziz Khan	 Director
Md. Farid Khan	 Director
Ayesha Aziz Khan	 Director
Jafer Ummeed Khan	 Director
Helal Uddin Ahmed	 Director
Syed Fazlul Haque FCA	 Director
Abbas Uddin Ahmed	 Director
Faisal Karim Khan	 Director
Prof. Salahuddin Ahmed Khan	 Director

Mahmud Hasan FCMA	 Company Secretary

Rahmat-e-Rabbi	 Manager (Accounts)

Power Plant

Madanganj-Narayanganj
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Registered Office

Summit Centre
18, Kawran Bazar C/A
Dhaka-1215
Phone-9137485-6
Fax-913 9284
email:spl@summitpower.org
web-www.summitpower.org

Auditors 

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants
Member Firm of KPMG
9, Mohakhali C/A, Dhaka

Legal Advisor

Mahmood Jabbar Khan
Barristers & Advocates
Summit Centre (6th floor),
18, Kawran Bazar C/A 
Dhaka-1215

Main Bankers

Standard Chartered Bank
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.
One Bank Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
The Premier Bank Ltd.
Bank Al Falah Limited
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited 
IIDFC
BRAC Bank Limited
Sonali Bank Limited  

Ashulia-Savar
Madhabdi-Narshingdi
Chandina-Comilla
Ullapara-Sirajganj
Maona-Gazipur
Jangalia-Comilla
Rupganj-Narayanganj
Madanganj-Narayanganj

Power Plants
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Notice of the 15th 
Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Summit Power Limited will be held on Wednesday 
the 25th day of April, 2012, at Bashundhara Convention Center-02, Block-C, Umme Kulsum Road, Bashundhara R/A, Baridhara, 
Dhaka-1229, at 10.30 A.M. to transact the following businesses:

Agenda:

1.	 To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 together 
with the auditors report thereon.

 

2.	 To declare dividend for the year 2011 as recommended by the Board of Directors.
 

3.	 To elect Directors in place of those retiring under 23(a) of the Company’s Articles of Association.
 

4.	 To consider re-appointment of Mr. Tauhidul Islam as Managing Director for a further period of one year from 01st August, 2012 
as per section 109 of the Companies Act–1994.

 

5.	 To appoint auditors for the year 2012 and to fix their remuneration.

	 By order of the Board

Dhaka. April 05, 2012	 (Mahmud Hasan FCMA)
	 Company Secretary

Notes:

1.	 Shareholders whose names appeared at the record date i.e. March 22, 2012 in the Share Register of the Company or in the Depository Register 
on that date will be eligible to attend and vote in the Annual General Meeting and to receive dividend as approved in the AGM.

2.	 Members entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. The proxy form 
must be affixed with requisite revenue stamp and must be submitted to the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before 
the time fixed for the Annual General Meeting.

3.	A dmission into the meeting venue will be allowed on production of the Attendance Slip attached with the Proxy Form.
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Net Profit

+ 130.91 %
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Chairman’s 
Speech

My Dear Co-Shareholders of Summit Power Limited,

Muhammed Aziz Khan
Chairman  

I sincerely appreciate your attending the 15th 

Annual General Meeting of your great company. 
Your presence expresses your keen interest in 
your company. And because your company is 
an electricity generating company, which is the 
core ingredient of national growth, it reflects 
your interest in our beloved country, Bangladesh. 
Welcome and thank you for attending.

2011 has been a challenging year. The world is 
dealing with a Europe in financial disarray. The 
World Bank Group and other multilateral agencies 
are withdrawing or delaying in the delivery of 
their promised assistance to Bangladesh, oil prices 
reaching USD 110 per barrel and with essential 
commodity prices rising, Bangladesh cannot 
remain immune to such situations. Our national 
money market saw interest rates going up to 16% 
per annum, our stock markets shed about 50% 
of their value, our currency depreciated by about 
20% against the US Dollar, and the inflation rose 
to double digits of 11%. Your company faced 
unprecedented challenges.

I am proud and pleased to inform you, that with 
your support, the relentless hard work of the 
employees, and persevered focused leadership of 
your board, we have not only faced the challenges 
but this has been our best year so far. Summit 
Power Limited has earned a net income of 2,511 
million in financial year 2011, 131% more than 
financial year 2010, which was 259% more than 
2009. Our generating capacity has increased by 
151.5 MW which is more than 70% from 2010. We 
have generated 1,803 million Kwh electricity which 
is 23% more than 2010, provided uninterrupted 
electricity to 8 million citizens of Bangladesh which 
is 14% more than 2010.

Yet this is the beginning of our long cherished 
goal when each and every citizen of Bangladesh 
will have uninterrupted access to electricity. Only 
40% of Bangladeshis have access to electricity. 
In order to provide electricity, the ingredient for 
prosperity, to all the citizens of Bangladesh by 
2021, fifty years from country’s liberation, we must 
add year on year 15% additional new electricity. 
This is a mammoth task, not only because the 

9
Summit Power Limited



... we must become more aware and take proactive 
measures to help the disadvantaged. Our “Corporate 
Social Responsibility” (CSR) is a compulsion on all of 
us. We support various organizations who support 
the poorest of the poor. You will see we have 
continued with that effort
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base will become larger and larger each year, but 
because the primary energy, be it natural gas, coal 
or liquid oil will become generally more expensive. 
Bangladesh has very limited potential of renewable 
energy, being a flat delta it is not conducive to 
hydroelectricity, having heavy monsoon and misty 
winter provides little opportunity for sun energy/ 
photovoltaic electricity, the density of population 
and not so windy Bangladesh has little potential for 
wind energy. We will have to rely on conventional 
hydrocarbon based electricity or atomic energy. 
Beside these we have to rely on our neighbour, 
Bhutan, to provide hydroelectricity. Thus your 
company Summit will remain in the forefront to 
implement more hydrocarbon (gas, coal, oil) based 
power plants while we must try to work with 
Bhutan to implement and generate hydroelectricity 
for export to Bangladesh.

While we will have to rely on hydrocarbon based 
electricity, your company Summit Power is very 
conscious about the environment. Each of your 
plants go through rigorous Environmental and 
Social Impact Assessments. You will be pleased 
to know each one of the plants not only complies 
with Bangladesh’s Department of Environment’s 
standards but of Multilateral and the World 
Bank guidelines. As you know DEG and FMO has 
financed your Narayanganj Power Company which 
is operated by Heavy Fuel Oil (HFO), the only HFO 
based power plant financed so far by multilateral 
agencies. We shall always work to improve the 
environment.

Fellow shareholders, you will be pleased to know 
during 2011, Summit Narayanganj Power Limited 
received the prestigious “Best Fast Track Power 
Project” of 2011 given by Asian Power Awards, 
the most recognized honor in the power industry, 
proving beyond doubt that your company 
implements the best projects at the shortest time. 
Your accounts, corporate governance, compliance 
with the rules and regulations of SEC, NBR, 
International and Bangladesh accounting principals 
have been so outstanding that the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) has 
awarded your Summit Power Limited as the “Best 
Published Accounts and Reports 2010”. I assure you; 
your company will maintain and improve upon 
even upon such high standards of management.

Bangladesh has shortages of well-trained engineers 
and managers. You will be pleased to know Summit 
Power has built one of the best curriculum and 
training based ”Internship” programmes. We are 
imparting world class programmes enabling the 
engineering graduate students to expand their 

capacity to support the electricity industry and 
often Summit Power itself. This year we expect 
more than 200 interns to graduate from our 
internship programme.

As our company grows, we must become 
more aware and take proactive measures to 
help the disadvantaged. Our “Corporate Social 
Responsibility” (CSR) is a compulsion on all of us. 
We support various organizations who support the 
poorest of the poor. You will see we have continued 
with that effort. We do socially responsible 
businesses, be it generating electricity or port 
or enabling “Information and Communication 
Technology” (ICT), each of our business will 
always support the development of our beloved 
Bangladesh. Yet some disadvantaged, who has no 
access to electricity or Internet or mobile phone or 
is not associated with export and import, they are 
the ones on whom we must focus with our CSR. 
I can assure you, your money is being well spent 
for them as CSR. We believe in an inclusive society 
and our business as well as our CSR will eradicate 
poverty from all.

On your behalf, I thank our wonderful employees, 
our best asset, their hard work has brought us so 
many accolades and appreciations. Our customers, 
Bangladesh Power Development Board and Rural 
Electrification Board have always supported us and 
guided like a beacon on how to achieve excellence. 
Our financiers have stood by us through difficult 
times. On your behalf I thank them, specially BRAC 
Bank for their unwavering support even during 
the most difficult financial market conditions. 
The government of Bangladesh has always 
acknowledged your company by providing their 
support to eradicate the curse of load shedding.

I am looking forward to the day when Summit 
Power will contribute to 20% of Bangladesh’s 
electricity generation. I hope and pray, that day, 
you will be with me and your great company, 
Summit Power Limited.

 Thank you,

 

Muhammed Aziz Khan
Chairman  
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Yet this is the beginning of our long cherished goal 
when each and every citizen of Bangladesh will have 
uninterrupted access to electricity
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Power Plant

Madanganj-Narayanganj
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Mr. Muhammed Aziz Khan, a renowned and pioneering leading 
business personality in power sector of Bangladesh. After 
graduation Mr. Khan did his MBA in 1980 from the Institute of 
Business Administration (IBA), University of Dhaka. Mr. Khan has 
established himself as a dynamic and pro-active entrepreneur who 
has built Summit Group-recognized as the largest infrastructure 
Industrial organization of Bangladesh. He is also the Chairman of 
Khulna Power Co. Ltd., country’s first Independent Power Producer 
(IPP). Mr. Khan has helped to formulate the Private Sector Power 
Generation Policy of Bangladesh. He has 36 years of business 
experience, setting up country’s first Inland Container Depot 
(ICD)-”Ocean Container Ltd”, First Tanks Terminal- “Summit United 
Tanks Terminal”, now known as “South Eastern Tanks Terminal”. Mr. 
Khan was the Founder President of Bangladesh Energy Companies 
Association (BECA), which is formed to represent and to promote 
the interests of private sector business organizations engaged in 
the energy sector.

Mr. Khan has set up “Siraj Khaleda Trust”- a social wing of Summit 
Group, which is setting up 200 beds for medical services on 
charitable basis in Dhaka Cantonment. He enthusiastically takes 
part & contributes to social activities such as to help to acid 
burn and drug victims to mention a few amongst host of other 
activities.

Mr. Md. Latif Khan was born 1958 in Dhaka. He pursued BA in 
Public Administration at Dhaka University, and subsequently 
left for higher studies to the U.S. in 1981. There, he worked for 
over 15 years in the financial sector. He was a stockbroker and 
a financial analyst at Prudential Insurance of America where he 
received numerous sales achievement awards. He also worked as 
a Financial Officer at Wells Fargo Bank in California. He returned 
to Bangladesh in 1997 and thereof joined Summit Group as the 
Managing Director of Summit Shipping Limited. Mr. Khan has 
established himself as a sound and dynamic businessman of the 
country.

Muhammed Aziz Khan
Chairman

Md. Latif Khan
Vice-Chairman

Introducing the Directors
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Mr. Islam is the Managing Director of Summit Power Limited and 
has got 36 (thirty six) years of experience in the power sector. 
Mr. Islam obtained his B. Sc. in Engineering (Mechanical) from 
Bangladesh University of Engineering & Technology (BUET). 
Prior to joining Summit, Mr. Islam held the positions of the 
Chairman of Rural Electrification Board, Chairman (Including 
in Charge) of Dhaka Electricity Supply Authority (DESA) and 
DESCO. Mr. Islam has vast experience in Planning & Operation, 
Electrical Engineering, Communication Engineering, Mechanical 
Engineering, Material Management & commercial matters. 
Moreover, Mr. Islam has obtained various training in foreign 
countries as well as in local institutions.

Mrs. Anjuman Aziz Khan, wife of Mr. Muhammed Aziz Khan has 22 
years of business experience in Summit. Mrs. Khan is a member of 
Siraj Khaleda Trust- a social wing of Summit Group, which is setting 
up 200 beds for medical services on charitable basis in Dhaka 
Cantonment. She enthusiastically takes part & contributes to 
social activities such as “Assistance of Blind Children” and “women’s 
entrepreneurship development”.

Md. Tauhidul Islam
Managing Director

Anjuman Aziz Khan
Director

15
Summit Power Limited



Mr. Md. Farid Khan was born in 1960. Mr. Khan is 
a business graduate from Dhaka University. He 
is involved in business since 1980. He started his 
business career with trading in plastic compound, 
fertilizer and other commodities. He was an integral 
part of the team that pioneered export of molasses 
and fertilizer from Bangladesh. Mr. Farid Khan has 
proved to be an entrepreneur with special skills in 
the development of new projects. He was solely 
instrumental in setting up Liquefied Petroleum Gas 
(LPG) project and Tanks Terminal in Mongla.

Ms. Ayesha Aziz Khan completed her graduation in Economics and 
Business from the University College of London (UCL) in 2002 and Masters 
in Business Administration (MBA) from the Columbia University, New 
York, USA.  Ms. Khan holds the position of Director in several companies 
of Summit Group. Ms. Khan has extensive experience in the power 
sector of the country specifically in financial management for power 
generation companies, infrastructure finance and structured finance. In 
her career, she has spearheaded the financial close for multiple power 
projects, which includes - Summit Uttaranchal Power Company Limited 
(SUPCL) Summit Purbanchal Power Company Limited (SPPCL), Summit 
Narayanganj Power Limited (SNPL) and Summit Power Limited (SPL).
 

Her career as Director Finance has been enriched due to her expertise in 
building relationships and take ownership of deal shaping and contract 
negotiations. Her responsibilities include reporting to the Board in the 
preparation of budgets and financial reports and reports for Government 
regulatory agencies. She works towards the company objectives by 
providing advice and guidance on financial strategy and overseeing all 
accounting procedures and systems used by the Company. She  meets 
with the Board of Directors regularly to keep them informed, reviewing 
reports and analyzing projections of sales and income against actual 
figures and suggesting methods of improving the planning processes. 
 

She is a valuable member of SAARC Chamber of Commerce and Industry, 
Federation of Bangladesh Chamber of Commerce & Industry (FBCCI), 
Prime Minister’s business delegation to India & United States of America.

Md. Farid Khan
Director

Ayesha Aziz Khan
Director

Introducing the Directors (cont...)
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Mr. Jafer Ummeed Khan was born on 10th May 
1957. After completing his studies in the United 
Kingdom, he joined Summit Group in 1987. He 
spearheaded the development & expansion of 
Summit Group, particularly of Summit Industrial & 
Mercantile Corporation (Pvt.) Limited and later of 
Summit Power Limited. Because of his contribution 
in the Power Sector, Mr. Jafer Ummeed Khan was 
also unanimously elected as the Vice-President of 
Bangladesh Energy Companies Association, which 
post Mr. Khan is holding till date.

Mr. Faisal Karim Khan, born on 29th July 1985 began his career with 
Summit Group with a training stint at Summit Power Limited and 
Summit Alliance Ports Limited.  From February 2008, Mr. Khan has 
engaged himself with Summit Alliance Ports Limited and Ocean 
Containers Limited as a member of the Board of Directors and as 
Deputy Managing Director.

Thereafter, Mr. Khan increased his responsibility by taking up 
Directorship of Summit Industrial & Mercantile Corporation Pvt. Limited, 
Cosmopolitan Traders Limited, Summit Power Limited and Summit 
Communications Limited. Mr. Khan also represents Summit Group 
in the Board of Directors in National Housing Finance & Investment 
Limited.Mr. Khan is currently responsible for the Group’s interest in 
large infrastructure development business, specifically in the power 
sector. Recently, the Dhaka Chamber of Commerce and Industry (DCCI) 
appointed Mr. Khan as Co-Convener: Energy & Infrastructure Sector.

Mr. Khan completed his high school from United World College 
of the Atlantic, UK, in 2004, and thereafter completed Mechanical 
Engineering with Business Finance degree from University College 
London (UCL) and London School of Economics (LSE) in 2007.

Jafer Ummeed Khan
Director

Faisal Karim Khan 
Director
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Mr. Helal Uddin Ahmed completed his Masters from Dhaka 
University in 1978. After completion his education he started his 
career as a businessman. Mr. Helal formed SAN Engineers in 1982 
and engaged with the business of Bangladesh Chemical Industries 
Corporation (BCIC) for supplying various chemicals items such 
as Liquid chloride, Caustic Soda, Hydrogen peroxide Soda Ash, 
PVC compound etc. Mr. Helal is the Director of Savar Refractories 
Ltd. which is a public limited company and largest producer of 
refractories materials in Bangladesh. He is the founder member of 
Kabi Nazrul Islam University at Trishal, Mymensingh. 

Mr. Abbas Uddin Ahmed, a leading light of the banking industry 
of Bangladesh carries with him 41 years of commercial banking 
experience of which almost 12 years as Managing Director & 
CEO of three very large and successful private sector Banks – 
The City Bank Limited and IFIC Bank Limited in Bangladesh and 
Nepal-Bangladesh Bank Limited in Kathmundu, Nepal. He is a 
Professional Member of the “Institute of Bankers, Bangladesh”. 
Starting his career in 1966 with the Habib Bank – the then top 
private sector bank of the country- he has worked his way through 
both public and private sector banks at home and abroad. He has 
successfully opened a new bank in Maldives as CEO. He is credited 
to have steered and consolidated the process of turnaround of the 
City Bank Limited and got it removed from the Bangladeshi banks 
list of the problem bank. He is a pioneer in computerizing the 
entire operation of a bank in Bangladesh. Mr. Ahmed also has rich 
experience of the ethos of both public and private sector banks of 
Bangladesh.   

Helal Uddin Ahmed
Director

Abbas Uddin Ahmed
Director

Introducing the Directors (cont...)
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A Chartered Accountant by profession, Syed Fazlul Haque, started 
his career as Partner of A Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants in 
mid 1971. In April 1975 he moved to executive career by joining 
Biman Bangladesh Airlines, as its Controller of Accounts and since 
then his long varied career included increasingly higher positions 
in different local and multinational organizations. Leaving Biman 
in May 1978, Fazlul went to Libya to serve in Ammonia Plant, 
Benghazi for a short span of two years. On return, Fazlul joined 
Burmah Eastern Limited (now Padma Oil Co. Ltd.) in January 1981 as 
Finance Manager & Company Secretary and was promoted as CEO 
of the Company in September 1991. Fazlul left Padma in January 
1993 to join Glaxo Bangladesh as Finance Director where he was 
made Managing Director of the Company in August 1997. Fazlul 
served the company (subsequently renamed as GlaxoSmithKline 
Bangladesh after merger with Smithkline Beecham in November 
2000) until he retired on 31st December 2002.

During the tenure of his long career, Fazlul served as committee 
member of Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce & Industries, 
Foreign Chamber of Commerce & Industries and Bangladesh 
Employers Federation. Fazlul is married to Rebecca and they are 
blessed with one daughter and a son.

Dr. Salahuddin Ahmed Khan completed his studies from Dhaka 
University and University of Oklahoma, US. He started his career as 
a Lecturer in Finance at the University of Dhaka and was elevated 
to the position of Associate Professor of Finance, which he held 
until August 2003. He served as the CEO of “Dhaka Stock Exchange 
Limited” from September 2003 to December 2008. He reentered 
the teaching profession as Professor of Finance at the University of 
Dhaka from January 2009.  He has visited a numbers of countries 
on professional requirements including high end Exposure 
Conference on securities market. Dr. Salahuddin has negotiated 
major deals, interacted with local and international experts and 
worked as consultant in a number of projects. He has a published 
text book, four Research Monographs and over twenty research 
based articles and working papers on issues linked to financial 
markets and other business and economic matters.

Syed Fazlul Haque FCA 
Director

Prof. Salahuddin Ahmed Khan
Director
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1997-
2000

‘01

‘04
‘05

‘06
‘07 ‘08 ‘09 ‘10

2011
March 20, 2006
Signing of Project 
Agreements for 
expansion at Ashulia, 
Savar with REB & GOB 

November 15, 2006
Commercial operation 
at Comilla expansion 
project

December 16, 2006
Commercial operation 
at Madhabdi 
expansion project

January 13, 2005
Appointment of Issue Manager

March 29, 2005
Credit Rating by CRISL

June 19, 2005
Agreement with CDBL

June 25, 2005
Approval of Prospectus from 

Securities & Exchange 
Commission

June 28, 2005
Signing of Project Agreements 

for expansion  at Madhabdi and 
Comilla with REB & GOB

June 28, 2005
Publication of Prospectus

August 27, 2005
Subscription opens for public

October 03, 2005
Allotment of IPO shares

October 23, 2005
Listing with Chittagong Stock 

Exchange Limited

November 10, 2005
Listing with Dhaka Stock 

Exchange Limited

November 15, 2005
First Trading in Stock Exchanges

June 07, 2004
Conversion from 
private to public 
limited company

February 08, 2001
Commercial operation 

at Savar

April 01, 2001
Commercial operation 

at Narshingdi

June 02, 2001
Commercial operation 

at Comilla
March 30, 1997 
Incorporation of the 
company 

February 10, 2000 
Signing of Project 
Agreements with REB 
& GOB

September 28, 2011
 Asian Power Awards 2011- Best Fast 

Track Project in Asia for Construction of 
SNPL in 270 Days

October 04, 2011
11th ICAB National Awards for Best 

Published Accounts and Reports 2010 
(Manufacturing): 2nd Position

November 29, 2011
Best Presented Accounts and 

Corporate Governance Disclosures 
Awards 2010 by South Asian Federa-

tion of Accounts (SAFA): Merit 

September 13, 2011
SNPL has achieved financial close by 

receiving a foreign currency term loan 
of USD 45 million from DEG - Deutsche 
Investitions- und Entwicklungsgesells-

chaft mbH and FMO - Nederlandse 
Financierings-Maatschappij Voor 

Ontwikkelingslanden N.V.

December 28, 2011
Acquisition of 18.7%, i.e. - 53,955,326 

numbers of ordinary shares of Khulna 
Power Company Limited (KPCL). 

May 04, 2010
Incorporation of 
Summit Narayanganj 
Power Limited
(55% subsidiary of 
Summit Power Limited)

June 23, 2010
Signing of Project 
Agreement with BPDB 
to Implement Summit 
Narayanganj 102MW 
power plant Project.

March 02, 2009
Commercial operation 

at Ullapara, Sirajgonj

May 11, 2009
Commercial operation 

at Maona, Gazipur

June 09, 2009
Commercial operation 

at Rupganj, 
Narayanganj

June 24, 2009
Commercial operation 

at Jangalia, Comilla

January 29, 2008
Approval for issuance 
of Rights Share

March 09, 2008
Subscription opens for 
Rights Share

April 21, 2008
Allotment of Rights 
Share

July 27, 2008
Signing of Syndicated 
Term Loan Facility of 
BDT 395.50 billion for 
setting up 110 MWh 
Power Plants of 
Summit’s Subsidiaries. 

August 15, 2007
Incorporation of Summit 

Purbanchal Power Company 
Limited

(99% subsidiary of Summit 
Power Limited)

August 15, 2007
Incorporation of Summit 

Uttaranchol Power Company 
Limited (99% subsidiary of 

Summit Power Limited)

September 29, 2007
Increase the Authorized 

Share Capital of the 
company (SPL) through EGM 
For issuance of Rights Share 

at the ratio of 5:4 

October 11, 2007
Signing of Project 

Agreements with REB, BPDB 
& GOB to Implement total 
110MW power plants (04 

nos) through its two 
Subsidiary Companies.   

December 04, 2007
Commercial 0peraion at 

Ashulua expansion project

Success Milestones
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CDBL	 - Central Depository Bangladesh Limited   
CRISL	- Credit Rating Information & Services Limited
GOB	 - Government of Bangladesh
REB	 - Rural Electrification Board
SEC	 - Securities & Exchange Commission
DSE	 - Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited
CSE	 - Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited
IPO	 - Initial Public Offering
SPL	 - Summit Power Limited
SNPL	 - Summit Narayanganj Power Company Limited  
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chaft mbH and FMO - Nederlandse 
Financierings-Maatschappij Voor 

Ontwikkelingslanden N.V.

December 28, 2011
Acquisition of 18.7%, i.e. - 53,955,326 

numbers of ordinary shares of Khulna 
Power Company Limited (KPCL). 

May 04, 2010
Incorporation of 
Summit Narayanganj 
Power Limited
(55% subsidiary of 
Summit Power Limited)

June 23, 2010
Signing of Project 
Agreement with BPDB 
to Implement Summit 
Narayanganj 102MW 
power plant Project.

March 02, 2009
Commercial operation 

at Ullapara, Sirajgonj

May 11, 2009
Commercial operation 

at Maona, Gazipur

June 09, 2009
Commercial operation 

at Rupganj, 
Narayanganj

June 24, 2009
Commercial operation 

at Jangalia, Comilla

January 29, 2008
Approval for issuance 
of Rights Share

March 09, 2008
Subscription opens for 
Rights Share

April 21, 2008
Allotment of Rights 
Share

July 27, 2008
Signing of Syndicated 
Term Loan Facility of 
BDT 395.50 billion for 
setting up 110 MWh 
Power Plants of 
Summit’s Subsidiaries. 

August 15, 2007
Incorporation of Summit 

Purbanchal Power Company 
Limited

(99% subsidiary of Summit 
Power Limited)

August 15, 2007
Incorporation of Summit 

Uttaranchol Power Company 
Limited (99% subsidiary of 

Summit Power Limited)

September 29, 2007
Increase the Authorized 

Share Capital of the 
company (SPL) through EGM 
For issuance of Rights Share 

at the ratio of 5:4 

October 11, 2007
Signing of Project 

Agreements with REB, BPDB 
& GOB to Implement total 
110MW power plants (04 

nos) through its two 
Subsidiary Companies.   

December 04, 2007
Commercial 0peraion at 

Ashulua expansion project
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Statement of  
Corporate Governance
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Power Plant

Chandina-Comilla

T he philosophy of corporate governance of the 
Company is aimed at assisting the top management 
in efficient conduct of its affairs as well as in meeting 

obligations to all the stakeholders and is guided by strong 
emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity. It 
provides the Company with strategic guidance as to how 
the objectives are set and achieved, how risk is monitored 
and assessed and how the performance is maximized.

The corporate governance framework thus aims at 
promoting transparency and efficiency in conducting the 
business, be consistent with the rule of law and clearly 
articulate the division of responsibilities among different 
supervisory, regulatory and implementation authorities.

Keeping in view the size, complexity and operations, the 
governance framework of the Company is based on the 
following principles:

•	 That the Board is appropriate in size and members 
are committed to their respective duties and 
responsibilities

•	 That timely flow of information to the Board and its 
Committees are ensured to enable them discharge 
their functions effectively

•	 That a sound system of risk management and internal 
control is in place.

•	 That timely and balanced disclosure of all material 
information concerning the Company is made to all 
Stakeholders.

•	 That all transactions of the Company are transparent 
and accountability for the same is well established.

•	 That all regulatory and statutory rules and regulations 
are complied with.

The Responsibilities of the Board

To ensure effective maintenance of corporate governance, 
the Board of Summit Power Limited (Summit) formulates 
strategic objectives and policies for the company, provides 
leadership and supervises management actions in 
implementing those objectives of the company. In Summit, 
Board of Directors is in full control of the company’s 
affairs and is also accountable to the shareholders. The 
Board firmly believes that the success of the company 
depends largely on the prevalence of a credible corporate 
governance practice.

In discharging its responsibilities, the Board fulfills certain 
key functions, including:

•	 Reviewing and guiding corporate strategy, major plans 
of action, risk policy, annual budgets and business 
plans; setting performance objectives; monitoring 
implementation and corporate performance.

•	 Ensuring the integrity of the company’s accounting & 
financial reporting systems, in particular, systems for 
risk management, financial and operational control and 
compliance with the law and relevant standards. 

•	 Reviewing company’s financial statements and oversee 
its compliance with applicable audit, accounting and 
reporting requirement.

•	 Monitoring implementation and effectiveness of the 
approved strategic and operating plans.

•	 Establish company’s value.

•	 Oversee the corporate governance of the company

The Company’s policy is to maintain optimum combination 
of Directors from both Sponsors and general public. The 
Managing Director of the Company is a non-shareholder 
ex-offico director and the Board has appointed one 
independent Director as per the Security and Exchange 
Commission’s requirement. The short introduction of the 
Directors has been described in earlier pages. The Board 
ensures that the activities of the Company are always 
conducted with adherence to high ethical standard and in 
the best interest of the shareholders.

Board meetings and procedures 

The number of meetings held during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2011 was 11. The procedures of the 
board meeting are mentioned below:

(a)	 Selection of Agenda:  The Chairman of the Board, in 
consultation with Managing Director sets the agenda 
for Board meetings with the understanding that the 
Board is responsible for providing suggestions for 
agenda items that are aligned with the advisory and 
monitoring functions of the Board. Any member of the 
Board may request that an item be included on the 
agenda.

(b)	 Board Materials: Board materials related to agenda 
items are provided to Board members sufficiently in 
advance of Board meetings to allow the Directors to 
prepare for discussion of the items at the meeting.

(c) Senior Management in the Board meeting: At 
the invitation of the Board, members of senior 
management attended Board meetings or portions 
thereof for the purpose of participating in discussions. 

Internal Control Framework

The Management recognizes its responsibilities to 
present a balanced and understandable assessment of 
the company’s position and prospect. The management 
has accountability for reviewing and approving the 
effectiveness of internal controls operated by the company, 
including financial, operational and compliance controls 
and risk management.   

The company has adequate system of internal control in 
place. The well defined organization structure, predefined 
authority levels, documented policy guidelines and an 
extensive system of internal controls ensure optimal 
utilization and protection of resources, reporting of 
financial transactions and compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations. The system also ensures that assets 
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or 
disposition. 
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Code of Conduct and Ethics
This Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applies to all Summit 
Power Limited (SPL) directors, officers and employees, as well as to 
directors, officers and employees of each subsidiary and associate 
of SPL. SPL and its subsidiaries/associates are referred to herein 
collectively as the “SPL” and the directors, officers and employees 
are referred herein collectively as “Officers”. 

A.  Objective 

Summit Group (Summit) is the major sponsor of SPL and therefore 
all the standards of Code of Conduct and Ethics being followed in 
SPL in the course of carrying its business stem from its sponsor, 
Summit. Summit holds the values with which it conducts business 
in high esteem. It has and will continue to uphold the highest levels 
of business ethics and personal integrity. Following suit, SPL’s Code 
of Business Conduct and Ethics serves to (1) emphasize the Group’s 
commitment to ethics and compliance with the laws; (2) sets forth 
basic standards of ethical and legal behavior; (3) provides reporting 
mechanisms for known or suspected ethical or legal violations; and 
(4) helps prevent and detect wrongdoing. Given the variety and 
complexity of ethical questions that may arise in the course of SPL’s 
business, this Code of Business Conduct and Ethics serves only as 
guide. Confronted with ethically ambiguous situations, all should 

remember the SPL’s commitment to the highest ethical standards 
and seek advice from supervisors, managers or other appropriate 
personnel to ensure that all actions they take on behalf of SPL 
honor this commitment. 
	
B. Ethical Standards 

1.	 Conflicts of Interest 

	A  conflict of interest exists when a person’s private interest 
interferes in any way with the interests of SPL. A conflict can 
arise when one takes actions or has interests that may make 
it difficult to perform his or her work for SPL objectively and 
effectively. Conflicts of interest may also arise when an affiliates, 
or members of his or her family, receives improper personal 
benefits as a result of his or her position at the Group. It is 
always a conflict of interest for an officer to work simultaneously 
for a competitor, customer and supplier or for that matter any 
other establishment against precursory benefit. 

	 Conflicts of interest may not always be clear-cut, so if anyone 
has a question, he/she should consult with his/her supervisor 
or manager or, the chief financial officer or chief legal counsel 
of SPL. Any officer who becomes aware of a conflict or potential 

Confidentiality
... Officers must maintain the confidentiality of confidential 
information entrusted to them. Confidential information includes 
all non-public information that might be of use to competitors or 
harmful to the SPL or its customers if disclosed ...
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conflict should bring it to the attention of a supervisor, manager 
or other appropriate personnel or consult the procedures 
described in Section E of this Code. 

	A ll directors and executive officers of the Group, and the chief 
executive officers and chief financial officers shall disclose any 
material transaction or relationship that reasonably could be 
expected to give rise to such a conflict to the Chairman of the 
Group. 

2. 	 Corporate Opportunities 

	A ll officers are prohibited from taking for themselves 
opportunities that are discovered through the use of corporate 
property, information or position without the consent of 
the Board of Directors of SPL. No officer may use corporate 
property, information or position for improper personal gain 
and no employee may compete with the Group directly or 
indirectly. Officers owe a duty to the Group to advance its 
legitimate interests whenever possible. 

3. Fair Dealing 

	 Officers shall behave honestly and ethically at all times and 
with all people. They shall act in good faith, with due care, and 
shall engage only in fair and open competition, by treating 
ethically competitors, suppliers, customers, and colleagues. 
No officer should take unfair advantage of anyone through 
manipulation, concealment, abuse of privileged information, 
misrepresentation of material facts, or any other unfair 
practice. The purpose of business entertainment and gifts in 

a commercial setting is to create goodwill and sound working 
relationships, not to gain unfair advantage with customers. No 
gift or entertainment should ever be offered or accepted unless 
it is consistent with customary business practices, cannot be 
construed as a bribe or payoff and does not violate any laws 
or regulations. Officers should discuss with their supervisors, 
managers or other appropriate personnel any gifts or proposed 
gifts which they think may be inappropriate. 

4. Insider Trading 

	 Officers who have access to confidential information are not 
permitted to use or share that information for stock trading 
purposes or for any other purpose except the conduct of SPL’s 
business. All non-public information about the SPL should be 
considered confidential information. 

	
5. Confidentiality 

	 Officers must maintain the confidentiality of confidential 
information entrusted to them. Confidential information 
includes all non-public information that might be of use to 
competitors or harmful to the SPL or its customers if disclosed. 
It also includes information that suppliers and customers have 
entrusted to the SPL. The obligation to preserve confidential 
information continues even after employment ends. 

	
6. Protection and Proper Use of SPL Assets 

	A ll should endeavor to protect the SPL’s assets and ensure 
their efficient use. Theft, carelessness, and waste have a direct 
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impact on the SPL’s profitability. Any suspected incident of 
fraud or theft should be immediately reported for investigation. 
The SPL’s equipment should not be used for non-SPL business, 
though incidental personal use is permitted. 

	 The obligation of officers to protect the SPL’s assets includes 
its proprietary information. Proprietary information includes 
as trade secrets, trademarks, engineering and manufacturing 
ideas, designs, databases, records, salary information and any 
unpublished financial data and reports. Unauthorized use or 
distribution of this information would violate SPL policy. It could 
also be illegal and result in civil or criminal penalties. 

7.	 Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations 

	 Obeying the law, both in letter and in spirit, is the foundation 
on which the SPL’s ethical standards are built. In conducting 
the business of SPL, the officers shall comply with applicable 
governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels of 
government in Bangladesh. 

8.	 Timely and Truthful Public Disclosure 

	 In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, stock exchanges and 
other regulators by SPL, and in other public communications 
made by SPL, the officer involved in the preparation of such 
reports and documents (including those who are involved in 
the preparation of financial or other reports and the information 
included in such reports and documents) shall make disclosures 
that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable. 

9.	 Significant Accounting Deficiencies 

	 The CEO and each senior financial officer shall promptly bring 
to the attention of the board any information he or she may 
have concerning (a) significant deficiencies in the design or 
operation of internal control over financial reporting which 
could adversely affect the SPL’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial data or (b) any fraud, whether 
or not material, that involves management or other employees 
who have a significant role in the SPL’s financial reporting, 
disclosures or internal control over financial reporting. 

	
C. Waivers 

Any waiver of this Code for executive officers or directors may be 
made only by the SPL’s Board of Directors.

D. Violations of Ethical Standards 

1.	 Reporting Known or Suspected Violations 

	 The SPL’s directors, CEO, senior financial officers and chief legal 
officer shall promptly report any known or suspected violations 
of this Code to the Chairman. All other officers should talk to 
supervisors, managers or other appropriate personnel about 
known or suspected illegal or unethical behavior. 

	
2. Accountability for Violations 

	 If the SPL’s Audit Committees or its designee determines that 
this Code has been violated, either directly, by failure to report 

a violation, or by withholding information related to a violation, 
the offending officers may be disciplined for non-compliance 
with penalties up to and including removal from office or 
dismissal. Violations of this Code may also constitute violations 
of law and may result in criminal penalties and civil liabilities for 
the offending officers and SPL. All Covered Parties are expected 
to cooperate in internal investigations of misconduct. 

E. Compliance Procedures 

All must work together to ensure prompt and consistent action 
against violations of this Code. In some situations, however, it is 
difficult to know if a violation has occurred. Because we cannot 
anticipate every situation that will arise, it is important that we have 
a way to approach a new question or problem. Steps to keep in 
mind are as follows - 

•	 Make sure you have all the facts. In order to reach the right 
solutions, we must be as informed as possible. 

•	 Clarify your responsibility and role. In most situations, there is 
shared responsibility. Are your colleagues informed? It may help 
to get others involved and discuss the problem. 

•	 Discuss the problem with your manager. This is the basic 
guidance for all situations. In many cases, your superior will 
be more knowledgeable about the questions, and he or she 
will appreciate being consulted as part of the decision-making 
process. 

•	 You may report ethical violations in confidence without fear 
of retaliation. If your situation requires that your identity be 
kept secret, your anonymity will be protected to the maximum 
extent consistent with SPL’s legal obligations. The SPL in all 
circumstances prohibits retaliation of any kind against those 
who report ethical violations in good faith. 

•	 Ask first, act later. If you are unsure of what to do in any 
situation, seek guidance before you act. 
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	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008	 2007

Operating data (Taka in million)
Turnover	 4,757.21	 3,601.67	 2,849.87	 1,737.79	 1,148.77
Operating Expenses	 1,929.60	 1,678.83	 1,339.84	 791.93	 562.15
Gross Profit 	 2,827.61	 1,922.84	 1,510.03	 945.86	 586.62
General & Admin Expenses	 366.46	 267.88	 258.41	 176.71	 134.8
Interest & Financial Charges	 407.85	 642.98	 558.91	 327.45	 189.39
Net Profit	 2,511.15	 1,087.52	 698.52	 460.21	 268.1

Balance Sheet data (Taka in million)
Paid up Capital	 3,943.60	 3,033.54	 2,223.94	 1,853.28	 858
Shareholders’ Equity	 10,235.33	 8,304.02	 4,352.97	 3,654.44	 1,412.13
Total Debt (NCL)	 5,988.61	 2,370.16	 4,430.00	 2,306.00	 2,268.12
Current Assets	 2,939.69	 2,285.23	 1,174.00	 642.55	 467.79
Current Liabilities	 2,235.02	 3,832.15	 1,326.00	 736.58	 886.29
Total Assets	 20,031.29	 14,566.61	 10,121.06	 6,707.12	 4,097.69
Total Liabilities	 8,223.63	 6,202.31	 5,756.00	 3,042.97	 2,685.56

Financial ratios
Gross profit ratio (%)	 59.44	 53.39	 52.98	 54.43	 51.07
Net profit ratio (%)	 52.79	 30.19	 24.59	 26.48	 23.33
Return on total assets (%)	 12.54	 7.47	 6.9	 6.86	 6.54
Debt Equity ratio	 41:59	 42:58	 56:44	 45:55	 62:38

Other data
Earning Per share (Taka)	 6.37	 3.96	 31.41	 25.71	 31.25
Dividend (%)	 25	 30	 25	 20	 20
Total No of shares outstanding	 39,43,60,164	 *30,33,53,973	 2,22,39,360	 1,85,32,800	 85,80,000
Weighted average no of shares outstanding	 39,43,60,164	 *28,64,45,991	 2,22,39,360	 1,78,97,346	 79,84,167
Total no of sponsors shares under lock in	 -	 6,92,78,803	 43,91,683	 43,91,683	 45,00,000
Total no of free float shares	 15,56,28,784	 23,40,75,170	 1,78,47,677	 1,41,41,117	 40,80,000

Note
*Based on the face value of Tk. 10/- from 2010
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wcÖq †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`,

Avmmvjvgy AvjvBKzg|

mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW Gi cwiPvjK cl©` (‡evW© Ae wW‡i±im) Dcw¯’Z 
mKj‡K 15Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq mv`i m¤¢vlY Rvbv‡”Q| Avgiv Mfxi 
Avb‡›`i mv‡_ weMZ 31 wW‡m¤^i 2011Bs Zvwi‡L mgvß A_©eQ‡i †Kv¤cvbxi 
mvwe©K Kvh©µg Ges wbixw¶Z wnmve weeibx Zz‡j aiwQ|

m¤§vwbZ cwiPvjKe„‡›`i Rb¨ G cÖwZ‡e`bwU 1994 m‡bi †Kv¤cvbx AvB‡bi 
184 bs aviv, BÝwUwUDU Ae PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um Ae evsjv‡`k (AvBwmGwe) 
Gi wbqg I wewagvjv, XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ (wWGmB) Gi wewagvjv Ges wmwK-
DwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb (GmBwm) KZ©…K RvwiK…Z cÖÁvcb bs- GmBwm/
wmGg AviAviwmwW/2006-158/cÖkvmb/02-08, ZvwiL-20/02/2006Bs 
Gi wb‡`©kbv Abyhvqx cÖ¯‘ZK…Z|

evsjv‡`‡ki A_©bxwZ Ges we`¨yr Lv‡Zi mvaviY `„k¨cU

Kvh©Kix bxwZgvjv, ißvbx 
e„w× Ges fvj K…wl Drcv`‡bi 
djkª“wZ‡Z 2011Bs A_©eQ‡i 
evsjv‡`‡ki mvgwóK Af¨š—ixY 
Drcv`b (wRwWwc) 6.7% nv‡i 
e„w×cÖvß n‡q‡Q Ges GB e„w×‡Z 
K…wl, wkí Ges †mev Lv‡Zi mie 
AskMÖnY j¶Yxq| 

wKš‘ BD‡ivc Ges Av‡gwiKvi 
A_©‰bwZK g›`vi †cÖw¶‡Z 
evsjv‡`‡ki A_©bxwZ‡K wKQz 
P¨v‡j‡Äi m¤§yLxb n‡Z n‡q‡Q| 
BDGm Wjvi Ges BD‡ivi 
wecix‡Z UvKvi g~j¨ h_vµ‡g 
11% Ges 15%  nªvm, R¡vjvbx 
ïé e„w×, nªvmgvb ˆe‡`wkK 
gy`ªvi mÂq, Avg`vbx Avq 
e„w×, Af¨š—ixb cyuwRevRv‡i I 
gy`ªvevRv‡i Zvij¨ msKU Ges 
µgnªvmgvb Rbkw³ ißvbx Gi 
g‡a¨ D‡j−L‡hvM¨| 

GKBmv‡_ A_©‰bwZK 
bxwZwba©vi‡Y g~j¨ùxwZI GKwU 
eo Pvc wn‡m‡e KvR K‡i‡Q| 
Avš—R©vwZK evRv‡i c‡Y¨i 
D”Pg~‡j¨i Kvi‡Y evsjv‡`‡ki 
g~j¨ùxwZi nvi 2011Bs m‡bi 
†m‡Þ¤^‡i 12%-G DbœxZ 
n‡q‡Q| cÖavYZ R¡vjvbx Ges 
Zzjvi D”Pg~‡j¨i Kvi‡YB GB 
g~j¨ùxwZ N‡U‡Q|

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim 
Dear Shareholders,

Assalamu Alaikum,

The Board of Directors of Summit Power Limited (SPL) welcomes you 
to the 15th Annual General Meeting of the company. We are pleased 
to submit before you the operational activities and audited financial 
statements of the company for the year, which ended on December 31, 
2011. 

The Directors’ Report is prepared in compliance with Section 184 of 
the Companies Act 1994, Rules and Regulations of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB), Listing Rules of Dhaka 
Stock Exchange (DSE) Ltd. and Securities & Exchange Commission’s 
(SEC) notification no- SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated 20th 

February 2006. 

General Economic & Power Sector Scenario 

The gross domestic product (GDP) 
of Bangladesh grew by 6.7% in 
2011, as a result of effective policies, 
strong export growth, and good 
agricultural production. GDP 
growth was broad based, with 
agriculture, industry, and service 
sector all playing their role. 

However, the national economy 
faced challenges following the 
recession in Europe and America. 
The Taka value against US dollar 
and Euro decreased by 15% and 
11% respectively, hike in bulk 
power tariff, decreasing foreign 
exchange reserve, higher cost of 
imports, liquidity crisis in domestic 
capital and money market, and 
decreased  manpower export 
were some of the concerns of the 
economy.

Macroeconomic management 
faced challenges due to inflationary 
pressure; the country’s inflation rate 
went up to 12.0% in September 
2011. This is mainly due to high 
international commodity prices 
mainly of fuel and cotton.

Fiscal management faced 
challenges, with inadequate revenue 
resources, decline in aid absorption, 
and growing subsidies financed 
by higher Government borrowing. 
Customs duty and supplementary 
duty coupled with domestic indirect 
taxes improved providing slight 
relief to the situation.  Growth in 

BANGLADESH INFLATION RATE

Bangladesh Bureau of StatisticsSource : www.tradingeconomics.com
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Avw_©K e¨e¯’vcbvi g~j Aš—ivq¸‡jv wQj Ach©vß ivR¯^ Drm, Aby`vb nªvm 
Ges µgea©gvb nv‡i miKvix FY Øviv fZ©zKx cÖ`vb| AveMvix ïé I Ab¨vb¨ 
m¤cyiK ïé Ges Af¨š—ixb AcÖZ¨¶ K‡ii DbœwZ nIqvq cwiw¯’wZi mvgvb¨ 
Dbœqb N‡U| †kl wZbgv‡m cÖZ¨vkvi †P‡q †ekx †iwgU¨vÝ e„w× ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv 
wiRvf© mg„× K‡i‡Q|

2011Bs m‡b GKw`‡K †Zj Avg`vbxi Pvwn`v e„w× I Ab¨w`‡K †Z‡ji g~j¨ 
e„w×i Kvi‡Y †`‡k evwbR¨ NvUwZi cwigvY e„w× †c‡q‡Q| djkª“wZ‡Z ewa©Z 
fZ©zKx cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ miKvi‡K e¨vsK †_‡K ewa©Z nv‡i FY wb‡Z n‡q‡Q|

AbyK‚j AvenvIqv I AbyK‚j miKvix bxwZi Kvi‡Y 2011Bs m‡b K…wl Lv‡Z 
cÖe„w× N‡U‡Q, d‡j miKv‡ii Lv`¨ gRy` wØ¸Y n‡q‡Q| Lv`¨ g~‡j¨i e„w× 
Ges Aw¯’wZkxjZvi ˆØZ Pv‡c Lv`¨ Drcv`‡b ¸YMZ DrKl©Zv eRvq ivLv I 
†emiKvix wewb‡qvM AvKl©Y Kiv KwVb n‡q c‡o| Avkvbyiƒc ißvbx e„w× I 
Af¨š—ixb Pvwn`v e„w×i Kvi‡Y wk‡í cÖe„w×i nvi cÖZ¨vkvwi³ n‡q‡Q| 

wek¦g›`v Ges BD‡iv‡ci msKzwPZ A_©‰bwZK Kg©Kv‡Ûi Kvi‡Y cÖZ¨¶ 
ˆe‡`wkK wewb‡qvM nªvm †c‡q‡Q| 2011Bs m‡bi ißvbx, Avf¨š—ixb Pvwn`v I 
wkí Dbœqb n‡q‡Q 8.2 kZvsk hv wKbv 2010Bs m‡b wQj 6.5 kZvsk|

evsjv‡`‡ki †gvU RvZxq Drcv`‡b †mev Lv‡Zi Ae`vb cÖvq A‡a©K Ges 
†mev LvZ Avevi K…wl I wkí  Drcv`‡bi Dci wbf©ikxj| G Lv‡Z 2010 
m‡bi 6.5 kZvsk cÖe„w×i Zzjbvq 2011Bs m‡b cÖe„w× wKwÂr e„w× †c‡q 
6.6% kZvsk n‡q‡Q| G Lv‡Z 2010 m‡bi †P‡q Zzjbvg~jK fvj Ae`vb 
ivL‡Z †c‡i‡Q Ggb †¶Î¸‡jv n‡”Q- LyPiv  I cvBKvix evwYR¨, cwienb, 
†Uwj‡hvMv‡hvM, ¯^v¯’¨‡mev, wk¶v Ges Avw_©K †mev|

foreign exchange remittance during the last quarter was better than 
expected and resulting in growth of reserve. 

2011 saw widening trade balance as demand for imported oil grew 
on one side and increasing global oil price on other side. Providing 
increasing subsidies by the Government resulted in higher bank 
borrowing. 

Growth in agriculture during the FY2011 was due to favorable weather 
conditions and favorable Government policy. As a result, Government’s 
stock of food grains doubled. Diversification and quality in the production 
of food grain is a challenge along with the public and private investment 
in this sector with dual threat of food inflation and the volatility in food 
grain price.

Industrial growth met high expectation due to rebound in exports and 
rise in domestic demand during the FY2011. Foreign Direct Investment 
fell due to global recession and contractions seen in Europe. During 
2011 export, domestic demand and industrial growth was up by 8.2% in 
comparison to 2010 growth of 6.5%.  

The service sectors accounts for half of Bangladesh’s GDP and 
it is highly dependent on agricultural and industrial expansion. 
Consequently in FY2011 this sector enjoyed slight growth of 6.6% 
from 6.5% in FY2010. The notable areas of this sector include 
wholesale and retail trade, transport, telecommunications, health 
services, education, and financial services all of which performed 
better than 2010. 

Other significant economic activities during the year include - Bangladesh 
Bank tightened its monetary policy, growth in disbursement of industrial 

Power Plant

Rupganj-Narayanganj
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weMZ m‡bi D‡j−L‡hvM¨ A_©‰bwZK Kg©Kv‡Ûi g‡a¨ i‡q‡Q- evsjv‡`k e¨vsK 
KZ©…K gy`ªvbxwZ wkw_jKiY, Aegy³ †gqv`x wkí F‡bi cwigv‡Yi cÖe„w×, 
evwYwR¨K F‡Yi my‡`i nvi e„w×| Gmgq Avš—te¨vsK Kj gvwbi my‡`i nv‡i 
w¯’wZkxjZv eRvq wQj, †UªRvwi we‡ji my‡`i nvi e„w× †c‡q‡Q, e¨vsK c×wZ‡Z 
bb cvidwg©s F‡Yi cwigvY nªvm †c‡q‡Q, ißvbx e„w× †c‡q‡Q, be¨ evRv‡i 
ißvbx `ª“Z e„w× †c‡q‡Q, Avg`vbx FYcÎ †Lvjvi wbægyLx cÖeYZv `„k¨gvb 
Ges hy³ivR¨ I hy³ivóª †_‡K ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvi AvMgb nªvm †c‡q‡Q| ZvQvov 
ˆe‡`wkK Kg©ms¯’v‡bi cwigvY e„w× †c‡q‡Q, ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvi gRy‡Z NvUwZi 
cÖeYZv Ae¨vnZ i‡q‡Q Ges AvcvZ I cÖK…Z gy`ªv wewbgq nvi Dfq †¶‡ÎB 
UvKv µgvMZ gvb nviv‡”Q | 2011Bs m‡b †`‡k cyuwRevRv‡i Aw¯’wZkxjZv 
Ae¨vnZ _v‡K Ges Gi mvwe©K g~j¨m~P‡K 36.69 kZvsk A‡avMwZ j¶¨ Kiv 
hvq| A_©bxwZ‡Z `xN©‡gqv`x cÖfve we¯—viKvix miKvix Kvh©µ‡gi g‡a¨ wQj 
evsjv‡`k e¨vsK KZ©…K `ywU evwYwR¨K e¨vs‡Ki Rb¨ jvB‡mÝ cÖ`v‡bi D‡`¨vM| 
miKvi BZtg‡a¨B †i›Uvj cvIqvi cwjwmi AvIZvq we`¨yr †K›`ª wbg©v‡Yi 
bxwZ †_‡K m‡i G‡m‡Q Ges cÖ_vMZ Drm ewnf©‚Z Drm †_‡K ˆe‡`wkK FY 
LyuR‡Q|

we`¨yr A_©bxwZi ¸i“Z¡c~Y© PvwjKvkw³ Ges wkí, K…wl, †mev, evwYR¨, M„n¯’vjx 
Ges Z_¨ I †hvMv‡hvM cÖhyw³i µgea©gvb Pvwn`vi Kvi‡Y miKvi eva¨ n‡”Q 
we`¨yr Drcv`‡b kw³kvjx bxwZ MÖnY Ki‡Z| B‡Zvg‡a¨B miKvi G msµvš— ¯^í 
I `xN© †gqv`x wewfbœ cwiKíbv MÖnb K‡i‡Q| ZviciI cÖK…Z fwelr Pvwn`v 
I mieiv‡ni mgš^q NUv‡Z wKQz mgq cÖ‡qvRb n‡e| 2011 Bs m‡b m‡e©v”P 
5,174 †gMvIqvU ch©š— we`¨yr mieivn Kiv m¤¢e n‡q‡Q, hv MZ eQ‡ii 
mieivnK…Z 4,698 †gMvIqv‡Ui †P‡q †ekx| µgewa©Z Pvwn`v c~ib Ki‡Z n‡j 
we`¨y‡Zi Drcv`b R¨vwgwZK nv‡i e„w× Ki‡Z n‡e| evsjv‡`k we`¨yr Dbœqb †evW© 
KZ©…K cÖ`Ë fwel¨‡Zi AvbygvwbK m‡e©v”P Pvwn`v wb‡æ cÖ`vb Kiv nj-

term lending, increase in commercial borrowing rate, weighted average 
interbank call money rate remained stable, interest rates on T-bills 
rose, non-performing loans in the banking system declined, exports 
grew, export earnings from new markets grew rapidly, L/Cs for import 
saw  slowdown in growth, earnings remittance from the US and the UK 
decreased, overseas jobs for Bangladeshi workers rose, overall balance 
remained in deficit, gross foreign exchange reserves declined, and, both 
nominal exchange rate and real effective exchange rates continued to 
depreciate. The country’s stock markets remained volatile throughout 
2011 and the main bourse DSE saw a decline of 36.69%. Actions that will 
have long-term implications include: applications invited by Bangladesh 
Bank to set up new commercial banks. Government has halted rental 
power policy. And the government has decided to engage with other 
Foreign Direct Investors as there is a decline in interest in traditional 
sources. 

A crucial driving force of the economy is electricity and the 
accelerating demand for power from industries, agriculture, 
service, trade, domestic households, information and 
communication technology is making the Government take 
aggressive policy decisions to generate power and the State has 
already taken initiative in this respect through short and long 
term programs. However the actual demand could not be met 
and the supply of electricity will take some time to catch up 
with demand. The maximum demand served so far is 5,174 MW 
in 2011, which is greater than past year’s maximum generation 
of 4,698 MW. Growth in electricity generation needs to be 
geometrically accelerated to meet demand. A forecast of Peak 
Demand for the next few years is as follows as per Bangladesh 
Power Development Board (BPDB) – 
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A_©eQi		 m‡e©v”P Pvwn`v
2012  .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . 	 7,518
2013  .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . 	 8,349
2014  .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . 	 9,268
2015  .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . 	 10,283
2016  .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . 	 11,405
2017  .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . 	 12,644
2018  .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . 	 14,014
2019  .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . 	 15,527
2020  .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . 	 17,304

we`¨yr e¨e¯’vcbvq h_vh_ Drcv`b cwiKíbv AZ¨š— ¸i“Z¡c~Y© Ges Drcv`b †K›`ª¸‡jvi 
wbf©ikxjZvi  DciB mvgwMÖK we`¨yr e¨e¯’vcbvi mdjZv wbf©ikxj| we`¨yr Drcv`b 
cwiKíbvi j¶¨ nIqv DwPZ †hb cÖvwš—K MÖvnK‡`i wbiwew”Qbœ we`¨yr mieiv‡ni gva¨‡g 
A_©bxwZi PvKv mPj ivLv hvq|

we`¨yr Drcv`‡b R¡vjvbx wn‡m‡e cÖvK…wZK M¨vm, Kqjv, cvigvYweK kw³ I cvwb 
m¤c‡`i e¨envi we‡ePbv Kiv n‡”Q| ZvQvov Avš—t‡`kxq evwY‡R¨i gva¨‡gI we`¨yr 

Pvwn`v †gUv‡bvi D‡`¨vM †bqv n‡”Q| R¡vjvbx Dr‡mi I RvZxq MÖx‡Wi ˆbKU¨, fvix 
hš¿cvwZ cwien‡bi Dc‡hvwMZv, †jvW †m›Uv‡ii Ae¯’vb BZ¨vw`I we`¨yr Drcv`‡b we‡eP¨ 
welq|  

we`¨y‡Zi g~j¨ A‡bKvs‡kB R¡vjvbxi g~‡j¨i Dci wbf©i K‡i| †mR‡b¨B wW‡Rj Øviv 
Drcvw`Z we`¨y‡Zi g~j¨ me‡P‡q †ewk, Gi c‡i i‡q‡Q h_vµ‡g GBPGdI, Kqjv, 
GjGbwR Ges M¨vm Øviv Drcvw`Z we`¨yr| miKv‡ii  fZ©zwKi d‡j 26 UvKv cÖwZ 
wjUvi g~‡j¨ GBPGdI wnmv‡e GBPGdI c−v‡›Ui me‡P‡q `¶ BwÄ‡bI cÖwZ BDwbU 
we`¨y‡Zi Drcv`b g~‡j¨ ïaygvÎ R¡vjvbx LiP 5.65 UvKv (U¨vwi‡di 81%)| cÖvK…wZK 
M¨v‡mi gZ mvkªqx R¡vjvbxi e¨e¯’v bv Kiv †M‡j myjf g~‡j¨ we`¨yr mieivn Kiv `yiƒn 
n‡e|

ivóª‡K GB ¸i“Z¡c~Y© wm×vš—wU wb‡Z n‡e †h fZ©zwK Drcv`K ch©v‡q bvwK †fv³v 
ch©v‡q cÖ`vb Kiv n‡e| GwU wbwðZ †h eZ©gv‡b †h nv‡i R¡vjvbx g~j¨ e„w× cv‡”Q Zv‡Z 
K…lK Ges MÖvgxb Rb‡Mvôxi gZ ¸i“Z¡c~Y© †fv³v‡Mvôx we`¨yr e¨envi Ki‡Z cvi‡ebv| 
AZGe 100 BDwbU ch©š— wbæ Av‡qi †fv³v‡`i M„n¯’vjx e¨env‡i, K…wlLv‡Z Ges 
wbæ Av‡qi A_©‰bwZK Kg©Kv‡Û fZ©zwK cÖ`vb Kiv DwPZ| Ab¨vb¨ †fv³v‡`i DwPZ 
miKv‡ii we`¨yr mieiv‡n †h e¨q nq Zv enb Kiv| Z‡e Drcv`K I mieivnKvix 
†Kv¤cvbx¸‡jvi A`¶Zvi e¨q †fv³v‡`i Dci Pvwc‡q †`qv hv‡ebv| miKvi cÖ`Ë 
†h‡Kvb fZ©zwK‡Z mKj RbM‡Yi A_© i‡q‡Q| GRb¨ fZ©zwKi gva¨‡g we`¨yr myweavcÖvß 
fvM¨evb Rb‡Mvôx‡K we`¨yr myweavewÂZ fvM¨vnZ As‡ki A‡_© AwZwi³ myweav cÖ`vb 
b¨vqvbyM bq| 

	 Fiscal Year	 Peak Demand (MW)

	 2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 	 7,518
	 2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 	 8,349
	 2014 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 	 9,268
	 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 	 10,283
	 2016 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 	 11,405
	 2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 	 12,644
	 2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 	 14,014
	 2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 	 15,527
	 2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 	 17,304

Generation Planning is the most important part of the power 
management system and the reliability of the whole power management 
system depends largely on the reliability of power generating system. The 
generation in the system should be able to support nonstop supply to the 
end consumers, who drive the economy. 

Indigenous natural gas, coal, nuclear, cross-border trade and hydro 
resources are being considered for future electricity generation. Other 
factors such as availability of fuel, cooling water, transportation of 
heavy equipment, proximity to grid network and load center should be 
considered during planning.

The cost of power depends largely on the price of fuel. Accordingly cost 
from a diesel fired plant is the highest, followed by the prices from HFO, 
Coal, LNG and Gas plants. For HFO plant per unit fuel cost with subsidized 
HFO supplied by the Government @ Tk.26 per liter, accounts for Tk.5.65 
(81% of the tariff) with the most efficient engine. Unless cheaper fuel like 
natural gas can be made available, it will be difficult to generate power at 
an affordable rate. 

A major issue the State has to resolve is whether to provide subsidy at the 
generation level or at consumption level. It’s for certain a major group of 
consumers like agricultural farmers and rural household will not be able 
to afford electricity at the rate at which energy cost is rising. Subsidies 
may be provided for power consumptions for lower income domestic 
use of up to 1,000 Kwh, agricultural sector and low income generating 
activities which create greater benefits for the country; other consumers 
should pay for actual cost of electricity that is incurred by the Government 
for providing electricity to them. However consumers should not have 
to bear the increase in cost due to the inefficiency of the generation and 
distribution companies. Consumers who are getting electricity now are 
better off than those who are without it. The amount spent in subsidy of 
the Government should provide benefit to every citizen of the country. 

Difficulties in importing essential spare parts for operations and 
maintenance of the engines is a major bottleneck in keeping the power 
plants operative with high availability. The import policy, customs 
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we`¨yr †K›`ª¸‡jv wbiwew”Qbœ fv‡e Pvjy ivLvi Ab¨Zg cÖavY Aš—ivq n‡”Q LyPiv hš¿vsk 
Avg`vbx‡Z wewfbœ c×wZMZ RwUjZv| G wel‡q Avg`vbx bxwZgvjv I ïé QvoKiY 

c×wZ mnRxKiY GKvš— evÃbxq| we`¨yr 
†K‡›`ªi gZ RwUj I ci¯ci wbf©ikxj 
hš¿cvwZi †h †Kvb GKwU bó n‡jcy‡iv 
Drcv`b‡K›`ª eÜ ivL‡Z nq| G mgm¨v 
mgvav‡bi Rb¨ bó hš¿wU Kvh©¶g Kivi 
Rb¨ `ª“Z we‡`k †_‡K hš¿vsk Avg`vbxi 
cÖ‡qvRb nq| G Avg`vbxi cÖwµqv mnR 
bv nIqvi Kvi‡Y hš¿vs‡ki Afv‡e we`¨yr 
†K‡›`ªi Drcv`b `xN©mgq eÜ _v‡K d‡j 
†Kv¤cvbx I †`k DfqB ¶wZMÖ¯— nq| 
G Rb¨ Drcv`b †K‡›`ªi Drcv`b ¶gZv 
Abyhvqx GKwU b¨~bZg cwigvY A‡_©i 
hš¿vsk, g~j hš¿vsk cÖ¯‘ZKvix †_‡K Bg‡cvU© 
cviwgZ e¨ZxZ mivmwi Avg`vbxi Ges Zv 
`ª“Z ïé QvoKi‡Yi Rb¨ bxwZgvjv cÖYqb 
I RvZxq ivR¯^ †ev‡W©i cÖÁvcb Rvix Kiv 
cÖ‡qvRb|

mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UWt (AZxZ, eZ©gvb I fwel¨r)

evsjv‡`‡k mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW †emiKvix we`¨yr Drcv`‡bi AMÖcw_K| G hvÎv 
ïi“ 2000mv‡j| mg‡qi mv‡_ mv‡_ mvwgU cvIqvi cÖKí ev¯—evq‡b Ges we`¨yr †K›`ª 
Pvjbvq I i¶Yv‡e¶‡Y AwfÁZv jvf Ki‡Q| G AwfÁZv mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW‡K 
wbR gvwjKvbvq 11wU we`¨yr‡K›`ª I †hŠ_ gvwjKvbvq 2wU we`¨yr †K›`ª ¯’vcbKvix kxl© 
evsjv‡`kx †Kv¤cvbx n‡q DV‡Z mvnvh¨ K‡i‡Q| mvwgU eZ©gv‡b 317 †gMvIqvU we`¨yr 
Drcv`b K‡i| GQvovI mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW Lyjbv cvIqvi †Kv¤cvbx wjwg‡U‡Wi 
(‡KwcwmGj) 18.7% †kqvi AwaMÖnY K‡i‡Q| mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡U‡Wi †gvU ¯’vwcZ 
Drcv`b¶gZv n‡”Q 366.5 †gMvIqvU|

evsjv‡`k we`¨yr Dbœqb †ev‡W©i mv‡_ GBPGdI PvwjZ KzBK †i›Uvj we`¨yr †K›`ª 
¯’vc‡b Pzw³e×‡`i g‡a¨ mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UWB GKgvÎ †Kv¤cvbx hv wba©vwiZ 270 
w`‡bi g‡a¨ wb‡R‡`i 102 †gMvIqvU mvwgU bvivqYMÄ cvIqvi c−v›U (GmGbwcGj) 
wbg©vY m¤cbœ K‡i‡Q| GR‡b¨ GwU 28 wW‡m¤^i 2011Bs †Z Gwkqvi Ò`¨v †e÷ dv÷ 
Uª¨vKÓ cÖ‡R± wnmv‡e Gwkqvb cvIqvi A¨vIqvW© bvgK Avš—R©vwZK cÖwZ‡hvwMZvq ¯^Y© 
c`K jvf K‡i‡Q| GwU Aek¨B evsjv‡`‡ki Ges we‡klZ mvwg‡Ui wek¦gv‡bi gvSvix 
AvKv‡ii we`¨yr †K›`ª wbg©vY ¶gZvi GKwU eo ¯^xK…wZ|

bvivqYMÄ cvIqvi wjwg‡UW wWBwR (Rvg©vb Bb‡f÷‡g›U A¨vÛ †W‡fjc‡g›U 
†Kv¤cvbx) Ges GdGgI (WvP †W‡fjc‡g›U wdb¨vÝ †Kv¤cvbx) †_‡K 4.5 †KvwU 
BDGm Wjvi ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv †gqv`x FY msMÖn Ki‡Z †c‡i‡Q| mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW 
†kªô cÖKvwkZ wnmve Ges cÖwZ‡e`‡bi Rb¨ ÓAvBwmGwe b¨vkbvj A¨vIqvW© 2010Ó 
Ges mvD_ Gwkqvb †dWv‡ikb Ae GKvDb‡U›U‡mi (GmGGdG - mv‡K©i GKwU 
D”P cÖwZôvb) Zid †_‡K ¯^”QZv, Revew`wnZv, e¨e¯’vcbvi Rb¨ Ò‡e÷ †cÖ‡R‡›UW 
A¨vKvD›Um A¨vÛ K‡c©v‡iU Mfv‡b©Ý wWm‡K¬vmvm© A¨vIqvW© 2010Ó jvf K‡i‡Q|

mvwgU cvIqvi memgq G‡Kev‡i bZzb D”P `¶Zvm¤cbœ BwÄb/UvievBb Ges wek¦gv‡bi 
Ab¨vb¨ m¤c~iK hš¿cvwZ e¨envi K‡i Avm‡Q| D‡Ïk¨ n‡”Q cÖwZ BDwbU we`¨yr 
Drcv`‡bi R‡b¨ b¨~bZg cwigvY R¡vjvbx e¨venvi Kiv| bZzb I gvbm¤cbœ †gwkb¸‡jvi 
gva¨‡g mvwgU cvIqvi R¡vjvbx I M¨v‡mi `¶ e¨envi wbwðZ Ki‡Z cv‡i| hvi d‡j 
cÖwZkª“Z K›UªvKPzqvj A¨v‡fBjA¨vwewjwU I wnU †iU (cÖwZ BDwbU we`¨yr Drcv`‡bi R‡b¨ 

regulations and C&F procedure should be improved to facilitate quick 
import of spare parts after break down. Worldwide operators normally 
maintain safety spares and import scheduled maintenance parts on 
the basis of pre planning but 
for unscheduled break down 
maintenance operators are 
required to import parts, which in 
most of the cases are of small value 
but require immediate import. 
For these types of spares even the 
most experienced operators are 
unable to preplan/forecast. Import 
of these items under present 
import and custom formalities, can 
keep a power plant idle for weeks 
and months, resulting in loss not 
only to the business of the power 
generator but also to the citizens 
of the country by depriving them 
from power during these days of 
power crisis. 

Summit Power Limited: (Past, Present & Future)

In private sector power generation ‘Summit Power Limited’ is the 
pioneering Bangladeshi company. It started power generation from 2000 
and has over the years gained experience in project implementation 
and operation & maintenance of power plants. This has given Summit 
Power Limited an edge over others in becoming the leading Bangladeshi 
company with eleven operating plants of its own and two operating 
plants with co-ownership. Summit’s portfolio in present power generation 
is 317 MW. In addition, Summit Power Limited has acquired 18.7% of 
Khulna Power Company Limited (KPCL). The total installed capacity under 
Summit Power Limited is 367 MW.

Out of all the awarded contracts by BPDB for construction of HFO fired 
quick rental power plants, Summit Power Limited is the only company that 
has completed, within the scheduled 270 days time, its 102 MW Summit 
Narayanganj Power Plant (SNPL) and for which it has received international 
gold award on September 28, 2011 as “The Best Fast Track” project in Asia. 
This is indeed a great recognition of the ability of the country in general 
and Summit in particular, to construct in world standard, a medium size 
power plant. 

Summit Narayanganj Power Limited has achieved financial close by 
receiving a foreign currency term loan of USD 45 million from DEG 
- Deutsche Investitions- und Entwicklungsgesellschaft mbH and FMO - 
Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij Voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V. 
Summit Power Limited has also been awarded ICAB National Awards for 
best published accounts and reports of 2010 as well as Best Presented 
Accounts and Corporate Governance Disclosures Awards 2010 by South 
Asian Federation of Accountants (SAFA – an apex body of SAARC) for its 
Transparency, Accountability & Governance. 

Summit Power Limited has always used brand new highly efficient 
engines/turbines and other auxiliaries of best international standard. The 
aim is to spend bare minimum fuel for per unit of generation of electricity 
which is provided by the State. The new and quality machine allows for 
Summit Power Limited to maintain its guaranteed contractual availability 

76.15%
Natural

3.40%
Hydro

3.70%
Coal

10.29%
Diesel

6.46%
Furnace oil
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e¨eüZ Zvc ev R¡vjvbx) m¤¢ve¨ b¨~bZg cwigv‡Y ivLv m¤¢e nq| GQvovI Avcbv‡`i 
†Kv¤cvbx Av‡iv `¶ I gvbm¤cbœ cwiPvjbvi Rb¨ AvBGmI 9001 : 2008- †KvqvwjwU 
g¨v‡bR‡g›U wm‡÷g (wKDGgGm), AvBGmI 14001 : 2004-Gbfvq‡ivb‡g›U 
g¨v‡bR‡g›U wm‡÷g (BGgGm) AvBGmI 18001 : 2007- AKz‡ckbvj †nj_ A¨vÛ 
†mdwU (IGBP A¨vÛ Gm) Gi mgš^‡q Bw›Uª‡M‡UW g¨v‡bR‡g›U wm‡÷g (AvBGgGm) 
ev¯—evq‡bi D‡`¨vM B‡Zvg‡a¨ MÖnb K‡i‡Q|

mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW Ges Gi mn‡hvMx cÖwZôvbmg~n eZ©gv‡b 11wU we`¨yr †K›`ª 
cwiPvjbv Ki‡Q| G we`¨yr †K›`ª mg~‡ni Drcv`b ¶gZv eZ©gv‡b 317 †gMvIqvU 
(AvbygvwbK)| 2011Bs  m‡b DcwiD³ mKj we`¨yr †K›`ª we`¨yr µq Pzw³i kZ© Abyhvqx 
cÖ‡qvRbxq mieivn wbwðZ K‡i cÖksmbxq K…wZZ¡ cÖ`k©b K‡i‡Q| djkª“wZ‡Z D³ 
we`¨yr†K›`ª mg~n n‡Z RvZxq MÖx‡W me©‡gvU 180.3 †KvwU BDwbU we`¨yr mieivn n‡q‡Q, 
hv 2009Bs m‡bi Zzjbvq 23% †ekx|

RvZxq ivR¯^ Ges A_©bxwZ‡Z Ae`vb

we`¨yr †h †Kvb †`‡ki A_©bxwZi cÖavb PvwjKv kw³ Ges Gi eûgyLx e¨envi †`‡ki 
A_©‰bwZK cÖe„w×‡Z Kvh©Kix f‚wgKv iv‡L| Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i Avcbv‡`i cÖwZôvb RvZxq 
MÖx‡W me©‡gvU 180 †KvwU 30 j¶ BDwbU we`¨yr mieivn K‡i‡Q| d‡j Avcbv‡`i 
cÖwZôvb GKw`‡K †hgb †`‡ki wkí Drcv`b e„w×‡Z mnvqZv Ki‡Q, Ab¨w`‡K 
Kg©ms¯’vb e„w×‡ZI Ae`vb †i‡L‡Q| †Kv¤cvbxi m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi wn‡m‡e Avcbviv 
†`kxq A_©bxwZ‡Z Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbxi GB Ae`v‡bi Rb¨ Mwe©Z n‡Z cv‡ib| 
Avcbv‡`i cÖwZôvb Avm‡Q eQi mg~‡n RvZxq A_©bxwZ‡Z Gi Ae`vb µgvMZfv‡e e„w×i 
Rb¨ cÖ‡qvRbxq c`‡¶c MÖnY Ae¨nZ †i‡L‡Q|

hw`I Avcbv‡`i cÖwZôv‡bi hveZxq Avq/‡iwfwbD m¤c~Y© Ki`vqgy³, Z_vwc we`¨yr 
†K›`ª mg~‡ni i¶Yv‡e¶‡bi Rb¨ wewfbœ †¯cqvi cvU©m Avg`vbxi wecix‡Z wWDwU, U¨v· 
I f¨vU cÖ`vb K‡i RvZxq ivR‡¯^ D‡j−L‡hvM¨ Ae`vb ivL‡Q| 2011 Bs m‡b RvZxq 
A_©bxwZ‡Z Avcbv‡`i cÖwZôv‡bi Ae`v‡bi cwigvY wQj 9 †KvwU 40 j¶ UvKv|

and Heat Rate (fuel consumption for generation of one unit of electricity) 
ensuring efficient use of fuel and gas. Furthermore your company has 
already taken initiatives for implementation of Integrated Management 
System (IMS), which includes - ISO 9001 : 2008 – Quality Management 
System (QMS), ISO 14001 : 2004 – Environmental Management System 
(EMS), ISO 18001 : 2007 – Occupational Health & Safety (OH&S).  

Summit Power Limited and its subsidiaries at present operate 11 power 
plants. The Generation Capacity of these power plants is 317 MW 
(approximately). In 2011, all these power plants were made available to 
the extent required as per the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA), indicating 
excellent operational performance of your company. As a result these 
plants could deliver electrical energy to the national grid totaling to 1,803 
million units (Kwh) approximately, which is 23% higher than that in 2010. 
   

Contribution to the National Exchequer & the Economy

Electricity is one of the main driving forces of the economy and it has 
a diversified use and multiplier effect on the economy. This year your 
company added 1,803 million units (Kwh) of electricity to the national 
grid. This addition has contributed significantly in enhancing industrial 
productions and providing more job opportunities in the country. As 
a shareholder you can be proud of your Company’s contribution to 
Bangladesh. The Company is now set to continuously increase and 
enhance its contribution to national economy in the years to come.      

Your company has full tax exemption on its revenue, but it has contributed 
a significant amount to the national exchequer in the form of different 
duties, taxes and VAT while importing spare parts for the power plants’ 
maintenance work and at investment in capital and money market. The 
estimated amount of contribution was of Taka 94 million in 2011.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework  

The Law requires the financial statements of your company follows 
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K‡c©v‡iU Ges Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi AeKvVv‡gv 

B›Uvib¨vkbvj dvBb¨vwÝqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛvW© Abymi‡Y cÖYxZ evsjv‡`‡ki 
dvBb¨vwÝqvj ÷¨vÛvW©, AvBwmGwe KZ©…K M„wnZ nIqvi †cÖw¶‡Z Z`byhvqx Avw_©K 
Kvh¨©vejxi weeibx cÖYq‡b AvBbx eva¨evaKZv i‡q‡Q| †m †cÖ¶vc‡U †Kv¤cvbxi Avw_©K 
weeibx cÖbq‡b wbæewY©Z I welqvejx we‡ePbv Kiv n‡q‡Q|

1)	 h‡_vchy³ wnmvei¶Y bxwZ cÖYqb I Zvi Ae¨nZ AbymiY,

2)	 hyw³m½Z I `~i`k©x wm×vš— MÖnY,

3)	 evsjv‡`k dvBb¨vwÝqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛvW© (weGdAviGm) Abyhvqx Avw_©K 
weeibx cÖ¯‘Z wbwðZKiY,

4)	 †Kv¤cvbx Avi e¨emv Pvjv‡ebv Ggb wm×vš— MÖn‡Yi gZ Ae¯’v m„wó nIqvi c~e© 
ch©š— GKwU Pjgvb cÖwZôvb wn‡m‡e wbqwgZ Avw_©K weeibx cÖ¯‘Z KiY|

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbxi A_© I wnmve msµvš— hveZxq Z_¨vejx Ggbfv‡e msi¶Y Kiv 
n‡q‡Q hv‡Z †h‡Kvb mg‡q †Kv¤cvbxi mwVK Ges cÖK…Z Avw_©K Ae¯’v Zz‡j aiv m¤¢e 
nq| ZvQvov D³ wnmve weeiYx 1994 Bs m‡bi †Kv¤cvbx AvBb Ges Ab¨vb¨ mswkó 
KZ©…c‡¶i wbqg-bxwZ AbymiY K‡i m¤cvw`Z n‡q‡Q|

20 †deª“qvix, 2006Bs Zvwi‡Li wmwKDwiwUm GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb (GmBwm-) Gi 
cÖÁvcb Abyhvqx cwiPvjKe„›` Zvu‡`i Rvbvg‡Z GB cÖwZ‡e`‡b wbwðZ K‡i‡Qb †h-

(K) †Kv¤cvbx e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©…c¶ KZ©…K cÖ¯‘ZK…Z Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z Gi Kg©KvÊ, 
Kvh©µ‡gi djvdj, bM` cÖevn Ges BKzBwUi cwieZ©b m¤c‡K© h_v_© wPÎ 
Dc¯’vwcZ n‡q‡Q,

(L)	 Avcbvi †Kv¤cvbxi wnmv‡ei cÖ‡qvRbxq eBmg~n h_vh_fv‡e msi¶Y Kiv n‡q‡Q,

(M)	 Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n cÖ¯‘Z Kivi mgq Dchy³ wnmve-bxwZ m½wZc~Y©fv‡e cÖ‡qvM 
Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges wnmv‡ei cÖv°jb Kiv n‡q‡Q hyw³m½Z I cÖvÁ wePvi‡ev‡ai 
wfwË‡Z,

(N)	 Avw_©K weeiYx cÖ¯‘Z Kivi mgq Avš—R©vwZK wnmve gvb`Û I evsjv‡`‡ki 
Avw_©K weeiYxi gvb`Û AbymiY Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges Zv †_‡K †h‡Kvb e¨Z¨q 
ch©vßfv‡e cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q,

(O)	 Af¨š—ixb wbqš¿Y c×wZ wQj ewjô Ges Zv Kvh©Kifv‡e ev¯—evqb I ch©‡e¶b 
(gwbUwis) Kiv n‡q‡Q,

(P)	 Pjgvb cÖwZôvb wn‡m‡e Kvh©µg Ae¨vnZ ivLv‡Z Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbxi mvg‡_¨©i 
e¨vcv‡i †Zgb †Kvb mskq †bB,

(Q)	 †Kv¤cvbxi mvwe©K Kvh©µ‡gi djvd‡ji †¶‡Î MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq D‡j−L‡hvM¨ 
†hme e¨Z¨q i‡q‡Q †m¸‡jv eY©bv Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges Zvi KviY e¨L¨v Kiv 
n‡q‡Q,

(R)	 mvwe©K Kvh©µg Ges Avw_©K wel‡q MZ cvuP eQ‡ii ¸i“Z¡c~Y© DcvË ms‡hvRb 
Kiv n‡q‡Q,

(S)	 GB cÖwZ‡e`‡bi mswkó Aa¨v‡q †Kv¤cvbxi cÖvwZôvwbK KvVv‡gv, e¨emv e„w×, 
h_vh_ Kvi‡Y evwZjK…Z Kvh©µg, fwel¨Z m¤¢vebv, cÖvwZôvwbK SzuwK Ges 
AwbðqZv BZ¨vw` wel‡q M„nxZ cwiKíbv I iƒc‡iLv h_vh_fv‡e Zz‡j aiv 
n‡q‡Q,

(T)	 cwiPvjK cl©‡`i mfvq msL¨v Ges mfvmg~‡n cwiPvjK‡`i Dcw¯’wZi Z_¨ 
cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q,

(U)	 †Kv¤cvbxi †kqvi‡nvwìs-Gi aib GB cÖwZ‡e`‡bi Òmshyw³-2Ó G †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q|

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted 
by ICAB as Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS). 
This has been completely followed to fairly present the financial 
position and performance of the company. While preparing the 
financial statements, the following points were considered – 

I.	 Selection of suitable accounting policies and then 
applying them consistently,

II.	 Making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent,

III.	 Ensuring that the financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial 
Reporting Standards,

IV.	 Preparing the financial statements in an ongoing 
concern basis unless it is appropriate to presume that 
the company will not continue in business.

Proper accounting records have been kept so that at any given 
point the financial position of the Company is reflected with 
reasonable accuracy, which will enable them to ensure that 
its financial statements comply with Companies Act 1994 and 
other required regulatory authorities.

In compliance with the requirements of the SEC’s Notification 
dated 20th February 2006, the Directors are also pleased to make 

the following declarations in their report:

a.	 The financial statement prepared by the management of your 
company fairly presents its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity;

b.	 Proper books of accounts of your company have been maintained;

c.	A ppropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied 
in preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d.	 International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Bangladesh, 
have been followed in preparation of the financial statements and 
any discrepancies have been adequately disclosed;

e.	 The system of internal control is well structured and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored;

f.	 There are no significant doubts upon your company’s ability to 
continue as an ongoing concern basis;

g.	 Significant deviations from last year in operating results of the 
Company are highlighted and the reasons have been explained in 
financial results & profit appropriation;

h.	 Key operating and financial data has been summarized for the next 
five years;

i.	 Significant plans and decisions, such as corporate restructuring, 
business expansion and discontinuation of operations as 
appropriate, future prospects, risks and uncertainties surrounding 
the company has been outlined under the related captions of this 
report;

j.	 The number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance 
of each director has been disclosed;

k.	 The pattern of shareholding has been reported in Annexure-2 to 
disclose the aggregate number of shares.
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Avw_©K djvdj

2011Bs mv‡j †Kv¤cvbxi bxU gybvdv n‡q‡Q cÖvq 251 †KvwU 10 j¶ UvKv hvi 
cwigvb 2010Bs mv‡j wQj 108 †KvwU 80 j¶ UvKv| †Kv¤cvbxi Dbœqb I 
m¤cÖmviY Kv‡Ri avivevwnK AMÖMwZ Ae¨vnZ ivLv I FY cwi‡kv‡ai Rb¨ ch©vß 
cwigvb A‡_©i cÖ‡qvRb| G welqwU we‡ePbvq †i‡L †Kv¤cvbxi cwiPvjKgÛjx 31 
wW‡m¤^i, 2011 Bs Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨ Avw_©K djvdj †ckmn wewfbœ Lv‡Z 
wb‡æv³ cwigvY jvf e›U‡bi mycvwik Ki‡Q:

jvf Ave›Ub	 †KvwU UvKv

2011Bs mv‡j mgvß mv‡ji bxU jvf	 251.10
c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii Avew›UZ jvf	 31.90
†gvU e›Ub †hvM¨ jvf	 283.00

cÖ¯—vweZ e›Ub mg~n:
cÖ¯—vweZ ÷K wWwf‡WÛ	  98.50
jvf †jvKmvb Ave›Ub wnmv‡e ¯’vbvš—i	 184.40

jf¨vsk

†Kv¤cvbxi cwiPvjbv cl©` 31 wW‡m¤^i, 2011 Bs Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨ 
cÖwZwU 10 UvKv g~‡j¨i mvaviY †kqv‡ii Dci 25% ÷K wWwf‡WÛ (cÖwZ 4wU 
†kqv‡ii wecix‡Z 1wU †evbvm †kqvi) cÖ`v‡bi mycvwik K‡i‡Qb, hv cÂ`k 
evwl©K mfvq m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìviM‡bi Aby‡gv`b mv‡c‡¶ cÖ`vb Kiv n‡e|

cwiPvjK gÛjxi mfv I Dcw¯’wZ

2011Bs mv‡ji 31 wW‡m¤^i Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡i cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i me©‡gvU 11wU 
mfv AbywôZ nq| wb‡æ cwiPvjKM‡Yi bvg mn Dcw¯’wZi ZvwjKv †`qv n‡jv:

cwiPvj‡Ki bvg	 Dcw¯’wZi msL¨v

Rbve †gvnv¤§` AvwRR Lvb	 11
Rbvev AvÄzgvb AvwRR Lvb	 06
Rbve †gvnv¤§` dwi` Lvb	 08
Rbve †gvnv¤§` jwZd Lvb	 11
Rbve Rvdi D‡¤§` Lvb	 10
Rbvev Av‡qkv AvwRR Lvb	 10
Rbve †njvj DwÏb Avn‡¤§`	 11
Rbve AveŸvm DwÏb Avn‡¤§`	 09
Rbve ˆmq` dRjyj nK GdwmG	 10
Rbve †ZŠwn`yj Bmjvg	 11
Rbve dqmvj Kwig Lvb	 10
Aa¨vcK mvjvnDwÏb Avn‡g` Lvb	 09

Financial Results & Profit Appropriation 

During the year 2011, your company’s net profit amounted to Tk. 
2,511 million as compared to Tk. 1,088 (restated) million in the year 
2010. However, the company needs availability of adequate funds for 
uninterrupted progress of the projects as well as for future growth. 
Keeping these in view, the Directors would like to report the company’s 
financial results for the year that ended on 31st December 2011 with the 
recommendations for appropriation as follows: 

Particulars	 Amount in Million Taka

Net Profit for the year 2011	 2,511
Profit brought Forward 	 319
Profit available for appropriation	 2,830

Appropriations: 	
Proposed Stock Dividend 	 985
Transferred to Retained Earning 	 1,844

Dividend

Your Board recommends a final dividend of 25 % for the year 2011 as 
Bonus Share i.e. 1 (one) share of Tk. 10 each for 4 (four) shares held on 
the record date, subject to approval by the shareholders at the 15th 

Annual General Meeting. 

Directors meeting & attendance

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Board of Directors held 
11 meetings. Directors who attended the Board meetings are shown 
below: 

Name of Directors	 Attended

Mr. Muhammed Aziz Khan 	 11
Mrs. Anjuman Aziz Khan 	 06
Mr. Muhammad Farid Khan 	 08
Mr. Md Latif Khan 	 11
Mr. Jafer Ummed Khan 	 10
Ms. Ayesha Aziz Khan 	 10
Mr. Helal Uddin Ahmed 	 11
Mr. Abbas Uddin Ahmed	 09
Mr. Syed Fazlul Haque FCA 	 10
Mr. Tauhidul Islam 	 11
Mr. Faisal Karim Khan 	 10
Prof. Salahuddin Ahmed Khan	 09
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†h mKj cwiPvjKe„›` mfvq Dcw¯’Z _vK‡Z cv‡ibwb Zv‡`i‡K QzwU gÄzi Kiv 
n‡q‡Q|

wbix¶v KwgwU

†Kv¤cvbxi mywbw`©ó wjwLZ `vwqZ¡cÖvß GKwU wbix¶v KwgwU i‡q‡Q| G 
KwgwU MZ erm‡i †gvU 4wU ˆeV‡K e‡m‡Qb| wb‡æ KwgwUi m`m¨‡`i bvg mn 
Dcw¯’wZi ZvwjKv †`qv n‡jv:

m`m¨‡`i bvg	 Ae¯’vb	 Dcw¯’wZi msL¨v

Rbve ˆmq` dRjyj nK GdwmG	 mfvcwZ	 04
Rbve †ZŠwn`yj Bmjvg	 m`m¨	 04
Rbve AveŸvm DwÏb Avn‡¤§`	 m`m¨	 02

wbix¶v KwgwUi B”Qvbyhvqx, †Kv¤cvbxi cwiPvjK (A_©) †K mfvq Avgš¿b 
Rvbv‡bv n‡qwQj|

cwiPvjKe„‡›`i wbe©vPb Ges cyb:wb‡qvM

K. 	 AÎ cÖwZôv‡bi msN ¯§vi‡Ki 23(K) Aby‡”Q` Abyhvqx Rbve dqmvj 
Kwig Lvb, Rbve AveŸvm DwÏb Avn‡¤§` I Rbve Rvdi D‡¤§` Lvb 
cÂ`k evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aemi MÖnb Ki‡eb Ges wewa †gvZv‡eK 
†hvM¨ weavq wb‡R‡`i c~b:wb‡qv‡Mi cÖ¯—ve K‡i‡Qb|

L. 	 1994 m‡bi †Kv¤cvbx AvB‡bi 110 bs avivi kZ© Abyhvqx, †Kv¤cvbxi 
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK Rbve †ZŠwn`yj Bmjvg cvuP eQi †gqv` †k‡l AvMvgx 31 
RyjvB 2012Bs Zvwi‡L Aemi MÖnb Ki‡eb| †Kv¤cvbxi cwiPvjbv cwil` 
weMZ 12B gvP© 2012Bs †Z AbywôZ mfvq Rbve Bmjvg‡K 1jv AvM÷ 
2012Bs  n‡Z cieZ©x GK eQ‡ii Rb¨ c~btwb‡qv‡Mi wm×vš— MÖnb K‡i‡Q| 
1994Bs m‡bi †Kv¤cvbx AvB‡bi 109 bs aviv Abyhvqx Zvui c~btwb‡qv‡Mi 
Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ 15Zg mvaviY mfvq mycvwikmn DÌvcb Kiv n‡e|

wbix¶K

eZ©gvb wbix¶K †gmvm© ingvb ingvb nK, PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um 27 

The Directors who could not attend the meetings were granted leave 
of absence. 

Audit Committee 

The Company has an audit committee with an established charter. 
The audit committee has met four times this year and the committee 
members’ attendance record is disclosed below:

Name 	 Status	 Attended

Mr. Syed Fazlul Haque FCA	 Chair	 04
Mr. Tauhidul Islam	 Member	 04
Mr. Abbas Uddin Ahmed	 Member	 02

The Company’s finance Director was invited to audit committee 
meetings at the discretion of the committee.

Directors’ Election & Re-appointment 

a.	A s per Article 23(a) of the Articles of Association Mr. Faisal Karim 
Khan, Mr. Abbas Uddin Ahmed and Mr. Jafer Ummed Khan shall 
retire in the 15th Annual General Meeting by rotation and being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. 

b.	 In terms of Section-110 of the Companies Act-1994, Managing 
Director of the Company, Mr. Tauhidul Islam shall retire on 31st 

July 2012 after completing five years term. Board in its meeting 
held on 12th March 2012 resolved to re-appoint Mr. Islam for a 
further period of one year from 1st August 2012 and as per the 
provision contained in Section-109 of the Companies Act-1994 
shall place its recommendation before the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting for consideration of the shareholders.

Auditors 

Pursuant to SEC Order No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/104/Admin dated 

Power Plant

Ashulia-Savar
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RyjvB, 2011Bs Zvwi‡Li GmBwm AW©vi bs- GmBwm/wmGgAviAvi-
wmwW/2009-193/104/A¨vWwgb Abyhvqx Aemi MÖnY Ki‡eb| 3 eQi 
†Kv¤cvbxi wbix¶K wn‡m‡e AwZevwnZ Kievi ci wewa Abyhvqx Avmbœ 15Zg 
mvaviY mfvq Zv‡`i c~btwb‡qvM Kiv m¤¢e bq| D™¢‚Z cwiw¯’wZ‡Z Avcbv‡`i 
†Kv¤cvbxi cwiPvjbv cwil` weMZ 12B gvP© 2012Bs †Z AbywôZ mfvq †nv`v 
fvwm †PŠayix A¨vÛ †Kv¤úvbx, PvUvW© GKvD›U¨v›Um‡K †Kv¤cvbxi bZzb wbix¶K 
wn‡m‡e wb‡qv‡Mi Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ 15Zg mvaviY mfvq mycvwikmn DÌvcb 
Kievi wm×vš— MÖnb K‡i‡Q| 

e¨evmvwqK SzuwK I AwbðqZvmg~n

Avw_©K `vq cwi‡kv‡ai SzuwK

AMÖvwaKvi †kqvi Bm¨y I FY myweav MÖn‡bi gva¨‡g †Kv¤cvbxi Avw_©K `vq 
cwi‡kv‡ai SzuwK wKQzUv n‡jI †e‡o‡Q| †Kv¤cvbx e¨e¯’vcbv wek¦vm K‡i †h, 
miKvix cÖwZôvbmg~‡ni wbKU †_‡K Drcvw`Z we`¨yr weµq eve` cÖvc¨ gvwmK 
ivR¯^ †_‡K †Kv¤cvbxi `vq cwi‡kva m¤¢e n‡e| ZvQvov wewfbœ evwYwR¨K 
e¨vsK mg~‡ni mv‡_ †Kv¤cvbxi †h FY MÖnY myweav we`¨gvb Zv †_‡K ¯^í 
†gqv`x Zvij¨ msKU †gUv‡bv m¤¢e n‡e| G mKj e¨e¯’vi Kvi‡Y `vq cwi‡kv‡a 
†Kv¤cvbxi `„k¨gvb SzuwK LyeB bMb¨|

R¡vjvbx mieivn Ges R¡vjvbxi g~j¨e„w× SzuwK

wewfbœ miKvix †Kv¤cvbxi mv‡_ Pzw³ Abyhvqx D³ cÖwZôvbmg~n mvwg‡Ui †gvU 
Drcv`b ¶gZvi Rb¨ cÖ‡qvRbxq M¨vm Ges Zij R¡vjvbx mieiv‡ni Rb¨ 
`vqe×| we`¨yr µq Pzw³ †gvZv‡eK, 85% Drcv`b ¶gZvi Rb¨ †Kv¤cvbxi 
cÖvc¨ we`¨yr g~j¨ M¨v‡mi g~j¨ Abyhvqx cwieZ©bkxj| GB 85% Gi Rb¨ 
M¨v‡mi g~j¨ e„w× †c‡j †Kv¤cvbxi we`¨yr weµq g~j¨I AvbycvwZK nv‡i 
mgš^‡qi e¨e¯’v we`¨yr µq Pzw³‡Z i‡q‡Q| evwK 15% Drcv`‡bi R‡b¨ U¨vwid 
evé mvcvB U¨vwi‡di (weGmwU) mv‡_ m¤c„³| †h‡nZz R¡vjvbxi `v‡gi wfwË‡Z 
evsjv‡`k GbvwR© †i¸‡jUix Kwgkb (weBAviwm) wbqwgZfv‡e weGmwU mgš^q 

27th July 2011 present auditors,  Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered 
Accountants will retire after completing consecutive 3 years of service 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company, they will not be eligible for 
re-appointment in the ensuing 15th AGM. Your Board therefore, in its 
meeting held on 12th March 2012, resolved to recommend Hoda Vasi 
Chowdhury & Co, Chartered Accountants for appointment as new 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2012 subject to approval 
of the Shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Business Risk & Uncertainties 

Financial Flexibility Risk

Upon issuance of preference shares and taking debt financing, the 
financial flexibility of the Company has reduced to some extent. The 
management of the company, however, believes that it will be able to 
serve its debt obligations regularly by using efficient realization (one 
month cycle) of its revenue from sale of electricity from parties owned 
by the government. Moreover, the Company maintains short-term line of 
credit with scheduled commercial banks to ensure payment of obligations 
in the event that there is insufficient cash to make the required payment.  
In the above backdrop, the company is less likely to face any financial 
flexibility risk. Your company is planning to maintain higher liquidity in 
the following year as the country faces riskier economic. You will see your 
board has recommended 25% dividend as a follow up to this plan.

Fuel Supply and Fuel Price Escalation Risk

Fuel supply for the total generation capacity of the company is guaranteed 
by agreements between Summit and different Government Companies 
responsible for gas supply and liquid fuel supply. As per the PPA, Fuel 
price is a pass through element in the tariff structure of the Company for 
85% of its generation capacity.  Any change in Fuel price from the base 
line for these 85% will be compensated through the energy price. For rest 
15% of generation, tariff is linked with Bulk Supply Tariff (BST). Since BST is 
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K‡i ZvB GB 15% Gi Dci R¡vjvbx g~j¨e„w×i cÖfveI cÖkwgZ nq| AZGe 
†Kv¤cvbx R¡vjvbxi g~j¨ e„w× RwbZ Kvi‡Y †Kvb cÖKvi SzuwKi AvksKv K‡i 
bv|

`xN© †gqv`x Pzw³i AvIZvq M¨vm mieivnKvix †Kv¤cvbx c−v›U ch©š— cvBc 
jvBb w`‡q M¨vm mieivn Ki‡e| Avi c−v›U †RwU ch©š— Zij R¡vjvbx mieivn 
Kiv evsjv‡`k we`¨yr Dbœqb †ev‡W©i `vwqZ¡| AZGe †Kv¤cvbx mieivn e¨_©Zv 
RwbZ Kvi‡YI †Kvb cÖKvi SzuwKi AvksKv K‡i bv|   

e‡Kqv SzuwK

MÖvnK KZ©…K †Kv¤cvbxi cvIbv cwi‡kv‡ai AcviMZvi Rb¨ †Kv¤cvbxi †h 
mKj Avw_©K ¶wZi m¤¢vebv _v‡K Zv‡KB e‡Kqv SzuwK ejv hvq| †Kv¤cvbx 
Zvi mKj Drcvw`Z cY¨B miKvix cÖwZôvb cj−x we`¨yZvqb †evW© I we`¨yr 
Dbœqb †ev‡W©i wbKU weµq K‡i| G cÖwZôvbØ‡qi wbKU weµq jä A_© cÖvwß 
wbwðZ Kivi Rb¨ ¯’vbxq e¨vs‡Ki gva¨‡g FYcÎ †Lvjv n‡q‡Q| d‡j Abv`vqx 
e‡Kqv RwbZ SzuwK mvwgU cvIqv‡ii †¶‡Î †bB|

Kg©cwiPvjbv Ges i¶Yv‡e¶Y SzuwK

†Kv¤cvbxi Kvh©cwiPvjbv I ˆ`bw›`b i¶Yv‡e¶‡Yi Rb¨ `¶ I cÖwkw¶Z 
Rbej i‡q‡Q| GmKj Rbej hš¿cvwZ cÖ¯‘ZKvix cÖwZôvb n‡Z cÖwk¶YcÖvß| 
¸i“Z¡c~Y© i¶Yv‡e¶‡Yi Rb¨ I hš¿vsk Avg`vbxi Rb¨ g~j hš¿ mieivnKvix 
†Kv¤cvbxi m‡½ `xN©‡gqv`x Pzw³ i‡q‡Q| GRb¨ †Kv¤cvbx we`¨yr †K›`ª 
cwiPvjbv I i¶Yv‡e¶‡Y †Kvb SzuwK Abyfe K‡i bv|

cyuwR SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv

cyuwR e¨e¯’vcbvi †¶‡Î †Kv¤cvbx Ggb GKwU fvimvg¨c~Y© cyuwR KvVv‡gv ivLvi 
j¶¨ wb‡q KvR K‡i †hb †Kv¤cvbx Zvi †kqvi‡nvìviMb‡K Zv‡`i ¯^í g~‡j¨i 
cyuwRi Ges ¯^v_© mswkó Ab¨vb¨ mKj‡K Zv‡`i ¯^v‡_©i Dchy³ cÖwZ`vb w`‡Z 

regularly adjusted by Bangladesh Energy Regulatory Commission (BERC) 
considering Fuel price, effect of Fuel cost for this 15% is also compensated. 
The company does not foresee any Fuel price escalation risk.

Gas supply is made by pipe line upto the plant by Gas supply 
Company under long term agreement and Liquid Fuel supply up to 
the plant Jetty is the obligation of BPDB. As such company does not 
foresee any supply line failure risk of fuel. 

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer 
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 
Company’s receivables from its customers. The Company’s sales are made 
to government entities, via, Bangladesh Power Development Board 
(BPDB) and Rural Electrification Board (REB) under the conditions of the 
long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA). Sales made to these entities 
are fully secured by Letters of Credit issued by local scheduled banks. 
Credit risk does not arise in respect of any other receivables and therefore, 
the management believes that it is unlikely to encounter any credit risk. 

Operating and Maintenance Risk

The management of the Company is responsible to operate and 
maintain the power plants with its own experts under the supervision 
of main engine providers like Wartsila, Caterpillar and GE. The technical 
team of the Company obtains necessary training from the supplier. 
To operate and maintain plants, main engine suppliers will supply 
required spare parts as the Company also signs a spare parts purchase 
agreement. On the above backdrop the company does not foresee any 
risk regarding operation and maintenance of the power plants. 

Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the 
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cv‡i| Pjgb e¨emvi aviv eRvq ivLvi A_© †hvMv‡b †Kv¤cvbx g~ja‡bi wbivc` 
cwigvb I FY MÖn‡bi gva¨‡g Avq e„w×i m¤¢vebvi g‡a¨ mywPwš—Z fvimvg¨ i¶v 
K‡i| †evW© mvaviY †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi jf¨vsk cÖ`v‡bi MwZ cÖK…wZI †Lqvj 
iv‡L|

Pjgvb e¨vemv cÖwZôvb 

Avw_©K weeiYx Aby‡gv`b Kv‡j cwiPvjKe„›` h_vh_ AbymÜvb K‡i, cwiPvjb 
I Avw_©K m~PK mg~n we‡klY K‡i‡Qb| cwiPvjKe„›` Avk¦¯— n‡q‡Qb †h A`~i 
fwel¨‡Z myôzfv‡e cwiPvjbvq †Kv¤cvbxi mvg_¨© i‡q‡Q| Zviv Abyaveb Ki‡Z 
†c‡i‡Qb †h fwel¨‡Z wbwe©‡Nœ cwiPvjbvi Rb¨ †Kv¤cvbxi ch©vß m¤c` Ges 
AvBbvbyM wfwË i‡q‡Q| G Rb¨ Avw_©K weeibx cÖ¯‘ZKv‡j GKwU Pjgvb 
avivevwnK cÖwZôvb wnmv‡e MY¨ K‡i weeiYx cÖ¯‘‡Zi wm×vš— †bqv n‡q‡Q|

cÖvwZôvwbK e¨e¯’vcbv / K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý

†h cÖwµqvq †evW© Ae wW‡i±im KZ©…K †kqvi‡nvìvi e„‡›`i wbKU Revew`wnZv 
mywbwðZ †i‡L †Kv¤cvbx cwiPvwjZ, wb‡`©wkZ I wbqwš¿Z nq ZvB cÖvwZôvwbK 
e¨e¯’vcbv / K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý| Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx cÖPwjZ AvBb, wbqg I 
wewa Abyhvqx †Kv¤cvbxi e¨vemvwqK Kvh©µg cwiPvjbv Ki‡Q Ges m‡e©vËg 
gvb  wbwðZ Ki‡Q| G D‡Ï‡k¨ Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx 2011Bs mv‡j Ò‡KvW 
Ad KÛv± A¨vÛ Gw_KmÓ Ges Ò‡KvW Ad K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©ÝÓ MÖnY K‡i‡Q| 

K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý †Kvb ¯’wei cÖwµqv bq| ZvB Avgiv µgvMZ fv‡e GUv DbœZZi 
Kivi †Póv KiwQ| G D‡Ï‡k¨ AwWU KwgwU, Gw·wKDwUf KwgwU, †UKwbKvj 
KwgwU, µq KwgwU, i¶Yv‡e¶Y KwgwU MVb Kiv n‡q‡Q Òmshyw³-3Ó| 2011Bs 
mvj †_‡K AvBGmI 9001 : 2008- †KvqvwjwU g¨v‡bR‡g›U wm‡÷g 
(wKDGgGm), AvBGmI 14001 : 2004-Gbfv‡qv‡i‡b¥›U g¨v‡bR‡g›U 
wm‡÷g (BGgGm) AvBGmI 18001 : 2007- AKz‡ckbvj †nj_ A¨vÛ 

Company’s ability to continue as an ongoing concern in order to provide 
returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders while 
maintaining an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that 
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings to benefit from 
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Board 
also monitors dividend trend to ordinary shareholders.

Going Concern 

While approving the financial statements, the Directors have made 
appropriate enquires and analyzed significant operating and 
indicative financials which enabled them to understand the ability of 
the Company to continue its operations for a foreseeable future. The 
Directors are convinced and have a reasonable expectation that the 
company has adequate resources and legal instruments to continue 
its operations without interruptions. Therefore the Company adopted 
the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements. 

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is the system through which companies 
are directed, guided and controlled by the Board while keeping in 
view its accountability to the shareholders. Your Company strives 
to maintain full compliance with the laws, rules and regulations 
that govern our business and to uphold the highest standards. The 
company has adopted “Code of Conduct & Ethics” and “Code of 
Corporate Governance” in 2011. Since corporate governance is not a 
static process, we will always continue to improve our practices. The 
formation of an Audit Committee, Executive Committee, Technical 
Committee, Purchase Committee, Operation & Maintenance 
Committee, which may be seen in Annexure-3 of the Annual Report 
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†mdwU (IGBP A¨vÛ Gm) Gi mgš^‡q †Kv¤cvbx Bw›Uª‡M‡UW g¨v‡bR‡g›U 
wm‡÷g (AvBGgGm) ev¯—evqb ïi“ K‡i‡Q| G evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b K‡c©v‡iU 
Mf‡b©Ý welqK GKwU c„_K Aa¨vq i‡q‡Q|

cÖvwZôvwbK mvgvwRK `vq `vwqZ¡

mvgvwRK `vq ØvwqZ¡ cÖK‡íi AvIZvq mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW GKvwaK 
†emiKvix ms¯’v‡K (GbwRI) mn‡hvwMZv K‡i Ges mvgvwRK I gvbweK 
Dbœqb g~jK Kg©KvÛ cwiPvjbv K‡i| wKQz D‡j−L‡hvM¨ Kvh©µg wb‡æ ewY©Z 
nj-

MZ 11 eQi hver mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW †ckv`vi Mjdvi‡`i Rb¨ GKwU 
Mjd Uzb©v‡g›U Av‡qvRb K‡i Avm‡Q| †ckv`vi-A‡ckv`vi Mjd Uzb©v‡g›U 
Av‡qvR‡bi gva¨‡g mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW Mjdvi‡`i `¶Zv e„w× Ges 
RvZxq I Avš—R©vwZK ch©v‡q Zv‡`i cÖwZfv cÖ`k©‡bi †¶Î m„wó Ki‡Q| 
Avcbviv †R‡b Lywk n‡eb †h Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx wek¦L¨vZ Avš—R©vwZK 
Mjdvi wmwÏKzi ingv‡bi Mjd Rxe‡bi cÖviw¤¢K mg‡qi Ab¨Zg c„ô‡cvlK|

†d«Ûkxc

†d«Ûkxc GKwU RbKj¨vYg~jK cÖwZôvb, hv evsjv‡`‡k 1998Bs mv‡j cÖwZôv 
Kiv nq| GwU nZ `wi`ª Rb‡Mvôxi Kj¨v‡b wb‡qvwRZ| G cÖK‡íi D‡Ïk¨ 
nZ `wi`ª Rb‡Mvôxi Rxeb hvÎvq Kj¨vYgyLx cwieZ©b Avbqb Kiv, DcvR©b 
Awfg~Lx Kg©ms¯’vb Kiv Ges Rxe‡bi Ab¨vb¨ †gŠwjK Pvwn`v †gUv‡Z mnvqZv 
Kiv| G nZ `wi`ª Rb‡Mvôxi Avevm¯’j cÖPwjZ we`¨yr mieivn myweavi evB‡i 
Aew¯’Z| G cÖKí hv‡Z wbiwew”Qbœfv‡e †`‡ki ewÂZ Rb‡Mvwôi Dbœq‡bi Rb¨ 
KvR K‡i †h‡Z cv‡i †mRb¨ Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx GB eQi 27.71 j¶ UvKv 
A_©mvnvh¨ cÖ`vb K‡i‡Q|

†mW Uªv÷

†mW Uªv÷ GKwU †¯^”Qv‡mex RbKj¨vYg~jK †emiKvix cÖwZôvb hv 2003Bs 
mvj †_‡K AwaKvi ewÂZ, weKjv½ Ges eyw× cÖwZeÜx wkï‡`i Rb¨ KvR 
K‡i Avm‡Q| G cÖKí hv‡Z wbiwew”Qbœfv‡e †`‡ki fvM¨vnZ cÖwZeÜx wkï 
wK‡kvi‡`i Dbœq‡bi Rb¨ KvR K‡i †h‡Z cv‡i †mRb¨ Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx 
GB eQi 13.44 j¶ UvKv A_©mvnvh¨ cÖ`vb K‡i‡Q|

wmivR-Lv‡j`v †g‡gvwiqvj nvmcvZvj, XvKv K¨v›Ub‡g›U

mvwgU wbqwgZfv‡e wmivR-Lv‡j`v Uªv÷‡K m‡nv‡hvwMZv cÖ`vb K‡i Avm‡Q| 
GB nvmcvZvjwU myweavewÂZ AvZ© Rb‡Mvôx‡K ¯^v¯’¨‡mev, DbœZgv‡bi 
wPwKrmv‡mev I myweavmg~n cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ cÖwZôv Kiv n‡q‡Q| †mbvwbev‡mi 
†`qv RvqMvq 12 (evi) †KvwU UvKv e¨‡q 200 (`yB kZ) †e‡Wi wmwfj 
nvmcvZvj `yB ch©v‡q ˆZwi Kivi Rb¨ G Uªv÷ `vwqZ¡ wb‡q‡Q| G 
nvmcvZvj‡K 300 (wZb kZ) †e‡W DbœZ Kivi cwiKíbv Av‡Q| cÖKí †k‡l 
nvmcvZvjwU‡K cwiPvjbvi Rb¨ K¨v›Ub‡g›U †ev‡W©i wbKU n¯—vš—i Kiv n‡e| 
GB Uªv÷ evsjv‡`‡ki A_©‰bwZK `yM©wZi wkKvi RbMb‡K wk¶v I cybe©vmb 
mn‡hvwMZv cÖ`vb K‡i _v‡K|

Ab¨vb¨

mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW cÖ_g Av‡jv Uªv÷ †evW© Gi mv‡_I m¤c„³| D³ Uªv÷ Gi 
gva¨‡g wewfbœ KwgDwbwU ¯‹zj Ges K‡j‡R eBcÎ mieivn Ges e„¶‡ivcY Awfhvb 
cwiPvjbv Kiv mn wewfbœ mvgvwRK Kg©Kv‡Û c„ô‡cvlKZv Ki‡Q|

is steps in this process. From 2011 company has started implementing 
Integrated Management System (IMS) to make it compliant to ISO 
9001 : 2008 – Quality Management System (QMS), ISO 14001 : 2004 
– Environmental Management System (EMS), ISO 18001 : 2007 – 
Occupational Health & Safety (OH&S). A separate chapter on corporate 
governance has also been reported.

Corporate Social Responsibility 

Summit Power Limited supports a number of non-governmental 
organizations (NGOs) as well as carries out social and humanitarian 
activities on its own as a part of its social responsibility. Some such 
notable events are as follows -  

Over the last 12 years to promote professional golfers in our country, 
Summit Group has been organizing a golf tournament for them. By 
organizing the Professional-Amateur golf tournaments, Summit Group 
has provided a platform for the professional golfers to enhance their 
skills and expose their talents at national and international levels. You 
will be pleased to know your company is one of the early supporters 
of Mr.  Siddiqur Rahman now an international golfer with a global 
repute.

Friendship

Friendship is a value-based organization founded in Bangladesh in 
1998, which identifies and reaches the poorest of the poor and the 
most marginalized communities. The project intends to bring about 
positive changes among the livelihoods of the target population 
through smoothening of income generating activities and improved 
access to other basic needs. These areas are completely off grid 
from conventional electricity supplies and other essential utilities. 
To maintain the continuation of this project, this year your Company 
sponsored an amount of Tk. 27,71,000/- to support this deprived part 
of the country. 

SEID Trust

SEID Trust is a non-governmental voluntary development organization 
working for social inclusion and promoting rights of underprivileged 
children with disabilities including intellectual and multiple disabilities 
as well as autism since 2003.To maintain the continuation of such 
philanthropic project , this year your Company sponsored an amount 
of Tk. 13,43,750/- to support this deprived part of the community. 

Siraj Khaleda Memorial Hospital in Dhaka Cantonment

This hospital has been set up to provide health care, high quality 
medical care and facility to the distressed and underprivileged people. 
Summit provides continuous support to Siraj-Khaleda Trust. The Trust 
is constructing a 200-bed civil hospital at a cost of TK 12 (Twelve) crore 
in two phases on the land provided by Cantonment board. A provision 
of expansion up to 300 beds is also considered. After completion of 
construction of the hospital it will be handed over to the Cantonment 
board to manage and operate it. The Trust also provides educational 
and rehabilitation support to the economically disadvantaged people 
of Bangladesh.

Others

Summit Power Limited is also involved with the Prothom Alo Trust 
Board. This trust is involved in many social activities like sponsoring 
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Environmental

Each of your plants go through rigorous Environmental 
and Social Impact Assessments. You will be pleased 
to know each one of the plants not only complies with 
Bangladesh’s Department of Environment’s standards 
but of Multilateral and the World Bank guidelines.
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cvkvcvwk Avgiv myweav ewÂZ I †gavex wewfbœ QvÎ-QvÎx‡K Avw_©K mvnvh¨ cÖ`vb 
K‡i AvmwQ| XvKv wek¦we`¨vj‡qi wewfbœ Kvh©µ‡g Avw_©K Ae`vb †i‡L Avgiv 
D”Pwk¶vqI Avgv‡`i Ae`vb Ae¨vnZ †i‡LwQ|

ZvQvov bvix-cyi“‡li ga¨Kvi ˆelg¨ `~i hZ`~i m¤¢e Kwg‡q Avbv Avgiv Avgv‡`i 
`vwqZ¡ wn‡m‡e MÖnY K‡iwQ Ges bvbv Dcv‡q G wel‡q Kvh©µg cwiPvjbvKvix e¨w³ 
I msMVbmg~n‡K mvnvh¨ KiwQ| Kg©Rxex bvix (‡KGb) GiKgB GKwU cÖwZôvb|

mvwgU cvIqvi wjwg‡UW GwmW wb‡¶‡ci gZ N„Y¨ I Mwn©Z Aciv‡ai wkKvi 
e¨w³‡`i mvnvh¨ cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ GwmW dvD‡Ûkb Znwe‡jI wbqwgZ Pvu`v cÖ`vb K‡i 
_v‡K| D³ msMV‡bi Pzovš— j¶¨ GwmW mš¿vm cy‡ivcywi wbg©‚j K‡i †`qv|

mvwgU Zi“Y‡`i gv‡S AvMÖn, kw³ I DÏxcbvq wek¦vm K‡i Ges D³ wel‡q 
evsjv‡`kx Zi“Y‡`i gv‡S †PZbv m„wói cÖqvm iv‡L| Zv‡`i Drmvn cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ 
Avgiv b_© AvjcvBb K¬ve evsjv‡`k (GbGwmwe)-‡K Avw_©K c„ô‡cvlKZv K‡i 
_vwK|

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx wewfbœ Kvh©µg †hgb- †WBwj ÷vi wjWvikxc K‡jvwKDqvg 
Ab ÓwbD †UK‡bvjwR A¨vÛ Aëvi‡bwUf GbvR©xÓ, ÓwgU evsjv‡`k- Gwkqvm 
†b·U weM AciPzwbwUÓ, Avmw³ c~be©vmb wbevm (Avcb), RvZxq †cÖm K¬ve 
wcKwbK, XvKv RbZv K¬v‡ei `vZe¨ Kg©KvÛ BZ¨vw`‡Z Avw_©K c„ô‡cvlKZv cÖ`vb 
K‡i‡Q|

ZvQvov mvwgU cwi‡ek Gi fvimvg¨ i¶v I Dbœqb‡KI cÖvavb¨ w`‡q Avm‡Q 
Ges G msµvš— wel‡q Avgv‡`i mxwgZ cÖ‡Póvi Ask wn‡m‡e †Kv¤cvbxi wewfbœ 
we`¨yr †K›`ª mg~‡n Ges Ab¨vb¨ RvqMvq AwaK msL¨K PvivMvQ †ivcY Kg©m~Px 

books to community schools & colleges and plantation programs for 
the people of the community.

We have been continuing our financial support to the meritorious 
students of the underprivileged community. Your company also 
supports the development of higher studies as well by sponsoring 
different events at the University of Dhaka. 

Your company understands its responsibility to reduce the gender 
inequality and continues to support related bodies through different 
means. Karmojibi Nari (KN) is one of such organization.  Summit 
Power Limited gives donations to the Acid Survivor’s Foundation 
that supports survivors of brutal attacks. The ultimate goal of the 
organization is to eliminate acid violence in Bangladesh. 

Summit believes in the eagerness, strength and compassion amongst 
the youth and aims to boost up the spirit within the Bangladeshi 
youth.  To inspire them, we support and sponsor North Alpine Club 
Bangladesh – NACB.

Your company also participated in sponsorship of different events, like 
- Daily Star Leadership Colloquium on ‘New Technology & Alternative 
Energy’, Meet Bangladesh—Asia’s Next Big Opportunity, Ashokti 
Punorbshon Nibash (APON), Jatiya Press Club Picnic, Zonta Club of 
Dhaka Charity Work. 

On environmental issues, your Company gives high priority to 
protecting the environment and our humble efforts in this regard 
include extensive number of sapling plantation in the Company’s 
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MÖnY K‡i Avm‡Q| Avgv‡`i AZ¨vaywbK we`¨yr †K›`ª mg~n mswkó cwi‡ek 
msi¶K KZ©…c‡¶i Pvwn`v c~iY K‡i Avm‡Q| d‡j Avgv‡`i mKj we`¨yr 
†K›`ªmg~n cwi‡ek Zzjbvg~jKfv‡e Kg `~wlZ Ki‡Q| GQvovI Avcbv‡`i 
†Kv¤cvbx B‡Zvg‡a¨B AvBGmI 14001 : 2004- Gbfv‡qvib‡g›Uvj 
g¨v‡bR‡g›U wm‡÷g (BGgGm) ev¯—evqb I mb` MÖn‡Yi D‡`¨vM wb‡q‡Q hv 
AvMvgx eQ‡ii g‡a¨B ev¯—evwqZ n‡e e‡j Avkv Kiv hv‡”Q|

gvbe m¤c` e¨e¯’vcbv 

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx g‡b K‡i cÖwZôv‡bi DbœwZK‡í ÒRbejÓ ¸i“Z¡c~Y© 
f‚wgKv cvjb K‡i| ZvB `¶ Rbej MV‡b Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx Kg©KZ©v-
Kg©Pvix‡`i Rb¨ wbqwgZ cÖwk¶b I Kg©kvjv Av‡qvRb K‡i _v‡K| hvi 
gva¨‡g Kg©KZ©v-Kg©PvixMb ¯^ ¯^ †¶‡Î †ckvMZ `¶Zv I AwfÁZv AR©b 
Kivi my‡hvM cvq|

Avgv‡`i i‡q‡Q GKwU mywPwš—Z wb‡qvM cÖwµqv/`vq-`vwqZ¡ I Kg©cwiwa m¤^wjZ 
Ggc−wqR n¨vÛeyK| Kvh©Kix Kg© cwi‡ek mywbwðZKiY Ges Kg©KZ©v-
Kg©PvixM‡Yi `¶Zv e„w×‡Z cÖwZeQi GKwU avivevwnK cwiKíbv M„wnZ I 
ev¯—evwqZ n‡q Avm‡Q| eQi †k‡l DrK…ó Kg©‰bcyY¨ cÖ`k©‡bi Rb¨ Kg©KZ©v 
I Kg©PvixMY‡K Drmvn cÖ`vb Kiv nq Ges Zv‡`i cÖwk¶‡bi cÖ‡qvRbxqZv 
wbiƒcb Kiv nq| GQvovI Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx B‡Zvg‡a¨B AvBGmI 
18001 : 2007 AKz‡ckbvj †nj_ A¨vÛ †mdwU (IGBP A¨vÛ Gm) ev¯—
evqb I mb` MÖn‡Yi D‡`¨vM wb‡q‡Q hv AvMvgx eQ‡ii g‡a¨B ev¯—evwqZ n‡e 
e‡j Avkv Kiv hv‡”Q|

wbqg cÖwZcvjb

wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb KZ©…K Av‡ivwcZ cÖÁvcb bs- GmBwm/

power plants and neighboring places. Our state-of-the art power 
plants comply with the requirements of relevant environmental 
regulatory bodies. Thus these plants emit relatively less pollutants 
to the environment. Moreover, your company has already taken 
initiatives for ISO 14001: 2004 – Environmental Management System 
(EMS) implementation and certification, which is expected to be 
completed by next year. 

Human Resources Management 

People are the most important resource and key to the success of 
any organization. To develop and equip the employees with essential 
skills, the company places great emphasis on the development of its 
people and hence the Company undertakes appropriate training and 
workshops to update their knowledge in their respective functional 
areas. 

We have an enriched Employment Policy/Employee Hand Book with 
proper job description and responsibilities. A detailed succession 
planning is considered every year to ensure good working 
environment and enhancement of knowledge of the employees. A 
yearly performance appraisal is carried on to reward and encourage 
diligent employees and assess their training requirements. 
However, your company has already taken initiatives for ISO 18001: 
2007 – Occupational Health & Safety (OH&S) implementation and 
certification, which is expected to be completed by next year. 

 

Status of Compliance

In accordance with the requirement stipulated in condition no-5.00 
of the Securities & Exchange Commission’s notification no-SEC/
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wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/cÖkvmb/02-08, ZvwiL- †deª“qvwi 20, 
2006, K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý Kgcv‡qÝ wi‡cvU© Òmshyw³-1Ó G mwbœ‡ewkZ 
n‡q‡Q|

K…ZÁZv ¯^xKvi

Avcbv‡`i cwiPvjbv cl©` †Kv¤cvbxi mKj m`m¨ I †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i Avš—
wiKfv‡e ab¨ev` Rvbv‡”Q hviv wewfbœ mg‡q †kqvi µ‡qi gva¨‡g, †Kv¤cvbxi 
wewfbœ Kv‡R GKvÍZv cÖKvk K‡i‡Q Ges †Kv¤cvbxi mKj Kvh©µ‡g AskMÖnY 
I m¤c„³Zv cÖ`k©‡bi gva¨‡g me©`v †Kv¤cvbxi AvÍwek¦vm e„w×‡Z mnvqZv 
Ki‡Q| †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i GB Avš—wiK m‡nv‡hvwMZv Qvov †Kv¤cvbx KLbB 
AvR‡Ki GB mvdj¨gwÛZ Ae¯’v‡b †cŠuQv‡Z cvi‡Zv bv|

Avcbv‡`i cwiPvjbv cl©` †Kv¤cvbxi mKj ¯—‡ii Kg©KZ©v-Kg©Pvix‡`i 
Avš—wiK ab¨ev` Rvbv‡”Q| Zvu‡`i e¨w³MZ Ges mw¤§wjZ `vwqZ¡‡eva I 
Kg© DÏxcbvq Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤cvbx AvR‡Ki mvdj¨ AR©‡b m¶g n‡q‡Q| 
cl©` Kg©KZ©v-Kg©Pvix‡`i cwiev‡ii m`m¨‡`iI Avš—wiK ab¨ev` I 
K…ZÁZv Rvbv‡”Q, hviv me©`v †Kv¤cvbxi cÖwZwU gnr c`‡¶‡c Aš—iv‡j †_‡K 
Aby‡cÖiYvi Drm n‡q †_‡K‡Q|

†Kv¤cvbxi m¤§vwbZ MÖvnK cj−x we`¨yZvqb †evW© Ges †ev‡W©i mv‡_ wbewÜZ 
cj−x we`¨yr mwgwZmgy‡ni Av¯’v I wek¦vm †Kv¤cvbxi cÖavb PvwjKvkw³| 
Avgiv web‡qi mv‡_ Zv‡`i GB Av¯’v I wek¦vm‡K g~j¨vqb KiwQ Ges Avkv 
Kwi Zv‡`i GB Av¯’v I wek¦vm D‡ËviËi Av‡iv e„w× cv‡e| mvwgU cvIqvi 
wjwg‡UW Gi cwiPvjK cl©` g`bMÄ, bvivqbMÄ we`¨yr †K›`ª wbg©vY cÖKí 
ev¯—evq‡b we`¨yr Dbœqb †evW©, MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi we`¨yr R¡vjvbx I 
LwbR m¤c` gš¿Yvj‡qi we`¨yr wefvMmn evsjv‡`k †c‡Uªvwjqvg K‡c©v‡ikb 
(wewcwm), hgybv A‡qj †Kv¤cvbx wjwg‡UW, cÙv A‡qj †Kv¤cvbx wjwg‡UW, 
PÆMÖvg e›`i KZ©…c¶, RvZxq ivR¯^ †evW©, cwi‡ek Awa`ßi, Dc Kwgkbvi, 
mycvwib‡UÛ Ae cywjk, bvivqYM‡Äi ¯’vbxq cÖkvmb Ges we`¨yr †K›`ª mg~‡ni 
Av‡kcv‡ki Rbmvavib‡K Avš—wiK ab¨ev` I K…ZÁZv Rvbv‡”Q| Avcbv‡`i 
cwiPvjbv cl©` GQvovI †Kv¤cvbxi mKj civgk©K I wVKv`vi †Kv¤cvbx‡K 
Avš—wiKfv‡e ab¨ev` Rvbvq hviv †Kv¤cvbxi bZzb we`¨yr †K›`ª wbg©v‡Y I Gi 
Drcv`b ¶gZv e„w×‡Z Zv‡`i mn‡hvwMZvi nvZ evwo‡q w`‡qwQj|

GKB mv‡_ cwiPvjbv cl©` ab¨ev` Rvbv‡”Q †Kv¤cvbxi Kg©Kv‡Ûi mv‡_ 
mswkó mKj wewb‡qvMKvix, mieivnKvix, Avw_©K cÖwZôvb, BÝy‡iÝ †Kv¤cvbx, 
†mev cÖ`vbKvix, wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb, †iwR÷ªvi Ae R‡q›U 
÷K †Kv¤cvbxR GÛ dvg©m, XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW, PUªMÖvg ÷K 
G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW, †m›Uªvj wW‡cvwRUwi evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW, wewfbœ miKvix 
ms¯’v, e¨w³ Ges cÖwZwbwamg~n‡K hviv Avgv‡`i AvR‡Ki Ae¯’v‡b Avm‡Z 
mnvqZv K‡i‡Q|

cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i c‡¶ 

†ZŠwn`yj Bmjvg
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK
XvKv, 12 gvP© 2012|  

CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated February 20, 2006 the 
Corporate Governance Compliance Report is shown In Annexure -1. 
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Compliance Report on SEC’s Notification

Status of Compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commissions Notification No- SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated 
February 20, 2006 issued under section 2CC of the Securities & Exchange Ordinance 1969.

(Report under condition no 5.00)

Annexure-1

Power Plant

Maona-Gazipur

Condition	 Title	 Compliance status	 Explanation for non-compliance
			   Complied	 Not complied	 with the condition

1.1	 Board’s size 	 √
1.2(i)	 Independent Directors	 √
1.2(ii)	 Appointment of Independent Non-shareholder Director	 √
1.3	 Chairman and Chief Executive	 √	
1.4	 Directors’ report to include declarations on:	
	 a.   Fairness of state of the affairs	 √
	 b.   Keeping proper books of accounts	 √
	 c.   Consistent application of Accounting Policies in 	
	 	 preparation of financial statements	 √
	 d.   Observance of Bangladesh Accounting Standard(BAS)	 √
	 e.   Soundness and efficiency of Internal Control	 √
	 f.   Ability of Summit Power to continue as a going concern	 √
	 g.   Significant deviations from last year in operating results	 √
	 h.   Presentation of key operating and 	
	 	 financial data for last three years	 √
	 i.   Declaration of dividend	 √
	 j.   Number of Board meeting held during the year 
	 	 and attendance by each Director	 √
	 k.   Shareholding pattern	 √

2.1	 Appointment of CFO, Head of Internal Audit & 			 
	 Company Secretary 	 √		
2.2	 Attendance of CFO and Company Secretary in the Board meeting	 √		

3	  Audit Committee	 √
3.1	 i.    Composition of Audit Committee	 √
	 ii.   Audit Committee Members Appointment	 √
	 iii.  Filling of casual vacancy in Audit Committee	 √
3.2	 i.    Chairman of Audit Committee	 √
	 ii.   Audit Committee Chairman’s Qualification	 √
3.3.1	 i.    Reporting to  the Board of Directors	 √
	 ii.   Report on:	
	 	 a.   Conflicts of interests	 	 	 No such incidence arose
	 	 b.  Suspected material defect in the internal control system	 	 	 No such incidence arose
		  c.   Suspected infringement of laws		   	 No such incidence arose
	 	 d.   Any other matter	 	 	 No such incidence arose
3.3.2	 Reporting to the Authorities			   No such reportable incidence arose
3.4	 Reporting to the shareholders			   No such reportable incidence arose

4	 Statutory Auditors not to engage in:
	 i.   Appraisal or valuation services	 √
	 ii.  Financial information systems design and implementation	 √
	 iii. Book keeping or other services related to financial statements	 √
	 iv.  Broker-dealer services	 √
	 v.   Actuarial services	 √
	 vi.   Internal audit services	 √	
	 vii.  Any other services that the Audit committee determines	 √

51
Summit Power Limited



Shareholding Information
Categories of Shareholder	 No of Shareholder	 No of shares held
		
Sponsors:

Summit Industrial & Mercantile 	 01	 182,286,553
Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd.

Euro Hub Investments Limited	 01	 20,282,109

Dr. Mirza Khairuzzaman	 01	 500

Advocate Imtiaz Mahmood	 01	 2,743

Mr. Mainul Abedin	 01	 5,701

Mr. A.N.M. Tariqur Rashid	 01	 3,070

Mr. Azharul Haque 	 01	 2,743

Directors, CEO, Company Secretary, CFO, 
Head of Internal Audit and their spouses:
Mr. Tauhidul Islam (Managing Director)	 01	 28,688

Executives (Top 05 persons other than CEO, CFO, CS, HIA)	 Nil	 Nil

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting rights	
Summit Industrial & Mercantile Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd.	 01	 182,286,553

Annexure-2
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Audit Committee

Mr. Syed Fazlul Haque FCA....................................................................................................................................................................................................	 Chairman
Mr. Tauhidul Islam, Managing Director.............................................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Abbas Uddin Ahmed, Director ....................................................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Mahmud Hasan FCMA, Financial Controller...........................................................................................................................................................	 Member Secretary

Executive Committee

Mr. Tauhidul Islam, Managing Director.............................................................................................................................................................................	 Chairman
Mr. Md. Latif Khan, Vice Chairman......................................................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Ms. Ayesha Aziz Khan, Director (Finance)........................................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Faisal Karim Khan, Director (Operation)....................................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Md. Mozammel Hossain, Deputy Managing Director ........................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Mahmud Hasan FCMA, Financial Controller...........................................................................................................................................................	 Member

Purchase Committee

Mr. Md. Latif Khan, Vice Chairman......................................................................................................................................................................................	 Chairman 
Mr. Tauhidul Islam, Managing Director.............................................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Faisal Karim Khan, Director (Operation) ...................................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Md. Mozammel Hossain, Deputy Managing Director ........................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Mahmud Hasan FCMA, Financial Controller...........................................................................................................................................................	 Member

Technical Committee

Mr. Md. Mozammel Hossain, Deputy Managing Director ........................................................................................................................................	 Chairman 
Mr. Solaiman Patwary, General Manager (O&M)...........................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Abdus Sobhan, General Manager (O&M).................................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. A.K.M. Asadul Alam Siddique, General Manager (Standard -Compliance, Training & Store) ................................................................	 Member
Mr. Md. Nazmul Hasan, Deputy General Manager (Store & Training) ...................................................................................................................	 Member

Operation & Maintenance Committee

Mr. Faisal Karim Khan, Director (Operation)....................................................................................................................................................................	 Chairman
Mr. Md. Mozammel Hossain, Deputy Managing Director ........................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Solaiman Patwary, General Manager (O&M)...........................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Abdus Sobhan, General Manager (O&M).................................................................................................................................................................	 Member
Mr. Md. Nazmul Hasan, Deputy General Manager (Store & Training)....................................................................................................................	 Member
Plant In-charge..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................	 Member

Various Committee
Annexure-3
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Power Plant

Jangalia-Comilla

Turnover

+ 32.08 %
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Management Team
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From Left 

Mr. Solaiman Patwary, General Manager (O&M), Mr. Abdus Sobhan, General Manager (O&M) 
Mr. Md. Nazrul Islam Khan, Manager (E&I) Mr. Md. Anisur Rahman, General Manager (SNPL)   
Mr. Mohammad Mohsin PEng General Manager (Development)  
Mr. Mahmud Hasan FCMA, Financial Controller & Company Secretary   
Mr. Md. Latif Khan, Vice Chairman Mr. Muhammed Aziz Khan, Chiarman   
Ms. Ayesha Aziz Khan, Director (Finance) Mr. Tauhidul Islam, Managing Director,  
Faisal Karim Khan, Director (Operation), Mr. A.K.M Asadul Alam Siddique, General Manager 
(Standard, Compliance, Training & Store) Mr. Jafer Ummeed Khan, Director  Mr. Md. Nazmul Hasan, 
Deputy General Manager (Store & Training)  Mr. Md. Mozammel Hossain, Deputy Managing Director 
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Introduction  
of the Senior Executives
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Md. Mozammel Hossain is the Deputy Managing Director of Summit Power 
Limited and also Managing Director of Summit Purbanchol Power Company 
Limited, has about 34 (thirty four) years of experience in the power sector. He 
had obtained degree in   Electrical Engineering from Rajshahi Engineering 
College now named as Rajshahi University of Engineering & Technology 
(RUET). Mr. Hossain started his professional career in Bangladesh Power 
Development Board in 1976 and worked mostly in Power Generation and 
Transmission Projects holding different position. He left BPDB in 2011 and 
joined Power Grid Company of Bangladesh Ltd. (PGCB) as Deputy General 
Manager and elevated upto the position of Director, Technical. He took 
voluntary retirement from PGCB in August 2011 and joined the group to 
continue his professional career.  Mr. Hossain has obtained various training 
in foreign countries as well as in local institutes and has visited a number of 
countries. Mr. Hossain obtained Power Development Board Merit Award for the 
Year of 1982 and obtained an Annual Performance Recognition Award of Asian 
Development Bank in 2008.

A Marine Engineer Mr. Patwary started his career as Junior Engineer in a 
foreign Ship. Prior to joining Summit in the year 2000 Mr. Patwary has got 
21 years professional experience as 5th Engineer, 4th Engineer, 3rd Engineer, 2nd 
Engineer and as Chief Engineer (12 years)  in foreign flag vessel since 1979. 
He obtained certificate of competency of Class–1(motor), Marine Engineer 
(U.K). Mr. Patwary did his class-2 Marine Engineering from Singapore and 
class 1 Marine Engineering degree from England. He attended various training, 
workshops and seminars at both home and abroad. 

Mr. Sobhan is an Electrical Engineer, graduated from BUET in 1977 and 
secured 1st Class. He did his MBA in Finance & Banking as well. He is a 
member of The Institution of Engineers, Bangladesh. Before joining Summit in 
2000 Mr. Sobhan accumulated 22 years of experience in different Govt., Semi 
Govt. and Private Organizations at home & abroad. In 1977, he started his 
career from Khulna Engineering College as a Lecturer in Electrical Engineering 
department. He had 18 years of experience in 450MW Steam, Gas Turbine 
Power Plants and Seawater Desalination Plants in the Secretariat of Electricity 
under the Govt. of Libya. He received on job training from both home & abroad. 
During last 11 years of service in SPL Mr. Sobhan has actively participated in 
different areas of power sector such as operation and maintenance of power 
plants and power plant project planning and development works. 

Md. Mozammel Hossain
Deputy Managing Director (SPL)

Managing Director (SPPCL)

Md. Solaiman Patwary
General Manager (Operation & Maintenance)

Md. Abdus Sobhan 
General Manager (O&M)
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Mr. Mahmud is the Financial Controller & Company Secretary and joined 
Summit in June 2007. Mr. Mahmud is a qualified Cost & Management 

Accountant and obtained his Masters of Commerce in Accounting under 
National University and secured First Class. He is a fellow member of the 

Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Bangladesh (ICMAB). He has 
20 years of professional experience. Prior to joining Summit, Mr. Mahmud held 
various important positions in various organizations namely BRAC, ActionAid 
Bangladesh, Intertek Testing Service (Bangladesh) Limited, West Zone Power 

Distribution Company Ltd. etc.

Mr. A.K.M Asadul Alam Siddique did his graduation in Naval Architecture & 
Marine Engineering from BUET in 1987. He is a life fellow of the Institution 
of Engineers, Bangladesh. He did his class II and class I Marine Engineering 
from U.K. in 1993 and 1996 respectively. Prior joining to Summit in 2003, Mr. 
Asad has accumulated 16 years of experience in different organizations at home 
& abroad. He started his career as Naval Architect with the ‘Ship Designer & 
Consultant’ in 1987. After that he joined in Bangladesh Shipping Corporation as 
Cadet Engineer and continued to serve in ocean going vessel of BSC and foreign 
companies up to Chief Engineer. He also received an MBA degree in Finance 
and Banking. 

Engr. Mohammad Mohsin PEng obtained bachelor degree in Electrical 
Engineering in 1972.He is a life fellow of Institute of Engineers Bangladesh. 
After graduation   joined in BPDB as Assistant Engineer. During the long 
period of service worked in Distribution, Electric Supply / Sales, Extension, 
Power Station construction Projects, Power Station O & M, Design & 
Inspection. Worked for preparation of  Technical Specification of different 
Electrical  equipment/instrument, International Tender Document , Evaluation 
of International Bids, Inspection in home & abroad  post landing inspection /
Factory Tests witness etc. Completed one 100MW Gas Turbine Power Plant 
Project in Baghabari. Worked in Combined Cycle Power plant Fenchuganj. 
As Chief Engineer worked in 450 MW Sirajganj Power Project, and retired 
as Chief Engineer, Chittagong Power Station. Responsible for 210MWx2 
power plant Rawjan, 230MW Hydro Power Plant Kaptai & 60MW Thermal 
Power Plant Sikalbaha. Received training in home & abroad in Combined 
Cycle PowerStation, sub-station, management, CPM, PPR etc. Achieved PEng 
(Professional Engineering) Degree from Bangladesh Professional Engineers 
Registration Board.

Mahmud Hasan FCMA
Financial Controller & Company Secretary

A.K.M. Asadul Alam Siddique
General Manager (Standard, Compliance, Training and Store)

Engr. Mohammad Mohsin PEng
General Manager (Development)
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Engr. Md. Anisur Rahman is the General Manager (O&M) of Summit 
Narayanganj Power Limited (SNPL). He obtained B.Sc. Engineering degree 

in 1981 and he is the fellow of the Institution of Engineers, Bangladesh.  After 
completing  graduation, he joined in Rural Electrification Board(REB) .He 

served  07 years as Assistant General Manager, 05 years as Deputy General 
Manager and 14 years as General Manager in various electric utilities under 
Rural Electrification Board with the duties and responsibilities of maintenance 
& operation  of distribution system, construction of distribution lines, supply of 
power to the consumers,  all kinds of financial  and administrative activities and 

keeping liaison with the Govt. ,Semi -Govt. ,Local Govt. authorities, autonomous 
bodies and developing agencies. After emergence of power generation in private 

sector, he switched over his career and joined in Energis Power Corporation 
Limited (a private power generation company) as General Manager (O&M) 
and served 2 years 06 months in 55 MW heavy fuel oil based power plant at 
Sikalbaha, Chittagong. He joined in Summit Narayanganj Power Limited on 

November, 2011 as General Manager (O&M). He attended various on job 
training, workshop and seminar at home and abroad (USA).

A Marine Engineer Mr. Md. Nazmul Hasan started his career in Bangladesh 
Shipping Corporation (BSC) in 1992. Prior joining to Summit in January 
2008, Mr. Hasan has got 15 years of professional experience as 5th Engineer to 
Chief Engineer in ocean going ships of BSC and other foreign companies. He 
also worked as Deputy General Manager of Ship Repair Department of BSC. 
He obtained his Class I Marine Engineering Certificate of Competency from 
Singapore. He also received an MBA Degree in Operations Management.

Mr. Md. Nazrul Islam Khan is an Electrical Engineer graduated 
from BUET in the year 1975. He is a life fellow of Institute of 

Engineers, Bangladesh. Prior to joining Summit in the 2007 Mr. Md. 
Nazrul Islam Khan accumulated 34 years of professional experience 
in different Govt., Semi Govt. and Private Organization in home and 

abroad. He participated in various training and seminar in home 
and abroad.  

Engr. Md. Anisur Rahman
General Manager (Operation & Maintenance)

Md. Nazmul Hasan
Deputy General Manager (Stores & Training) 

Md. Nazrul Islam Khan
Manager (Electrical & Instrumentation)
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Summit Narayanganj Power 
Limited a subsidiary of Summit 
Power Limited has achieved 
financial close by receiving 
a foreign currency term loan 
of USD 45 million from DEG 
- Deutsche Investitions- und 
Entwicklungsgesellschaft 
mbH and FMO - Nederlandse 
Financierings-Maatschappij Voor 
Ontwikkelingslanden N.V.

Chairman Mr. Muhammed Aziz Khan is conferring 
with Mr. Robert O. Blake, the US Assistant Secretary 
of State for South and Central Asia Affairs during a 

signing ceremony. 

Memorable Events
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Summit Power Limited  (SPL)
Received ICAB National Award 2nd 

Prize for ‘Best Published Accounts and 
Reports 2010’ under Non Financial Sector 

Category – IV: Manufacturing 

Summit Narayanganj Power 
Limited (SNPL) Received
Gold Award for The Best Fast 
Track project in Asia in 2011
By Asian Power Awards

Summit Power Limited
Received ‘Best Presented Accounts 
and Corporate Governance 
Disclosures Awards 2010’ – 
Certificate of Merit under the 
Category – Manufacturing Sector 
by South Asian Federation of 
Accountants (SAFA)
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Memorable Events

SPL as part of their corporate responsibility is assisting SEID Trust 
to improve the condition of children with autism, intellectual 
& multiple disabilities since 2009. So far, we have donated 
close to 29 Lac Taka for the fiscal year 2011 and 2012, solely to 
rehabilitate these poor children giving them proper education, 
health care and all our support. SPL’s donation helped SEID Trust 
to successfully established SEID Trust Community Therapy Centre 
at Kamrangir Char and Dhaka. The number of children enrolled in 
Kamrangir Char Therapy Centre has increased ten folds in the last 
couple of years and Summit Group is enthusiastic to reach out to 
every one of them.
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General Md Abdul Mubeen, ndc, psc Chief of Army Staff, Bangladesh Army and President of Kurmi-
tola Golf Club receiving a crest of appreciation from Mr. Muhammad Aziz Khan, Chairman, Summit 
Group. General Mubeen was the Chief Guest for the tournament and inaugurated the 6-day long 
‘2nd Summit Open and 16th Summit Amateur Cup Golf Tournament 2012’ at Kurmitola Golf Club in 
the City on Friday, 17 February, 2012.

General Muhammed Abdul Mubeen, ndc, psc Chief of Army 
Staff, Bangladesh Army and President of Kurmitola Golf Club as 
Chief Guest inaugurated a 6-day long ‘2nd Summit Open and 
16th Summit Amateur Cup Golf Tournament 2012’ at Kurmitola 
Golf Club in the City on Friday, 17 February 2012 at 9:00 am. The 
prize giving ceremony was held on the same day at 7:50 pm at 
the Swimming Pool Site of Kurmitola Golf Club. Major General 
Rezanur Rahman Khan, Military Secretary, Bangladesh Army & 
Vice President Kurmitola Golf Club, Brig Gen Abidur Reza Khan 
(Retd), Chairman, Tournament Committee, Kurmitola Golf Club, 
Colonel S M Shawkat Ali (Retd), Chief Executive Officer, Kurmitola 
Golf Club and Muhammed Aziz Khan, Chairman, Summit Group 
of Companies were also present. A large number of participants, 
other members of the Summit Group and high civil and military 
officials with their spouses attended the function. Following are the 
winners of tournament as shown on the picture on the left.

16th Summit Amateur and 2nd Professional Golf Tournament – 2012
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The Audit Committee of Summit Power Limited (SPL) was established and its Charter was approved by the Company’s Board in its 
meeting held on July 26, 2009. The Committee, a sub-committee of the Board, supports the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities.

The Audit Committee of SPL comprises of the following Board members:

Mr. Syed Fazlul Haque	 - 	 Chairman	
Mr. Abbas Uddin Ahmed, Independent Director	 - 	 Member
Mr. Tauhidul Islam, Managing Director	 - 	 Member

A total of 4 (four) meetings were held since the last Annual General Meeting of SPL, the last being on 11th March, 2012. Besides Company 
Secretary who supports the committee as its secretary as well, permanent invitees to the meetings were the CFO and Head of Internal 
Audit. Relevant heads of other functions and representative(s) of External Audit are also invited as required.

Role of the Committee

The Audit Committee’s authorities, duties and responsibilities flow from the Board’s oversight function and the terms of reference are 
detailed in Committee Charter approved by the Board.  The major responsibilities of the Committee, among others, include:

•	 Reviewing the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements and other financial results of the company and, upon its 
satisfaction of the review, recommend them to the board for approval.

•	 Monitoring and reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the company’s financial reporting process, internal control and risk 
management system. 

•	 Monitoring and reviewing the arrangements to ensure objectivity and effectiveness of the external and internal audit functions. 
Examine audit findings and material weaknesses in the system and monitor implementation of audit action plans.

•	 Recommending to the Board the appointment, re-appointment or removal of external auditors.

•	 Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s ethical standards and procedures to ensure compliance with the regulatory and 
financial reporting requirements.

 
Activities of the Committee on Company’s affairs for the period under report

The Committee during the period under report met four times and its activities, among others, include: 

•	 review, among other issues, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements of the Company and recommended to the Board for 
adoption and circulation as per the requirement of Securities & Exchange Commission. 

•	 also reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company together with consolidated statements with its subsidiaries for the 
year ended 31st December 2011 and being satisfied that the critical accounting policies, significant judgments and practices used 
by the Company are compliant with the required laws and regulations, also confirmed by the external auditor in their independent 
report, recommended to Board for adoption.

•	 Pursuant to SEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/104/Admin dated 27th July 2011 change of Company’s Statutory Auditors 
became necessary. The Committee, after due deliberation on the issue, recommended Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & CO, Chartered 
Accountants for appointment as the external auditors of the Company for the year ending on 31st December 2012. 

•	 Committee reviewed the effectiveness of internal financial control and the internal audit procedures.

The committee is of the opinion that adequate controls and procedures are in place to provide reasonable assurance that the company’s 
assets are safeguarded and the financial position of the Company is adequately managed.
 
On behalf of the Committee

Syed Fazlul Haque FCA
Chairman 
Audit Committee
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Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants
9 Mohakhali C/A (11th & 12th Floors)
Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh.

Telephone +880 (2) 988 6450-2
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Auditors’ Report 
to the Shareholders of 
Summit Power Limited

Introduction

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Summit Power Limited, which comprise the statement of financial position as 
at 31 December 2011, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes and all related consolidated financial statements of 
Summit Power Limited and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the group”).

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements	

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Bangladesh 
Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and 
regulations. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility	

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion	

In our opinion, the financial statements including consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial 
Reporting Standards (BFRS), give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s/group’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of the 
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange 
Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:	

a)	 we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes 
of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b)	 in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company/group so far as it appeared from our 
examination of these books;

c)	 the statement of financial position (balance sheet) and statement of comprehensive income (profit and loss account) dealt with by 
the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

d)	 the expenditures incurred were for the purposes of the Company’s/group’s business.

Dhaka, 12 March 2012



70

Su
m

m
it 

Po
w

er
 L

im
ite

d

summit power limited

St
at

em
en

t o
f  

Fi
na

nc
ia

l P
os

iti
on

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010 As at 1 January 2010 
   Notes   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate 
      Restated*   Restated*   Restated*   Restated* 
    Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka 

Assets :

non current assets:
 Property, plant and equipment, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5   13,657,541,971   3,787,106,937   8,692,241,298   3,736,135,080   8,800,773,272   3,865,542,522 
 Capital work in progress  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6   -     -     3,521,256,599   -     -     -   
 Intangible assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7   9,956,300   9,627,134   10,639,230   10,210,064   11,011,909   10,766,076 
 Investment in subsidiaries  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8   -     1,639,789,350   -     1,480,480,200   -     960,480,200 
 Investment in associates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9   10,000,000   10,000,000   -     -     -     -   
 Available-for-sale fi nancial assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10   3,414,102,838   3,414,102,838   57,242,641   57,242,641   -     -   
      17,091,601,109   8,860,626,259   12,281,379,768   5,284,067,985   8,811,785,181   4,836,788,798 
current assets:
 Inventories  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11   651,338,649   426,774,223   280,071,093   224,331,217   205,964,916   170,578,020 
 Trade receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  12   979,568,165   207,433,702   453,393,657   134,706,598   393,473,014   139,249,642 
 Other receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13   104,285,043   100,720,556   94,774,059   88,353,317   51,656,396   46,125,960 
 Inter company receivables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  14   -     526,438,688   -     605,492,846   -     -   
 Due from associates  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15   2,746,795   2,746,795   -     -     -     -   
 Advances, deposits and prepayments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16   120,714,543   63,375,435   73,021,316   38,949,876   45,721,347   18,524,832 
 Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  17   1,081,038,437   541,505,130   1,383,972,111   1,279,218,536   491,045,945   275,435,931 
      2,939,691,632   1,868,994,529   2,285,232,236   2,371,052,390   1,187,861,618   649,914,385 
tOtAL Assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    20,031,292,741   10,729,620,788   14,566,612,004   7,655,120,375   9,999,646,799   5,486,703,183 

eQUIty And LIAbILItIes :
shareholders’ equity:
 Share capital  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18   3,943,601,640   3,943,601,640   3,033,539,730   3,033,539,730   2,223,936,000   2,223,936,000 
 Share premium . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  19   2,900,697,657   2,900,697,657   2,908,473,597   2,908,473,597   388,880,000   388,880,000 
 Deposit from shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  20   -     -     185,000,000   -     -     -   
 Reserves  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     561,019,996   353,447,496   820,974,144   613,401,644   794,231,503   586,659,003 
 Retained earnings  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     2,830,009,738   1,304,107,541   1,356,035,546   652,379,774   824,504,524   638,904,631 
equity attributable to owners of the company  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     10,235,329,031   8,501,854,334   8,304,023,017   7,207,794,745   4,231,552,027   3,838,379,634 
non controlling interests  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21   1,572,337,219   -     60,282,488   -     12,002,532   -   
tOtAL eQUIty. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     11,807,666,250   8,501,854,334   8,364,305,505   7,207,794,745   4,243,554,559   3,838,379,634 
non-current liabilities:
 Project loan - non-current portion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  22   3,011,197,392   64,405,314   185,902,454   185,902,454   4,408,928,006   905,245,038 
 Redeemable preference shares - non-current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23   1,703,568,179   -     2,163,107,765   -     -     -   
 Payable to SIMCL - non-current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24   1,255,526,342   1,255,526,342   -     -     -     -   
 Finance lease - non-current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  25   5,626,392   4,276,405   10,732,745   6,679,736   14,033,560   10,260,928 
 Deferred liability for gratuity  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  26   12,689,278   12,689,278   10,418,031   10,418,031   7,105,218   7,105,218 
      5,988,607,583   1,336,897,339   2,370,160,995   203,000,221   4,430,066,784   922,611,184 
current liabilities:
 Liabilities for project development  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  27   57,761,959   -     2,676,338,766   -     -     -   
 Short term loan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  28   -     -     260,708,893   -     65,844,879   65,844,879 
 Trade creditors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  29   122,904,061   40,406,865   136,979,999   41,417,412   94,900,241   40,557,129 
 Other creditors and accruals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  30   170,429,674   72,851,627   89,874,791   6,314,952   136,888,608   13,060,864 
 Project loan - current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  22   752,886,418   116,258,293   187,005,087   187,005,087   1,015,373,432   431,426,270 
 Redeemable preference shares - current portion   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23   468,368,900   -     468,368,900   -     -     -   
 Payable to SIMCL - current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24   650,000,000   650,000,000   -     -     -     -   
 Finance lease - current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  25   6,488,168   5,172,602   6,862,277   3,581,167   9,213,348   3,639,067 
 Inter company payables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  31   -     -     -     -     -     167,379,208 
 Unclaimed dividend - ordinary share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  32   6,179,728   6,179,728   6,006,791   6,006,791   3,804,948   3,804,948 
      2,235,018,908   890,869,115   3,832,145,504   244,325,409   1,326,025,456   725,712,365 
tOtAL eQUIty And LIAbILItIes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     20,031,292,741   10,729,620,788   14,566,612,004   7,655,120,375   9,999,646,799   5,486,703,183 

*see note 2.2 to the fi nancial statements.
the annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these
fi nancial statements.

stAtemeNt of 
fiNANciAl positioN
As At 31 deceMber  2011
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 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010 As at 1 January 2010 
   Notes   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate 
      Restated*   Restated*   Restated*   Restated* 
    Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka 

Assets :

non current assets:
 Property, plant and equipment, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5   13,657,541,971   3,787,106,937   8,692,241,298   3,736,135,080   8,800,773,272   3,865,542,522 
 Capital work in progress  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6   -     -     3,521,256,599   -     -     -   
 Intangible assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7   9,956,300   9,627,134   10,639,230   10,210,064   11,011,909   10,766,076 
 Investment in subsidiaries  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8   -     1,639,789,350   -     1,480,480,200   -     960,480,200 
 Investment in associates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9   10,000,000   10,000,000   -     -     -     -   
 Available-for-sale fi nancial assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10   3,414,102,838   3,414,102,838   57,242,641   57,242,641   -     -   
      17,091,601,109   8,860,626,259   12,281,379,768   5,284,067,985   8,811,785,181   4,836,788,798 
current assets:
 Inventories  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11   651,338,649   426,774,223   280,071,093   224,331,217   205,964,916   170,578,020 
 Trade receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  12   979,568,165   207,433,702   453,393,657   134,706,598   393,473,014   139,249,642 
 Other receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13   104,285,043   100,720,556   94,774,059   88,353,317   51,656,396   46,125,960 
 Inter company receivables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  14   -     526,438,688   -     605,492,846   -     -   
 Due from associates  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15   2,746,795   2,746,795   -     -     -     -   
 Advances, deposits and prepayments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16   120,714,543   63,375,435   73,021,316   38,949,876   45,721,347   18,524,832 
 Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  17   1,081,038,437   541,505,130   1,383,972,111   1,279,218,536   491,045,945   275,435,931 
      2,939,691,632   1,868,994,529   2,285,232,236   2,371,052,390   1,187,861,618   649,914,385 
tOtAL Assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    20,031,292,741   10,729,620,788   14,566,612,004   7,655,120,375   9,999,646,799   5,486,703,183 

eQUIty And LIAbILItIes :
shareholders’ equity:
 Share capital  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18   3,943,601,640   3,943,601,640   3,033,539,730   3,033,539,730   2,223,936,000   2,223,936,000 
 Share premium . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  19   2,900,697,657   2,900,697,657   2,908,473,597   2,908,473,597   388,880,000   388,880,000 
 Deposit from shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  20   -     -     185,000,000   -     -     -   
 Reserves  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     561,019,996   353,447,496   820,974,144   613,401,644   794,231,503   586,659,003 
 Retained earnings  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     2,830,009,738   1,304,107,541   1,356,035,546   652,379,774   824,504,524   638,904,631 
equity attributable to owners of the company  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     10,235,329,031   8,501,854,334   8,304,023,017   7,207,794,745   4,231,552,027   3,838,379,634 
non controlling interests  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21   1,572,337,219   -     60,282,488   -     12,002,532   -   
tOtAL eQUIty. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     11,807,666,250   8,501,854,334   8,364,305,505   7,207,794,745   4,243,554,559   3,838,379,634 
non-current liabilities:
 Project loan - non-current portion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  22   3,011,197,392   64,405,314   185,902,454   185,902,454   4,408,928,006   905,245,038 
 Redeemable preference shares - non-current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23   1,703,568,179   -     2,163,107,765   -     -     -   
 Payable to SIMCL - non-current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24   1,255,526,342   1,255,526,342   -     -     -     -   
 Finance lease - non-current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  25   5,626,392   4,276,405   10,732,745   6,679,736   14,033,560   10,260,928 
 Deferred liability for gratuity  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  26   12,689,278   12,689,278   10,418,031   10,418,031   7,105,218   7,105,218 
      5,988,607,583   1,336,897,339   2,370,160,995   203,000,221   4,430,066,784   922,611,184 
current liabilities:
 Liabilities for project development  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  27   57,761,959   -     2,676,338,766   -     -     -   
 Short term loan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  28   -     -     260,708,893   -     65,844,879   65,844,879 
 Trade creditors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  29   122,904,061   40,406,865   136,979,999   41,417,412   94,900,241   40,557,129 
 Other creditors and accruals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  30   170,429,674   72,851,627   89,874,791   6,314,952   136,888,608   13,060,864 
 Project loan - current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  22   752,886,418   116,258,293   187,005,087   187,005,087   1,015,373,432   431,426,270 
 Redeemable preference shares - current portion   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23   468,368,900   -     468,368,900   -     -     -   
 Payable to SIMCL - current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24   650,000,000   650,000,000   -     -     -     -   
 Finance lease - current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  25   6,488,168   5,172,602   6,862,277   3,581,167   9,213,348   3,639,067 
 Inter company payables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  31   -     -     -     -     -     167,379,208 
 Unclaimed dividend - ordinary share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  32   6,179,728   6,179,728   6,006,791   6,006,791   3,804,948   3,804,948 
      2,235,018,908   890,869,115   3,832,145,504   244,325,409   1,326,025,456   725,712,365 
tOtAL eQUIty And LIAbILItIes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     20,031,292,741   10,729,620,788   14,566,612,004   7,655,120,375   9,999,646,799   5,486,703,183 

*see note 2.2 to the fi nancial statements.
the annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these
fi nancial statements.

Managing Director  Director   Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

Dhaka, 12 March 2012   Auditors
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stAtemeNt of compreheNsiVe iNcome
 FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber  2011          
   

 2011  2010 

   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka 
  Notes   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate 
     Restated*   Restated* 

Revenue  33  4,757,208,529   1,577,728,398   3,601,675,022   1,643,847,452 
Cost of sales  34  (1,929,597,030)  (792,127,715)  (1,678,830,882)  (794,919,888)

Gross profi t    2,827,611,499   785,600,683   1,922,844,140   848,927,564 

Other income, net  35  833,937,552   954,779,187   8,766,005   4,019,841 

Operating expenses
General and administrative expenses  36  (366,461,900)  (203,293,919)  (267,883,918)  (178,368,709)

Operating profi t    3,295,087,151   1,537,085,951   1,663,726,227   674,578,696 

Finance costs  37.2  (407,850,707)  (51,400,089)  (642,981,661)  (167,163,702)
Finance income  37.1  217,901,789   134,566,265   70,050,412   62,044,149 

Finance (costs)/income, net    (189,948,918)  83,166,176   (572,931,249)  (105,119,553)

Profi t before income tax    3,105,138,233   1,620,252,127   1,090,794,978   569,459,143 
Income tax expenses    (33,201,636)  (58,462,450)  -     -   

Profi t for the year    3,071,936,597   1,561,789,677   1,090,794,978   569,459,143 

Other comprehensive income
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fi nancial assets  10   (259,954,148)  (259,954,148)  26,742,641   26,742,641 

total comprehensive income for the year    2,811,982,449   1,301,835,529   1,117,537,619   596,201,784 

Profi t attributable to:
 Owners of the company    2,511,150,489   -     1,087,515,022   -   

 Non controlling interest    560,786,108   -     3,279,956   -   

Profi t for the year    3,071,936,597   -     1,090,794,978   -   

Total comprehensive income attributable to:      
 Owners of the company    2,251,196,341   -     1,114,257,663   -   
 Non controlling interest    560,786,108   -     3,279,956   -   

total comprehensive income for the year    2,811,982,449   -     1,117,537,619   -   

earnings per share (ePs)  38  6.37   3.96   3.80   1.99 

restated earnings per share (ePs)    -     -     2.76   1.44

*see note 2.2 to the fi nancial statements.

the annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

Managing Director  Director   Company Secretary

  As per our report of same date.

Dhaka, 12 March, 2012   Auditors
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 eQUIty AttrIbUtAbLe tO OWners OF the cOMPAny

    reserVes     

 share share revaluation Fair value   retained    non controlling  
 capital premium reserve reserve total earnings  total   interest  total equity

 taka taka taka taka taka  taka   taka    taka   taka

balance as at 1 January 2010  2,223,936,000   388,880,000   794,231,503   -     794,231,503   947,035,330   4,354,082,833   12,002,532   4,366,085,365 
Impact of changes in accounting polity (Note 2.2)  -     -     -     -     -     (122,530,806)  (122,530,806)  -     (122,530,806)

restated balance as at 1 January 2010  2,223,936,000   388,880,000   794,231,503   -      824,504,524   4,231,552,027   12,002,532   4,243,554,559 

Total comprehensive income for the year         
 Restated profi t for the year  -     -     -     -     -     1,087,515,022   1,087,515,022   3,279,956   1,090,794,978 
 Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fi nancial assets  -     -     -     26,742,641   26,742,641   -     26,742,641   -     26,742,641 

Transactions with the shareholders:         
 Issue of bonus shares to existing shareholders  555,984,000   -     -     -     -     (555,984,000)  -     -     -   
 Issue of ordinary shares to shareholders  253,619,730   2,745,940,817   -     -     -     -     2,999,560,547   -     2,999,560,547 
 Payment for transaction costs  -     (226,347,220)  -     -     -     -     (226,347,220)  -     (226,347,220)
 Receipts of share money deposits from shareholders  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     185,000,000   185,000,000 
 Issuance of share of Summit Narayanganj Power Limited  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     45,000,000   45,000,000 
restated balance as at 31 december 2010  3,033,539,730   2,908,473,597   794,231,503   26,742,641   26,742,641   1,356,035,546   8,119,023,017   245,282,488   8,364,305,505 

Transactions with the shareholders:         
 Issue of bonus shares to shareholders  910,061,910   -     -     -     -     (910,061,910)  -     -     -   
 Dividend paid to minority shareholder  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     (1,275,799)  (1,275,799)
 Payment for transaction costs  -     (7,775,940)  -     -     -     -     (7,775,940)  -     (7,775,940)
Sale of SPL’s ownership with SUPCL to SIMCL  -     -     -     -     -     (101,853,572)  (101,853,572)  101,853,572   -   
Tax paid for cash dividend received from subsidiaries  -     -     -     -     -     (25,260,815)  (25,260,815)  -     (25,260,815)
Sale of SPL’s ownership with SUPCL to SIMCL  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     186,940,850   186,940,850 
Receipts of share money deposits from SIMCL  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     478,750,000   478,750,000 

Total comprehensive income for the year         
 Profi t for the year  -     -     -     -     -     2,511,150,489   2,511,150,489   560,786,108   3,071,936,597 
 Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fi nancial assets  -     -     -     (259,954,148)  (259,954,148)  -     (259,954,148)  -     (259,954,148)

balance as at 31 december 2011  3,943,601,640   2,900,697,657   794,231,503   (233,211,507)  (233,211,507)  2,830,009,738   10,235,329,031   1,572,337,219   11,807,666,250

coNsolidAted stAtemeNt of chANGes iN eQuitY
FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011
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 eQUIty AttrIbUtAbLe tO OWners OF the cOMPAny

    reserVes     

 share share revaluation Fair value   retained    non controlling  
 capital premium reserve reserve total earnings  total   interest  total equity

 taka taka taka taka taka  taka   taka    taka   taka

balance as at 1 January 2010  2,223,936,000   388,880,000   794,231,503   -     794,231,503   947,035,330   4,354,082,833   12,002,532   4,366,085,365 
Impact of changes in accounting polity (Note 2.2)  -     -     -     -     -     (122,530,806)  (122,530,806)  -     (122,530,806)

restated balance as at 1 January 2010  2,223,936,000   388,880,000   794,231,503   -      824,504,524   4,231,552,027   12,002,532   4,243,554,559 

Total comprehensive income for the year         
 Restated profi t for the year  -     -     -     -     -     1,087,515,022   1,087,515,022   3,279,956   1,090,794,978 
 Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fi nancial assets  -     -     -     26,742,641   26,742,641   -     26,742,641   -     26,742,641 

Transactions with the shareholders:         
 Issue of bonus shares to existing shareholders  555,984,000   -     -     -     -     (555,984,000)  -     -     -   
 Issue of ordinary shares to shareholders  253,619,730   2,745,940,817   -     -     -     -     2,999,560,547   -     2,999,560,547 
 Payment for transaction costs  -     (226,347,220)  -     -     -     -     (226,347,220)  -     (226,347,220)
 Receipts of share money deposits from shareholders  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     185,000,000   185,000,000 
 Issuance of share of Summit Narayanganj Power Limited  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     45,000,000   45,000,000 
restated balance as at 31 december 2010  3,033,539,730   2,908,473,597   794,231,503   26,742,641   26,742,641   1,356,035,546   8,119,023,017   245,282,488   8,364,305,505 

Transactions with the shareholders:         
 Issue of bonus shares to shareholders  910,061,910   -     -     -     -     (910,061,910)  -     -     -   
 Dividend paid to minority shareholder  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     (1,275,799)  (1,275,799)
 Payment for transaction costs  -     (7,775,940)  -     -     -     -     (7,775,940)  -     (7,775,940)
Sale of SPL’s ownership with SUPCL to SIMCL  -     -     -     -     -     (101,853,572)  (101,853,572)  101,853,572   -   
Tax paid for cash dividend received from subsidiaries  -     -     -     -     -     (25,260,815)  (25,260,815)  -     (25,260,815)
Sale of SPL’s ownership with SUPCL to SIMCL  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     186,940,850   186,940,850 
Receipts of share money deposits from SIMCL  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     478,750,000   478,750,000 

Total comprehensive income for the year         
 Profi t for the year  -     -     -     -     -     2,511,150,489   2,511,150,489   560,786,108   3,071,936,597 
 Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fi nancial assets  -     -     -     (259,954,148)  (259,954,148)  -     (259,954,148)  -     (259,954,148)

balance as at 31 december 2011  3,943,601,640   2,900,697,657   794,231,503   (233,211,507)  (233,211,507)  2,830,009,738   10,235,329,031   1,572,337,219   11,807,666,250
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stAtemeNt of chANGes iN eQuitY
FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

reserves 

 share share revaluation Fair value   retained  
 capital premium reserve reserve total earnings total

 taka taka taka taka taka taka taka

balance as at 1 January 2010  2,223,936,000   388,880,000   586,659,003   -     586,659,003   743,145,480   3,942,620,483 
Impact of changes in accounting polity (Note 2.2)  -     -     -     -     -     (104,240,849)  (104,240,849)

restated balance as at 1 January 2010  2,223,936,000   388,880,000   586,659,003   -     586,659,003   638,904,631   3,838,379,634 
       
Total comprehensive income for the year       
 Restated profi t for the year  -     -     -     -     -     569,459,143   569,459,143 
 Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fi nancial assets  -     -     -     26,742,641   26,742,641   -     26,742,641 
       
Transactions with the shareholders:       
 Issue of bonus shares  555,984,000   -     -     -     -     (555,984,000)  -   
 Issue of ordinary shares to shareholders  253,619,730   2,745,940,817   -     -     -     -     2,999,560,547 
 Payment for transaction costs  -     (226,347,220)  -     -     -     -     (226,347,220)

restated balance as at 31 december 2010  3,033,539,730   2,908,473,597   586,659,003   26,742,641   613,401,644   652,379,774   7,207,794,745 
       
Transactions with the shareholders:       
 Issue of bonus shares to shareholders  910,061,910   -     -     -     -     (910,061,910)  -   
 Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fi nancial assets  -     -     -     (259,954,148)  (259,954,148)  -     (259,954,148)
 Payment for transaction costs  -     (7,775,940)  -     -     -     -     (7,775,940)
       
Total comprehensive income for the year       
 Profi t for the year   -     -     -     -     -     1,561,789,677   1,561,789,677 

balance as at 31 december 2011  3,943,601,640   2,900,697,657   586,659,003   (233,211,507)  353,447,496   1,304,107,541   8,501,854,334
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 share share revaluation Fair value   retained  
 capital premium reserve reserve total earnings total

 taka taka taka taka taka taka taka

balance as at 1 January 2010  2,223,936,000   388,880,000   586,659,003   -     586,659,003   743,145,480   3,942,620,483 
Impact of changes in accounting polity (Note 2.2)  -     -     -     -     -     (104,240,849)  (104,240,849)

restated balance as at 1 January 2010  2,223,936,000   388,880,000   586,659,003   -     586,659,003   638,904,631   3,838,379,634 
       
Total comprehensive income for the year       
 Restated profi t for the year  -     -     -     -     -     569,459,143   569,459,143 
 Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fi nancial assets  -     -     -     26,742,641   26,742,641   -     26,742,641 
       
Transactions with the shareholders:       
 Issue of bonus shares  555,984,000   -     -     -     -     (555,984,000)  -   
 Issue of ordinary shares to shareholders  253,619,730   2,745,940,817   -     -     -     -     2,999,560,547 
 Payment for transaction costs  -     (226,347,220)  -     -     -     -     (226,347,220)

restated balance as at 31 december 2010  3,033,539,730   2,908,473,597   586,659,003   26,742,641   613,401,644   652,379,774   7,207,794,745 
       
Transactions with the shareholders:       
 Issue of bonus shares to shareholders  910,061,910   -     -     -     -     (910,061,910)  -   
 Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fi nancial assets  -     -     -     (259,954,148)  (259,954,148)  -     (259,954,148)
 Payment for transaction costs  -     (7,775,940)  -     -     -     -     (7,775,940)
       
Total comprehensive income for the year       
 Profi t for the year   -     -     -     -     -     1,561,789,677   1,561,789,677 

balance as at 31 december 2011  3,943,601,640   2,900,697,657   586,659,003   (233,211,507)  353,447,496   1,304,107,541   8,501,854,334
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  2011   2010 

  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka 
  Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate 

cash fl ow from operating activities:

Cash receipts from customers  4,231,034,021   1,505,001,294   3,541,754,379   1,648,390,496 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (2,216,002,480)  (1,038,776,086)  (1,717,889,132)  (895,127,926)
Receipts from other sources  268,960,698   303,610,554   34,621,576   23,836,633 
Interest and other charges paid  (399,467,260)  (51,400,089)  (550,717,253)  (167,163,702)

Net cash fl ow from operating activities  1,884,524,979   718,435,673   1,307,769,570   609,935,501 
    
cash fl ow from investing activities:

Property, plant and equipment   (604,676,901)  (270,502,106)  (217,846,229)  (24,948,274)
Intangible assets  -     -     (250,000)  -   
Capital work in progress  (3,964,984,267)  -     (844,917,833)  -   
Investments  (711,807,503)  (1,058,057,503)  (30,500,000)  (550,500,000)

Net cash used in investing activities  (5,281,468,671)  (1,328,559,609)  (1,093,514,062)  (575,448,274)

cash fl ow from fi nancing activities:

Proceeds from project loan  3,646,800,000   -     -     -   
Payments toward project loan  (192,243,934)  (192,243,934)  (2,317,739,604)  (963,763,767)
Payments for lease fi nance  (10,397,912)  (4,049,896)  (9,426,886)  (3,639,092)
Proceeds from redeemable preference shares  -     -     300,000,000   -   
Repayment for redeemable preference shares  (459,539,586)  -     (468,368,900)  -   
Payment for transaction costs  (79,539,184)  (7,775,940)  (26,073,136)  -   
Payment for short term loan  (260,708,893)  -     (65,844,879)  (65,844,879)
Proceeds from short term loan   -     -     260,708,893   -   
Proceeds from ordinary shares  -     -     2,773,213,327   2,773,213,327 
Proceeds from issue of shares of subsidiary  -     -     45,000,000   -   
Payment for cash dividend  (26,536,615)  -     -     -   
Proceeds from share money deposit  478,750,000   -     185,000,000   -   
Financing (to)/from inter company  (2,746,795)  76,307,363   -     (772,872,054)
Sale of fractional shares  172,937   172,937   2,201,843   2,201,843 

Net cash fl ow from/(used in) fi nancing activities  3,094,010,018   (127,589,470)  678,670,658   969,295,378 
    
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents  (302,933,674)  (737,713,406)  892,926,166   1,003,782,605 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  1,383,972,111   1,279,218,536   491,045,945   275,435,931 

cash and cash equivalents at 31 december  1,081,038,437   541,505,130   1,383,972,111   1,279,218,536 

stAtemeNt of cAsh flows
FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

1. reporting entity

1.1 company profi le

 Summit Power Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”/”the parent company”) is a public limited company incorporated in 
Bangladesh on 7 June 2004 under the Companies Act 1994 with its registered offi  ce at Summit Centre, 18 Kawran Bazar, Dhaka 1215. The 
Company was initially registered as a private limited Company and subsequently converted into a public limited company on 30 March 
1997. During October-November 2005, the Company listed its shares with both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges. The consolidated 
fi nancial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Profi le of 
subsidiaries is as under:

 summit Purbanchol  Power company Limited (sPPcL) was incorporated in Bangladesh on 15 August 2007 as a Private Limited Company 
under the Companies Act 1994 and subsequently converted into a Public Limited Company on 3 May 2010 with its registered offi  ce at 
Summit Centre, 18 Kawran Bazar, Dhaka 1215, Bangladesh.

 summit Uttaranchol  Power company Limited (sUPcL) was incorporated in Bangladesh on 15 August 2007 as a Private Limited Company 
under the Companies Act 1994 and subsequently converted into a Public Limited Company on 14 November 2010 with its registered offi  ce 
at Summit Centre, 18 Kawran Bazar, Dhaka 1215, Bangladesh.

 summit narayanganj Power Limited (snPL) was incorporated in Bangladesh on 4 May 2010 as a Private Limited Company under the 
Companies Act 1994 with its registered offi  ce at Summit Centre, 18 Kawran Bazar, Dhaka 1215, Bangladesh.

1.2 nature of business

 The principal activity of the Company/group is to set up power plants for generation and supply of electricity. Operational details of the 
Company including its subsidiaries are as under.

    Plant Operation Period
Name of Company Name of plant Location capacity (MW) starting date of PPA (Year)

Summit Power Limited Ashulia Power Plant (Unit-1) Savar, Dhaka  11.00  8 February 2001 15
  Ashulia Power Plant (Unit-2) Savar, Dhaka  33.75  4 December 2007 15
  Madhabdi Power Plant (Unit-1) Narsingdi  11.00  1 April 2001 15
  Madhabdi Power Plant (Unit-2) Narsingdi  24.30  16 December 2006 15
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1) Comilla  11.00  2 June 2001 15
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2) Comilla  13.50  15 November 2006 15
Summit Purbanchol Power Rupganj Power Plant Narayanganj  33.00  9 June 2009 15
Company Limited  Jangalia Power Plant Comilla  33.00  25 June 2009 15

Summit Uttaranchol Power Maona Power Plant Gazipur  33.00  12 May 2009 15
Company Limited  Ullapara Power Plant Sirajganj  11.00  3 March 2009 15

Summit Narayanganj Madanganj Power Plant Narayanganj  102.00  1 April 2011  05
Power Limited

All the above power plants are natural gas based, except Madanganj power plant which is based on furnace oil (HFO).

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 statement of compliance

 These fi nancial statements (including consolidated and separate fi nancial statements) have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh 
Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 (where applicable) and other 
applicable laws and regulations.

 The fi nancial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2012.
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

2.2 changes in accounting policy

 In 2011, the Company underwent the fi rst of its expected major overhauling of its plant and machinery. As, the benefi ts of such major 
overhauling  will be consumed over 2 to 10 years, the cost of such has been recognised separately in the carrying amount of respective plant 
and machinery  in accordance with BAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment. However, the carrying amount of the replaced capital spare parts 
relating to major overhauling  has to be  derecognised. Previously, the related assets were not segregated, and were thus depreciated over 
the life of the plant, which is 30 years. Therefore, the carrying amount of replaced capital spare parts as at earlier periods were overstated. The 
following table summarises the adjustments made to the statement of fi nancial position on implementation of this new accounting policy.

  consolidated separate

  Property,  Property,
  plant and  Retained plant and  Retained
  equipment earnings equipment earnings
  Taka Taka Taka Taka

balance as reported at 1 January 2010  8,923,304,078   947,035,330   3,969,783,371   743,145,480

Impact of changes in accounting polity for 2009:
 WDV adjustment for CAT engines at Ashulia  (19,559,022)  (19,559,022)  (19,559,022)  (19,559,022)
 WDV adjustment for CAT engines at Chandina    (19,559,021)  (19,559,021)  (19,559,021)  (19,559,021)
 WDV adjustment for CAT engines at Madhabdi  (29,338,532)  (29,338,532)  (29,338,532)  (29,338,532)
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Ashulia  (15,904,122)  (15,904,122)  (15,904,122)  (15,904,122)
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Chandina  (7,952,061)  (7,952,061)  (7,952,061)  (7,952,061)
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Madhabdi    (11,928,091)  (11,928,091)  (11,928,091)  (11,928,091)
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Jangalia  (4,889,332)  (4,889,332)  -     -
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Rupganj  (4,747,798)  (4,747,798)  -     -
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Ullapara  (4,065,689)  (4,065,689)  -     -
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Maona  (4,587,138)  (4,587,138)  -     -
  (122,530,806)  (122,530,806)  (104,240,849)  (104,240,849)
restated balance as reported at 1 January 2010  8,800,773,272   824,504,524   3,865,542,522   638,904,631

balance as reported at 31 december 2010  8,871,837,184   1,535,631,432   3,860,861,093   777,105,787

Impact of changes in accounting polity for 2009  (122,530,806)  (122,530,806)  (104,240,849)  (104,240,849)

Impact of changes in accounting polity for 2010:
 WDV adjustment for CAT engines at Ashulia  (2,444,878)  (2,444,878)  (2,444,878)  (2,444,878)
 WDV adjustment for CAT engines at Chandina    (2,444,878)  (2,444,878)  (2,444,878)  (2,444,878)
 WDV adjustment for CAT engines at Madhabdi  (3,667,316)  (3,667,316)  (3,667,316)  (3,667,316)
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Ashulia  (5,301,374)  (5,301,374)  (5,301,374)  (5,301,374)
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Chandina  (2,650,687)  (2,650,687)  (2,650,687)  (2,650,687)
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Madhabdi    (3,976,031)  (3,976,031)  (3,976,031)  (3,976,031)
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Jangalia  (9,778,667)  (9,778,667)  -     -
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Rupganj  (9,495,594)  (9,495,594)  -     -
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Ullapara  (8,131,378)  (8,131,378)  -     -
 WDV adjustment for WAT engines at Maona  (9,174,277)  (9,174,277)  -     -
  (57,065,080)  (57,065,080)  (20,485,164)  (20,485,164)
restated balance at 31 december 2010  8,692,241,298   1,356,035,546   3,736,135,080   652,379,774

2.3 basis of measurement

 Financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for civil works and other constructions, plant and machinery, 
land and land development which are stated at revaluation amount, while available for sale fi nancial assets are measured at fair value.



81
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 2

01
1

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

fi n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

www.summitpower.org

2.4 Functional and presentational currency and level of precision

 These fi nancial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT) which is both functional currency and presentation 
currency of the group/Company. The amounts in these fi nancial statements have been rounded off  to the nearest Taka.

2.5 Use of estimates and judgement

 The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with BAS/BFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that aff ect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
Actual results may diff er from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods aff ected.

 In particular, information about signifi cant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most signifi cant eff ect on the amount recognised in the fi nancial statements are described in the following notes:

 Note: 25   Lease classifi cation
 Note: 30   Other creditors and accruals
 Note: 5.1   Depreciation
 Note: 7   Amortisation

2.6 reporting period

These fi nancial statements cover the period from 1 January to 31 December 2011.

3. signifi cant accounting policies

 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these fi nancial statements.

3.1 basis of consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The existence and eff ect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or 
convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on 
which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date on which control ceases.

Name of subsidiary % of controlling interest  % of non-controlling interest

Summit Purbanchol Power Company Limited 99.00  1.00
Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited 51.48  48.52
Summit Narayanganj Power Limited 55.00  45.00

 The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the group. Losses 
applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-

controlling interests to have a defi cit balance.

(b) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

 The fi nancial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated with those of Summit Power Limited in accordance with BAS 27: 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 
intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing  consolidated fi nancial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with 
equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are 
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

(c) Investment in associates

 Associates are those entities in which the group has signifi cant infl uence, but not control, over the fi nancial and operating policies. Signifi cant 
infl uence is presumed to exist when the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity. Investments in associates 
are accounted for using the equity method and are recognised initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

(a) Recognition and measurement

 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable taxes, after deducting 
trade discount and rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the intended manner.

(b) Capitalisation of borrowing cost

 Finance costs that are directly attributable to the construction of plants are included in the cost of those plants in compliance with BAS 23: 
Borrowing Costs. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases upon receipt of  independent engineers’ report which, in accordance with Power 
Purchase Agreement, confi rms the availability of plants for use.

(c) Subsequent costs

 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that 
the future economic benefi ts embodied within the part will fl ow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement 
of comprehensive income as incurred. Spare parts whose estimated useful life is more than one year are capitalised and depreciated using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of between 2 to 10 years when used in major repair and maintenance processes. The 
spare parts which are replaced by a major overhaul will be removed from the cost of property, plant and equipment.

(d) Revaluation of land and plant and machinery

 S. F. Ahmed & Co., Chartered Accountants has revalued the plant and machinery and civil works of the Company as at 31 December 2008 
following the current cost accounting method. The revaluation resulted in a revaluation surplus aggregating to Tk 586,659,003 as at 31 
December 2008.

(e) Depreciation

 Depreciation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each item of 
property, plant and equipment including leased assets. Land is not depreciated.

 Plant and machinery are depreciated from the month in which the asset comes into use or is capitalised other than revalued plant and 
machinery which are depreciated from the calendar year following the year of revaluation. According to the Power Purchase Agreement 
independent engineers’ report confi rms the availability of plants for use. Other items of property, plant and equipment continue to be 
depreciated from the month immediately following the month on which the  asset comes into use or   is capitalised. In case of disposals, 
depreciation is charged for full month in the month of disposal.

 Depreciation of power plant has been charged considering 30 years useful life and residual value of 15% of original cost, on straight line 
basis on the ground that management intends to continue with operation after completion of 5 to 15 years as stated in the Power Purchase 
Agreement (PPA). According to PPA the management can apply for extension of the agreement two years before the expiry of the agreement 
and management has decided to exercise this option unless it would clearly be not in the interest of the company at that stage except 
Madanganj power plant under Summit Narayanganj Power Limited.

 The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative years are as follows:

  2011 2010
  year year

Furniture and fi xtures 10  10
Offi  ce and electrical equipment 5  5
Offi  ce decoration 5  5
Motor vehicles 5  5
Maintenance equipment 5  5
Civil works and others 5  5
Plant and machinery 30 30
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(f)	 Retirements and disposals

	 An asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and subsequent disposal. Gains or 
losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognised as gain or loss from disposal of asset under other income in the statement of comprehensive income.

(g)	 Capital work in progress

	 Capital work in progress consists of acquisition costs of  plant and machinery, capital components and related installation cost until the date 
placed in service. In case of import of components, capital work in progress is recognised when risks and rewards associated with such assets 
are transferred to the group.

3.3	 Intangible assets

(a)	 Recognition and measurement

	 Intangible assets that are acquired by the group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and  
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are recognised when all the conditions for recognition as per BAS 38: Intangible assets 
are met. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable taxes and any directly attributable 
cost of preparing the asset for its intended use.

(b)	 Subsequent costs

	 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits  embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. 
All other expenditures are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(c)	 Amortisation

	 IT software and brand are amortised over 5 and 30 years respectively from the year of first utilisation.

	 Amortisation of  intangible assets is charged from the year of acquisition and are amortised under straight line method.

3.4	 Leased assets

3.4.1	 Finance lease

	 Leases in terms of which the entity assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial 
recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Incremental 
borrowing rate has been used to calculate the present value of minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated to the principal 
amount and to the finance charges in a such a way to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.

(a)	 Recognition and measurement

	 Finance leases have been recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal at the inception of lease 
to the lower of fair value of leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. The interest implicit in the lease has been spread 
equally over the lease term.

(b)	 Depreciation

	 Finance leases give rise to depreciation expense for a depreciable asset as well as a finance expense for each accounting period. The 
depreciation policy for depreciable assets is consistent with that for depreciable assets which are owned.

3.4.2	 Operating lease

	 All leases other than those which meet the definition of finance lease are treated as operating lease and are not recognised in the statement 
of financial position. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis 
over the period of the lease.

3.5	 Inventories

	 Inventories consisting of maintenance spare parts, lube oil, and fuel. These are for use in the operation and maintenance of power plants. 
Inventories are measured and stated at cost less allowance for obsolescence. Cost is calculated on First In First Out (FIFO) basis.

3.6	 Provisions

	 A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
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Notes to the financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation 
at the date of statement of financial position. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the 
present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation except the amount payable for letter of credit.

3.7	C ontingencies

	 Contingencies arising from claim, litigation assessment, fines, penalties etc. are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred 
and the amount can reasonably be measured.

3.8	E mployee benefits

	 The Company/group maintains both defined contribution plan for its eligible permanent employees. The eligibility is determined according 
to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds.

(a)	 Defined benefit plan (gratuity)

	 A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company operates an un-
funded gratuity scheme which is a defined benefit scheme. A provision in respect of this is made periodically covering all permanent 
employees by applying period of employment to latest basic salary. Although no actuarial valuation was done to quantify actuarial 
liabilities as per BAS 19: Employment Benefits, such valuation is not likely to yield a result significantly different from the current provision 
as the number of permanent employee who fall under this plan is only forty. Gratuity scheme is not recognised by the National Board 
of Revenue.

(b)	 Defined contribution plan (provident fund)

	 The Company/group operates contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees, which is a defined contribution plan. The 
provident fund is administered by the Board of Trustee and is funded by contributions from employees and from the company @ 10% 
of the basic pay. These contributions are invested separately from the Company’s/group’s business. This fund is recognised by National 
Board of Revenue.

3.9	R evenue

	 Revenue is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income upon supply of electricity, quantum of which is determined by survey of 
meter reading. Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue under Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) 
comprises capacity payments and energy payments. Capacity payments are recognised according to the terms set out in the PPA. Energy 
payments are calculated based on electricity delivered.

3.10	T axation

	 No provision is required for income tax on the Company’s/group’s profits as the Company/group has received exemption from all such taxes 
from the Government of Bangladesh under the private sector power generation policy for a period of 15 years from start of its commercial 
operation. Such exemption will expire in February 2016 for Summit Power Limited, June 2024 for Summit Purbanchol Power Company 
Limited, and March 2024 for Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited. While Summit Narayanganj Power Limited is exempted from tax 
for a period of 5 years from the start of its commercial operation dated on 1 April 2011.

3.11	D eferred tax

	 As there is considerable uncertainty with regard to the taxation of such companies after the expiry of the tax exemption period, the 
management feels it is not possible to make a reasonable estimate of deferred tax assets/liabilities at this stage.

3.12	 Foreign currency translation

	 Foreign currency transactions are translated into Bangladeshi taka at the rates ruling on the transaction date. All monetary assets and 
liabilities at the statement of financial position date are retranslated using rates prevailing on that day. In accordance with Schedule XI of 
the Companies Act 1994 all differences arising on outstanding foreign currency loans are adjusted against the fixed assets for which such 
foreign currency borrowing took place. This treatment is not in accordance with BAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, which 
requires all differences arising from foreign exchange transactions to be recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. However 
management feel the impact on profits due to the difference in treatment is immaterial. All other differences are taken to the statement of 
comprehensive income.
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3.13	 Finance income and expenses

	 Finance income comprises interest income and dividend income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised on maturity.

	 Finance expenses comprise interest expense on loan, overdraft, finance lease and bank charges. All borrowing costs are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income using effective interest method except to the extent that they are capitalised during construction 
period of the plants in accordance with BAS 23: Borrowing cost.

3.14	 Financial instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

3.14.1	 Financial assets

	 The group initially recognises receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated.  All other financial assets are recognised 
initially on the date at which the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the transaction.

	 The group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the cash flows from the asset expire, 
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

	 Financial assets carried in the statement of financial position include investment in equity and marketable securities, cash and cash 
equivalents, trade and other receivables, other long term receivables and deposits.

(a)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash at banks which are held and available for use by the company without any 
restriction. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at financial 
institutions and short-term highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s/group’s cash management are included as a 
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. Cash flows from operating activities have 
been presented under direct method.

(b)	 Trade receivables

	 Trade receivables consist of unpaid bills receivable from Rural Electrification Board (REB) and Bangladesh Power Development Board 
(BPDB). Trade receivables are recognised initially at original invoice amount and subsequently measured at the remaining amount less 
allowances for doubtful receivables at the year end.

(c)	 Available-for-sale financial assets

	 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale by management. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, are recognised 
in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognised, the gain or loss 
accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

3.14.2	 Financial liabilities

	 The group initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated. All other financial 
liabilities are recognised initially on the transaction date at which the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
liability.

	 The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.

	 Financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, finance lease obligation, accounts payable and other  payables.

(a)	 Finance lease

	 Leases in terms of which the entity assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon 
initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of minimum 
lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to 
that asset. Incremental borrowing rate has been used to calculate the present value of minimum lease payments.

(b)	 Loans and borrowings

	 Principal amounts of the loans and borrowings are stated at their amortised amount. Borrowings repayable after twelve months from 
the date of statement of financial position are classified as non-current liabilities whereas the portion of borrowings repayable within 
twelve months from the date of statement of financial position, unpaid interest and other charges are classified as current liabilities.

(c)	 Trade payables
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Notes to the financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

	 The Company/group recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and the 
settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying benefits.

(d)	 Redeemable preference share

	 Summit Purbanchol Power Company Limited and Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited had issued redeemable preference 
shares in 2010. As per BAS 32: Financial Instruments: Presentation, the substance of a financial instrument rather than its legal form 
governs its classification on the entity’s financial statements. Accordingly, the redeemable preference shares which, in substance, meet 
the conditions of a financial liability, have been classified as liabilities in these financial statements.

3.15	 Impairment

(a)	 Financial assets

	 Trade receivable is assessed at each date of statement of financial position to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is 
impaired. Trade receivable is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the 
assets, and that the loss had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

(b)	 Non-financial assets

	 At each reporting date indications of impairment are reviewed. For this review, the group is considered as a single cash generating unit 
and both tangible and intangible assets are reviewed. If any indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amount will need to be estimated. 
As at 31 December 2011, the assessment of indicators of impairment reveals that impairment testing is not required for the group.

(c)	 Inventories

	 Inventories are measured and stated at cost less allowance for obsolescence. These are for use in the operation and maintenance of 
power plants. As inventories are for internal use, the value is unlikely to diminish.

3.16	E arnings per share (EPS)

	 The Company/group represents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

	 Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding, for the affects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. However, dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial 
statements as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the relevant periods.

4.	E vents after the reporting date

	 Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company’s/group’s position at the date of statement of financial 
position or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting 
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.



87
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 2

01
1

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

fi n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

www.summitpower.org

5. property, plant and equipment

As At 31 deceMber 2011 (cOnsOLIdAted)

 COST/REVALUATION DEPRECIATION

 Balance as at  Addition   Disposal  Balance as at   Balance as at   Charged   Disposal/  Balance as at  Written down
     Particulars 1 January  during   during  31 December Rate  1 January   during   adjustment  31 December  value as at
 2011  the year   the year  2011   2011   the year   during the year  2011  31 Dec 2011
 Taka  Taka   Taka  Taka %  Taka   Taka   Taka  Taka  Taka

Own assets:
i)    Cost
 Land and land development  301,008,957   14,227,033   -     315,235,990   -     -     -     -     -     315,235,990
 Furniture and fi xtures  7,612,237   947,460   -     8,559,697   10   1,712,340   720,552   -     2,432,892   6,126,805
 Offi  ce and electrical equipment  16,215,925   4,130,950   -     20,346,875   20   9,474,346   2,573,310    12,047,656   8,299,219
 Offi  ce decoration  13,536,006   11,693,274   -     25,229,280   20   11,872,442   1,089,507   -     12,961,949   12,267,331
 Motor vehicles  27,855,479   5,500,250   1,035,000   32,320,729   20   13,182,414   4,276,512   1,035,000   16,423,926   15,896,803
 Maintenance equipment  2,076,022   88,575   -     2,164,597   20   1,564,395   250,737   -     1,815,132   349,465
 Civil works and others  40,471,206   2,480,817   -     42,952,023   20   32,009,693   2,792,860   -     34,802,553   8,149,470
 Plant and machinery :
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)  312,859,919   97,623,517   32,218,521   378,264,915   3.33   123,726,995   16,557,590   12,589,849   127,694,736   250,570,179
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)  1,393,360,295   9,977,358   7,311,381   1,396,026,272   3.33   143,048,022   50,145,572   826,308   192,367,286   1,203,658,986
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)  316,261,705   3,166,310   2,790,227   316,637,788   3.33   133,537,501   13,177,913   2,790,227   143,925,187   172,712,601
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)  956,423,751   21,464,648   15,900,942   961,987,457   3.33   124,302,886   31,090,986   15,900,942   139,492,930   822,494,527
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)  333,786,476   90,132,305   27,825,735   396,093,046   3.33   125,659,024   14,622,097   12,988,133   127,292,988   268,800,058
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)  562,423,950   27,974,189   21,660,784   568,737,355   3.33   75,676,850   19,664,654   16,668,153   78,673,351   490,064,004
  Jangalia Power Plant  1,456,322,983   2,120,816   -     1,458,443,799   3.33   76,526,718   51,049,630   -     127,576,348   1,330,867,451
  Rupganj Power Plant  1,399,836,163   16,324,582   12,561,389   1,403,599,356   3.33   77,003,161   50,102,650   12,561,389   114,544,422   1,289,054,934
  Maona Power Plant  1,345,500,082   22,254,176   18,351,814   1,349,402,444   3.33   75,682,752   50,025,864   18,351,814   107,356,802   1,242,045,642
  Ullapara Power Plant  492,340,289   -     -     492,340,289   3.33   36,584,610   22,080,883   -     58,665,493   433,674,796
  Madanganj Power Plant  -     5,142,234,700   -     5,142,234,700    -     109,573,505   -     109,573,505   5,032,661,195

 Total (i)  8,977,891,445   5,472,340,960   139,655,793   14,310,576,612    1,061,564,149   439,794,822   93,711,815   1,407,647,156   12,902,929,456

ii)  Revaluation

 Land and land development  207,572,500   -     -     207,572,500    -     -     -     -     207,572,500
 Civil works and others  13,002,138   -     -     13,002,138   20   5,200,856   2,600,428   -     7,801,284   5,200,854
 Plant and machinery :        
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)  166,227,903   -     -     166,227,903   3.33   10,250,619   4,709,744   -     14,960,363   151,267,540
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)  3,310,422   -     -     3,310,422   3.33   204,142   93,796   -     297,938   3,012,484
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)  161,663,341   -     -     161,663,341   3.33   9,969,140   4,580,416   -     14,549,556   147,113,785
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)  79,752,991   -     -     79,752,991   3.33   4,918,050   2,259,644   -     7,177,694   72,575,297
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)  146,384,742   -     -     146,384,742   3.33   9,026,971   4,147,528   -     13,174,499   133,210,243
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)  16,317,466   -     -     16,317,466   3.33   1,006,234   462,324   -     1,468,558   14,848,908

 total (ii)  794,231,503   -     -     794,231,503    40,576,012   18,853,880   -     59,429,892   734,801,611
 total own assets (i+ii)  9,772,122,948   5,472,340,960   139,655,793   15,104,808,115    1,102,140,161   458,648,702   93,711,815   1,467,077,048   13,637,731,067

Leased assets:
Motor vehicles  40,949,982   4,917,450   -     45,867,432    18,691,470   7,365,058   -     26,056,528   19,810,904

Total assets  9,813,072,930   5,477,258,410   139,655,793   15,150,675,547    1,120,831,631   466,013,760   93,711,815   1,493,133,576   13,657,541,971
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summit power limited

Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

Property, plant and equipment (contd..)

As At 31 deceMber 2011 (sePArAte)

 COST/REVALUATION DEPRECIATION

 Balance as at  Addition   Disposal  Balance as at   Balance as at   Charged   Disposal/  Balance as at  Written down
    Particulars 1 January  during   during  31 December Rate  1 January   during   adjustment  31 December  value as at
 2011  the year   the year  2011   2011   the year   during the year  2011  31 Dec 2011
 Taka  Taka   Taka  Taka %  Taka   Taka   Taka  Taka  Taka

Own assets:
i)    Cost
 Furniture and fi xtures  4,837,179   502,998   -     5,340,177   10   1,432,461   426,143   -     1,858,604   3,481,573
 Offi  ce and electrical equipment  11,752,724   2,417,257    14,169,981   20   8,198,376   1,533,459    9,731,835   4,438,146
 Offi  ce decoration  13,294,554   11,693,274   -     24,987,828   20   11,832,878   1,041,217   -     12,874,095   12,113,733
 Motor vehicles  27,855,479   5,500,250   1,035,000   32,320,729   20   13,182,414   4,276,512   1,035,000   16,423,926   15,896,803
 Maintenance equipment*  1,560,989   -     -     1,560,989   20   1,335,140   146,515   -     1,481,655   79,334
 Civil works and others  38,405,236   50,000   -     38,455,236   20   31,657,239   2,313,739   -     33,970,978   4,484,258
 Plant and machinery :
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)  312,859,919   97,623,517   32,218,521   378,264,915   3.33   123,726,995   16,557,590   12,589,849   127,694,736   250,570,179
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)  1,393,360,294   9,977,358   7,311,381   1,396,026,271   3.33   143,048,022   50,145,572   826,308   192,367,286   1,203,658,985
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)  316,261,704   3,166,310   2,790,227   316,637,787   3.33   133,537,501   13,177,913   2,790,227   143,925,187   172,712,600
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)  956,423,751   21,464,648   15,900,942   961,987,457   3.33   124,302,886   31,090,986   15,900,942   139,492,930   822,494,527
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)  333,786,477   90,132,305   27,825,735   396,093,047   3.33   125,659,024   14,622,097   12,988,133   127,292,988   268,800,059
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)  562,423,950   27,974,189   21,660,784   568,737,355   3.33   75,676,850   19,664,654   16,668,153   78,673,351   490,064,004

 total (i)  3,972,822,256   270,502,106   108,742,590   4,134,581,772    793,589,786   154,996,397   62,798,612   885,787,571   3,248,794,201

ii)  Revaluation
 Civil works and others  13,002,138   -     -     13,002,138   20   5,200,856   2,600,428   -     7,801,284   5,200,854
 Plant and machinery :
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)  166,227,903   -     -     166,227,903   3.33   10,250,619   4,709,744   -     14,960,363   151,267,540
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)  3,310,422   -     -     3,310,422   3.33   204,142   93,796   -     297,938   3,012,484
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)  161,663,341   -     -     161,663,341   3.33   9,969,140   4,580,416   -     14,549,556   147,113,785
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)  79,752,991   -     -     79,752,991   3.33   4,918,050   2,259,644   -     7,177,694   72,575,297
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)  146,384,742   -     -     146,384,742   3.33   9,026,971   4,147,528   -     13,174,499   133,210,243
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)  16,317,466   -     -     16,317,466   3.33   1,006,234   462,324   -     1,468,558   14,848,908

 total (ii)  586,659,003   -     -     586,659,003    40,576,012   18,853,880   -     59,429,892   527,229,111

 total own assets (i+ii)  4,559,481,259   270,502,106   108,742,590   4,721,240,775    834,165,798   173,850,277   62,798,612   945,217,463   3,776,023,312

Leased assets:
Motor vehicles  19,987,000   3,238,000   -     23,225,000   20   9,167,381   2,973,994   -     12,141,375   11,083,625

total assets  4,579,468,259   273,740,106   108,742,590   4,744,465,775    843,333,179   176,824,271   62,798,612   957,358,838   3,787,106,937

*Opening cost of maintenance equipment includes Tk 748,689 which is fully depreciated and therefore, no depreciation has been charged during the year.
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Property, plant and equipment (contd..)

5.1 Allocation of depreciation

 2011   2011   2010   2010
 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Cost of sales (Note 34)  444,344,796   161,512,264   314,448,975   144,889,383
Consolidated general and administrative expenses (Note 36):
 Own assets  14,303,906   12,338,013   7,406,104   5,820,655
 Leased assets  7,365,058   2,973,994   8,298,124   3,645,678

  21,668,964   15,312,007   15,704,228   9,466,333
  466,013,760   176,824,271   330,153,203   154,355,716

As At 31 deceMber 2010 (cOnsOLIdAted)

 COST/REVALUATION DEPRECIATION

 Balance as at  Addition   Disposal  Balance as at   Balance as at   Charged   Disposal/  Balance as at  Written down
   Particulars 1 January  during   during  31 December Rate  1 January   during   adjustment  31 December  value as at
 2010  the year   the year  2010   2010   the year   during the year  2010  31 Dec 2010
 Taka  Taka   Taka  Taka %  Taka   Taka   Taka  Taka  Taka

Own assets:
i)    Cost
 Land and land development   113,951,915   187,057,042   -     301,008,957   -     -     -     -     -     301,008,957
 Furniture and fi xtures   4,048,997   3,563,240   -     7,612,237   10   1,244,149   468,191   -     1,712,340   5,899,897
 Offi  ce and electrical equipment   13,494,941   2,720,984   -     16,215,925   20   8,109,983   1,364,364   -     9,474,347   6,741,578
 Offi  ce decoration   13,050,534   485,472   -     13,536,006   20   11,405,257   467,185   -     11,872,442   1,663,564
 Motor vehicles   13,395,929   14,459,550   -     27,855,479   20   12,534,273   648,141   -     13,182,414   14,673,065
 Maintenance equipment   2,076,022   -     -     2,076,022   20   1,398,364   166,031   -     1,564,395   511,627
 Civil works and others   33,968,430   6,502,777   -     40,471,207   20   30,317,929   1,691,764   -     32,009,693   8,461,514
 Plant and machinery :
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)   312,859,919   -     -     312,859,919   3.33   113,170,507   10,556,488   -     123,726,995   189,132,924
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)   1,393,360,295   -     -     1,393,360,295   3.33   98,229,694   44,818,328   -     143,048,022   1,250,312,273
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)   315,706,193   555,512   -     316,261,705   3.33   121,419,885   12,117,616   -     133,537,501   182,724,204
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)   956,423,751   -     -     956,423,751   3.33   93,224,111   31,078,775   -     124,302,886   832,120,865
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)   332,953,208   833,268   -     333,786,476   3.33   114,186,437   11,472,587   -     125,659,024   208,127,452
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)   562,423,950   -     -     562,423,950   3.33   57,084,713   18,592,137   -     75,676,850   486,747,100
  Jangalia Power Plant   1,456,277,983   45,000   -     1,456,322,983   3.33   25,486,618   51,040,100   -     76,526,718   1,379,796,265
  Rupganj Power Plant   1,399,836,163   -     -     1,399,836,163   3.33   27,845,938   49,157,223   -     77,003,161   1,322,833,002
  Maona Power Plant   1,344,963,958   536,124   -     1,345,500,082   3.33   28,393,279   47,289,473   -     75,682,752   1,269,817,330
  Ullapara Power Plant   491,788,529   551,760   -     492,340,289   3.33   14,511,814   22,072,796   -     36,584,610   455,755,679

total (i)   8,760,580,717   217,310,729   -     8,977,891,446    758,562,951   303,001,199   -     1,061,564,150   7,916,327,296

ii)  Revaluation
 Land and land development   -     207,572,500   -     207,572,500    -     -     -     -     207,572,500
 Civil works and others   13,002,138   -     -     13,002,138   20   2,600,428   2,600,428   -     5,200,856   7,801,282
 Plant and machinery :      -
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)   166,227,903   -     -     166,227,903   3.33   5,540,875   4,709,744   -     10,250,619   155,977,284
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)   3,310,422   -     -     3,310,422   3.33   110,346   93,796   -     204,142   3,106,280
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)   161,663,341   -     -     161,663,341   3.33   5,388,724   4,580,416   -     9,969,140   151,694,201
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)   79,752,991   -     -     79,752,991   3.33   2,658,406   2,259,644   -     4,918,050   74,834,941
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)   146,384,742   -     -     146,384,742   3.33   4,879,443   4,147,528   -     9,026,971   137,357,771
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)   16,317,466   -     -     16,317,466   3.33   543,910   462,324   -     1,006,234   15,311,232

total (ii)  586,659,003   207,572,500   -     794,231,503    21,722,132   18,853,880   -     40,576,012   753,655,491
total own assets (i+ii)  9,347,239,720   424,883,229   -     9,772,122,949    780,285,083   321,855,079   -     1,102,140,162   8,669,982,787
Leased assets:
Motor vehicles  36,639,481   4,310,500   -     40,949,981    10,393,346   8,298,124   -     18,691,470   22,258,511

total assets  4,548,743,329   5,042,728,565   20,192   9,591,451,702    790,678,429   330,153,203   -     1,120,831,632   8,692,241,298
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summit power limited

Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

Property, plant and equipment (contd..)

As At 31 deceMber 2010 (sePArAte)

 COST/REVALUATION DEPRECIATION

 Balance as at  Addition   Disposal  Balance as at   Balance as at   Charged   Disposal/  Balance as at  Written down
   Particulars 1 January  during   during  31 December Rate  1 January   during   adjustment  31 December  value as at
 2010  the year   the year  2010   2010   the year   during the year  2010  31 Dec 2010
 Taka  Taka   Taka  Taka %  Taka   Taka   Taka  Taka  Taka

Own assets:
i)    Cost
 Furniture and fi xtures   2,896,248   1,940,931   -     4,837,179   10   1,181,934   250,527    1,432,461   3,404,718
 Offi  ce and electrical equipment   9,473,690   2,279,034   -     11,752,724   20   7,685,491   512,886   -     8,198,377   3,554,347
 Offi  ce decoration   13,031,134   263,420   -     13,294,554   20   11,405,257   427,621   -     11,832,878   1,461,676
 Motor vehicles   13,395,929   14,459,550   -     27,855,479   20   12,534,273   648,141   -     13,182,414   14,673,065
 Maintenance equipment   1,560,989   -     -     1,560,989   20   1,295,357   39,783   -     1,335,140   225,849
 Civil works and others   33,788,677   4,616,559   -     38,405,236   20   30,315,970   1,341,269   -     31,657,239   6,747,997
 Plant and machinery :
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)   312,859,919   -     -     312,859,919   3.33   113,170,507   10,556,488   -     123,726,995   189,132,924
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)   1,393,360,295   -     -     1,393,360,295   3.33   98,229,694   44,818,328   -     143,048,022   1,250,312,273
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)   315,706,193   555,512   -     316,261,705   3.33   121,419,885   12,117,616   -     133,537,501   182,724,204
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)   956,423,751   -     -     956,423,751   3.33   93,224,111   31,078,775   -     124,302,886   832,120,865
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)   332,953,208   833,268   -     333,786,476   3.33   114,186,437   11,472,587   -     125,659,024   208,127,452
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)   562,423,950   -     -     562,423,950   3.33   57,084,713   18,592,137   -     75,676,850   486,747,100

total (i)   3,947,873,983   24,948,274   -     3,972,822,257    661,733,629   131,856,158   -     793,589,787   3,179,232,470

ii) Revaluation
 Civil works and others   13,002,138   -     -     13,002,138   20   2,600,428   2,600,428   -     5,200,856   7,801,282
 Plant and machinery :     
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)   166,227,903   -     -     166,227,903   3.33   5,540,875   4,709,744   -     10,250,619   155,977,284
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)   3,310,422   -     -     3,310,422   3.33   110,346   93,796   -     204,142   3,106,280
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)   161,663,341   -     -     161,663,341   3.33   5,388,724   4,580,416   -     9,969,140   151,694,201
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)   79,752,991   -     -     79,752,991   3.33   2,658,406   2,259,644   -     4,918,050   74,834,941
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)   146,384,742   -     -     146,384,742   3.33   4,879,443   4,147,528   -     9,026,971   137,357,771
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)   16,317,466   -     -     16,317,466   3.33   543,910   462,324   -     1,006,234   15,311,232

total (ii)  586,659,003   -     -     586,659,003    21,722,132   18,853,880   -     40,576,012   546,082,991

total own assets (i+ii)  4,534,532,986   24,948,274   -     4,559,481,260    683,455,761   150,710,038   -     834,165,799   3,725,315,461

Leased assets:
Motor vehicles  19,987,000   -     -     19,987,000   20   5,521,703   3,645,678   -     9,167,381   10,819,619

total assets  4,554,519,986   24,948,274   -     4,579,468,260    688,977,464   154,355,716   -     843,333,180   3,736,135,080
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Property, plant and equipment (contd..)

As At 1 JAnUAry 2010 (cOnsOLIdAted)

 COST/REVALUATION DEPRECIATION

 Balance as at  Addition   Disposal  Balance as at   Balance as at   Charged   Disposal/  Balance as at  Written down
    Particulars 1 January  during   during  31 December Rate  1 January   during   adjustment  31 December  value as at
 2009  the year   the year  2009  2009  the year   during the year  2009  31 Dec 2009
 Taka  Taka   Taka  Taka %  Taka   Taka   Taka  Taka  Taka

Own assets:
i)    Cost
 Land and land development   -     113,951,915   -     113,951,915   -     -     -     -     -     113,951,915
 Furniture and fi xtures   1,943,327   2,105,670   -     4,048,997   10   960,525   283,624   -     1,244,149   2,804,848
 Offi  ce and electrical equipment   8,778,942   4,715,999   -     13,494,941   20   6,883,012   1,226,971   -     8,109,983   5,384,958
 Offi  ce decoration   13,020,634   29,900   -     13,050,534   20   9,361,160   2,044,097   -     11,405,257   1,645,277
 Motor vehicles   11,947,621   1,468,500   20,192   13,395,929   20   11,457,518   1,096,947   20,192   12,534,273   861,656
 Maintenance equipment   1,662,189   413,833   -     2,076,022   20   1,106,587   291,777   -     1,398,364   677,658
 Civil works and others   32,449,897   1,518,533   -     33,968,430   20   24,241,687   6,076,242   -     30,317,929   3,650,501
 Plant and machinery :           -
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)   312,859,919   -     -     312,859,919   3.33   102,449,674   10,720,833   -     113,170,507   199,689,412
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)   1,393,360,295   -     -     1,393,360,295   3.33   53,401,135   44,828,559   -     98,229,694   1,295,130,601
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)   315,706,193   -     -     315,706,193   3.33   109,288,459   12,131,426   -     121,419,885   194,286,308
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)   956,423,751   -     -     956,423,751   3.33   62,149,407   31,074,704   -     93,224,111   863,199,640
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)   332,953,208   -     -     332,953,208   3.33   102,699,802   11,486,635   -     114,186,437   218,766,771
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)   562,423,950   -     -     562,423,950   3.33   38,498,681   18,586,032   -     57,084,713   505,339,237
  Jangalia Power Plant   -     1,456,277,983   -     1,456,277,983   3.33   -     25,486,618   -     25,486,618   1,430,791,365
  Rupganj Power Plant   -     1,399,836,163   -     1,399,836,163   3.33   -     27,845,938   -     27,845,938   1,371,990,225
  Maona Power Plant   -     1,344,963,958   -     1,344,963,958   3.33   -     28,393,279   -     28,393,279   1,316,570,679
  Ullapara Power Plant   -     491,788,529   -     491,788,529   3.33   -     14,511,814   -     14,511,814   477,276,715

total (i)   3,943,529,926   4,817,070,983   20,192   8,760,580,717    522,497,647   236,085,496   20,192   758,562,951   8,002,017,766

ii) Revaluation
 Land and land development   -     207,572,500   -     207,572,500    -     -     -     -     207,572,500
 Civil works and others   13,002,138   -     -     13,002,138   20   -     2,600,428   -     2,600,428   10,401,710
 Plant and machinery :      
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)   166,227,903   -     -     166,227,903   3.33   -     5,540,875   -     5,540,875   160,687,028
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)   3,310,422   -     -     3,310,422   3.33   -     110,346   -     110,346   3,200,076
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)   161,663,341   -     -     161,663,341   3.33   -     5,388,724   -     5,388,724   156,274,617
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)   79,752,991   -     -     79,752,991   3.33   -     2,658,406   -     2,658,406   77,094,585
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)   146,384,742   -     -     146,384,742   3.33   -     4,879,443   -     4,879,443   141,505,299
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)   16,317,466   -     -     16,317,466   3.33   -     543,910   -     543,910   15,773,556

total (ii)  586,659,003   207,572,500   -     794,231,503    -     21,722,132   -     21,722,132   772,509,371

total own assets (i+ii)  4,530,188,929   5,024,643,483   20,192   9,554,812,220    522,497,647   257,807,628   20,192   780,285,083   8,774,527,137

Leased assets:
Motor vehicles  18,554,400   18,085,081   -     36,639,481    4,959,330   5,434,016   -     10,393,346   26,246,135

total assets  4,548,743,329   5,042,728,565   20,192   9,591,451,702    527,456,977   263,241,644   20,192   790,678,429   8,800,773,272
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

Property, plant and equipment (contd..)

As At 1 JAnUAry 2010 (sePArAte)

 COST/REVALUATION DEPRECIATION

 Balance as at  Addition   Disposal  Balance as at   Balance as at   Charged   Disposal/  Balance as at  Written down
    Particulars 1 January  during   during  31 December Rate  1 January   during   adjustment  31 December  value as at
 2009  the year   the year  2009  2009  the year   during the year  2009  31 Dec 2009
 Taka  Taka   Taka  Taka %  Taka   Taka   Taka  Taka  Taka

Own assets:
i)    Cost
 Furniture and fi xtures   1,943,327   952,921   -     2,896,248   10   960,525   221,409    1,181,934   1,714,314
 Offi  ce and electrical equipment   8,220,242   1,253,448   -     9,473,690   20   6,793,081   892,410   -     7,685,491   1,788,199
 Offi  ce decoration   13,020,634   10,500   -     13,031,134   20   9,361,160   2,044,097   -     11,405,257   1,625,877
 Motor vehicles   11,947,621   1,468,500   20,192   13,395,929   20   11,457,518   1,096,947   20,192   12,534,273   861,656
 Maintenance equipment   1,545,989   15,000   -     1,560,989   20   1,106,587   188,770   -     1,295,357   265,632
 Civil works and others   32,449,897   1,338,780   -     33,788,677   20   24,241,687   6,074,283   -     30,315,970   3,472,707
 Plant and machinery :
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)   312,859,919   -     -     312,859,919   3.33   102,449,674   10,720,833   -     113,170,507   199,689,412
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)   1,393,360,295   -     -     1,393,360,295   3.33   53,401,135   44,828,559   -     98,229,694   1,295,130,601
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)   315,706,193   -     -     315,706,193   3.33   109,288,459   12,131,426   -     121,419,885   194,286,308
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)   956,423,751   -     -     956,423,751   3.33   62,149,407   31,074,704   -     93,224,111   863,199,640
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)   332,953,208   -     -     332,953,208   3.33   102,699,802   11,486,635   -     114,186,437   218,766,771
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)   562,423,950   -     -     562,423,950   3.33   38,498,681   18,586,032   -     57,084,713   505,339,237

total (i)   3,942,855,026   5,039,149   20,192   3,947,873,983    438,652,031   139,346,105   20,192   661,733,629   3,286,140,354

ii) Revaluation
 Civil works and others   13,002,138   -     -     13,002,138   20   -     2,600,428   -     2,600,428   10,401,710
 Plant and machinery :      
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-1)   166,227,903   -     -     166,227,903   3.33   -     5,540,875   -     5,540,875   160,687,028
  Savar Power Plant (Unit-2)   3,310,422   -     -     3,310,422   3.33   -     110,346   -     110,346   3,200,076
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-1)   161,663,341   -     -     161,663,341   3.33   -     5,388,724   -     5,388,724   156,274,617
  Narsingdi Power Plant (Unit-2)   79,752,991   -     -     79,752,991   3.33   -     2,658,406   -     2,658,406   77,094,585
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-1)   146,384,742   -     -     146,384,742   3.33   -     4,879,443   -     4,879,443   141,505,299
  Chandina Power Plant (Unit-2)   16,317,466   -     -     16,317,466   3.33   -     543,910   -     543,910   15,773,556

total (ii)  586,659,003   -     -     586,659,003    -     21,722,132   -     21,722,132   564,936,871

total own assets (i+ii)  4,529,514,029   5,039,149   20,192   4,534,532,986    438,652,031   161,068,237   20,192   683,455,761   3,851,077,225

Leased assets:
Motor vehicles  5,187,000   14,800,000   -     19,987,000   20   3,354,800   2,166,903   -     5,521,703   14,465,297

total assets  4,534,701,029   19,839,149   20,192   4,554,519,986    442,006,831   163,235,140   20,192   688,977,464   3,865,542,522
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6. capital work in progress

  Addition   Transfer
 Balance as at   during   to PPE during    Closing
 1 January   the year   this year   Balance
 Taka   Taka   Taka  Taka

As at 31 December 2011
Plant and machinery  3,146,214,982   1,059,678,274   (4,205,893,256)  -
Other payments related to project development  375,041,617   286,729,186   (661,770,803)  -

 3,521,256,599   1,346,407,460   (4,867,664,059)  -
As at 31 December 2010
Plant and machinery  -     3,146,214,982   -     3,146,214,982
Other payment related to project development  -     375,041,617   -     375,041,617

 -     3,521,256,599   -     3,521,256,599

7. intangible assets

 As At 31 deceMber 2011 (cOnsOLIdAted)

  cOst   AMOrtIsAtIOn   Written down
 Balance as at Addition Balance as at Balance as at Charged  Balance as at   value as at
  Particulars 1 January during 31 December 1 January during  31 December   31 December
 2011 the year 2011 2011 the year 2011 2011

 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka  Taka   Taka

IT software  2,004,238   -     2,004,238   698,346   349,598   1,047,944   956,294
Brand  10,000,000   -     10,000,000   666,662   333,332   999,994   9,000,006
 12,004,238   -     12,004,238   1,365,008   682,930   2,047,938   9,956,300

 As At 31 deceMber 2011 (sePArAte)

  cOst   AMOrtIsAtIOn   Written down
 Balance as at Addition Balance as at Balance as at Charged  Balance as at   value as at
  Particulars 1 January during 31 December 1 January during  31 December   31 December
 2011 the year 2011 2011 the year 2011 2011

 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka  Taka   Taka

IT software  1,504,238   -     1,504,238   627,512   249,598   877,110   627,128
Brand   10,000,000   -     10,000,000   666,662   333,332   999,994   9,000,006

 11,504,238   -     11,504,238   1,294,174   582,930   1,877,104   9,627,134

Opening cost of IT software includes Tk 256,250 which is fully depreciated as on 1 January 2011 and therefore, no depreciation has been charged during the year.
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

Intangible assets (contd..)

 As At 31 deceMber 2010 (cOnsOLIdAted)

  cOst   AMOrtIsAtIOn   Written down
 Balance as at Addition Balance as at Balance as at Charged  Balance as at   value as at
   Particulars 1 January during 31 December 1 January during  31 December   31 December
 2010 the year 2010 2010 the year 2010 2010

 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka  Taka   Taka

IT software   1,754,238   250,000   2,004,238   408,999   289,347   698,346   1,305,892
Brand   10,000,000  -  10,000,000   333,330   333,332   666,662   9,333,338
 11,754,238   250,000   12,004,238   742,329   622,679   1,365,008   10,639,230

 As At 31 deceMber 2010 (sePArAte)

  cOst   AMOrtIsAtIOn   Written down
 Balance as at Addition Balance as at Balance as at Charged  Balance as at   value as at
   Particulars 1 January during 31 December 1 January during  31 December   31 December
 2010 the year 2010 2010 the year 2010 2010

 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka  Taka   Taka

IT software   1,504,238   -     1,504,238   404,832   222,680   627,512   876,726
Brand    10,000,000  -  10,000,000   333,330   333,332   666,662   9,333,338
 11,504,238   -     11,504,238   738,162   556,012   1,294,174   10,210,064

 As At 1 JAnUAry 2010 (cOnsOLIdAted)

  cOst   AMOrtIsAtIOn   Written down
 Balance as at Addition Balance as at Balance as at Charged  Balance as at   value as at
   Particulars 1 January during 31 December 1 January during  31 December   31 December
 2009 the year 2009 2009 the year 2009 2009

 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka  Taka   Taka

IT software   270,250   1,483,988   1,754,238   239,900   169,099   408,999   1,345,239
Brand   10,000,000  -  10,000,000   -     333,330   333,330   9,666,670
 10,270,250   1,483,988   11,754,238   239,900   502,429   742,329   11,011,909

 As At 1 JAnUAry 2010 (sePArAte)

  cOst   AMOrtIsAtIOn   Written down
 Balance as at Addition Balance as at Balance as at Charged  Balance as at   value as at
   Particulars 1 January during 31 December 1 January during  31 December   31 December
 2009 the year 2009 2009 the year 2009 2009

 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka  Taka   Taka

IT software   270,250   1,233,988   1,504,238   239,900   164,932   404,832   1,099,406
Brand    10,000,000  -  10,000,000   -     333,330   333,330   9,666,670

 10,270,250   1,233,988   11,504,238   239,900   498,262   738,162   10,766,076
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8. investment in subsidiaries

  As at   As at   As at
 % of holdings  31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010 1 Jan 2010
  Taka   Taka   Taka

Summit Purbanchol Power Company Limited (SPPCL) 99%  571,020,100   571,020,100   571,020,100
Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited (SUPCL) 51.48%  202,519,250   389,460,100   389,460,100
Summit Narayanganj Power Limited (SNPL) 55%  866,250,000   520,000,000   -

  1,639,789,350   1,480,480,200   960,480,200

 On 28 December 2011, Summit Power Limited (SPL) has acquired  53,955,326 shares of Khulna Power Company Limited (KPCL) @ Taka 67 each 
from Summit Industrial and Mercantile Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. (SIMCL). To acquire these shares, SPL has transferred 22,432,900 shares of Summit 
Uttaranchol Power Company Limited (SUPCL) to SIMCL @ Taka 45 each,  taken short term loan of Tk. 1,905,526,342 @ 15% per annum from SIMCL 
and paid the balancing amount Taka 700,000,000 in cash. Now the SPL’s ownership in KPCL and SUPCL is 18.7% and 51.48% respectively. Since the 
percentage of  ownership in KPCL is below the threshold limit of 20% to recognise KPCL as an associate, management classifi ed such investment 
as Available for Sale (AFS).

9. investment in associates

  As at   As at   As at
 % of holdings  31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010 1 Jan 2010
  Taka   Taka   Taka

Summit Saidpur Power Limited 49%  5,000,000   -     -
Summit Shantahar Power Limited 49%  5,000,000   -     -

  10,000,000   -     -

Summit Saidpur Power Limited and Summit Shantahar Power Limited were incorporated in Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994 as Private 
Limited Company on 10 February 2011. The principal activity of both the companies is to set up power plants for generation and supply of 
electricity. Both the companies have been awarded with two power projects on Build, Own and Operate (BOO) basis in 2011. The companies are in 
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) signing phase for both the projects.

10. Available-for-sale fi nancial assets

   As at    Change in
  Name of the company As at 31 December 2011 31 Dec 2010 Cost price fair value
 No. of shares   Market value   Market value   during the year
  Taka Taka Taka Taka

Khulna Power Company Limited (KPCL)  53,955,326   3,388,394,473   -     3,616,814,345   (228,419,872)
People’s Leasing and Financial Services   272,585   18,808,365   45,342,641   20,500,000   (26,534,276)
Popular Life First Mutual Fund  1,000,000   6,900,000   11,900,000   10,000,000   (5,000,000)

 55,227,911   3,414,102,838   57,242,641.00   3,647,314,345.00   (259,954,148)

 Summit Power Limited (SPL) acquired 53,955,326 shares of Khulna Power Company Limited (KPCL), representing 18.7% of KPCL’s paid-up capital 
@ Taka 67 per share having face value of Taka 10 each from Summit Industrial & Mercantile Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. (SIMCL). The transaction was 
completed on 28 December 2011 after receiving due approval from the Securities & Exchange Commission. The Company has incurred transaction 
costs of Taka 1,807,503 relating to share transfer which has been considered as investment in equity.
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summit power limited

Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

11. inventories

 As At 31 deceMber 2011 (cOnsOLIdAted)

 Balance as at  Purchase/ transfer Inter-company Consumption/ Inter-company Balance as at
  Particulars 1 January during the year transfer-in transfer transfer-out 31 December
 2011  during the year during the year during the year 2011  
 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

stock in hand
Spare parts  212,492,768   806,606,401   -     (439,746,970)  -     579,352,199
Fuel  16,800,960   202,053,408   -     (164,292,191)  -     54,562,177
 229,293,728   1,008,659,809   -     (604,039,161)  -     633,914,376

stock in transit
Spare parts  50,777,365   821,519,427   -     (854,872,519)  -     17,424,273
 50,777,365   821,519,427   -     (854,872,519)  -     17,424,273

total  280,071,093       651,338,649

Consolidated closing balance of inventories includes spare parts amounting to Taka 199,000,000 which are of capital nature. These spare parts 
would be utilised in 2012 for major overhauling of plant and machinery.

 As At 31 deceMber 2011 (sePArAte)

 Balance as at  Purchase/ transfer Inter-company Consumption/ Inter-company Balance as at
  Particulars 1 January during the year transfer-in transfer transfer-out 31 December
 2011  during the year during the year during the year 2011  
 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

stock in hand
Spare parts  166,491,600   584,510,829   3,843,225   (326,186,377)  (11,692,163)  416,967,114
Fuel  8,361,495   46,188,928   19,265   (48,563,617)  (17,752)  5,988,319
 174,853,095   630,699,757   3,862,490   (374,749,994)  (11,709,915)  422,955,433

stock in transit
Spare parts  49,478,122   561,808,906   -     (607,468,238)  -     3,818,790
 49,478,122   561,808,906   -     (607,468,238)  -     3,818,790

total  224,331,217       426,774,223

 As At 31 deceMber 2010 (cOnsOLIdAted)

 Balance as at  Purchase/ transfer Inter-company Consumption/ Inter-company Balance as at
  Particulars 1 January during the year transfer-in transfer transfer-out 31 December
 2010  during the year during the year during the year 2010 
 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

stock in hand
Spare parts   186,537,053   147,029,813   -     (121,074,098)  -     212,492,768
Fuel  19,427,863   73,579,889   -     (76,206,791)  -     16,800,961
 205,964,916   220,609,702   -     (197,280,889)  -     229,293,729

stock in transit
Spare parts   -     147,368,233   -     (96,590,868)  -     50,777,365
 -     147,368,233   -     (96,590,868)  -     50,777,365
 205,964,916      280,071,094
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 As At 31 deceMber 2010 (sePArAte)

 Balance as at  Purchase/ transfer Inter-company Consumption/ Inter-company Balance as at
   Particulars 1 January during the year transfer-in transfer transfer-out 31 December
 2010  during the year during the year during the year 2010 
 Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

stock in hand
Spare parts  159,851,551   92,529,504   7,725,642   (86,485,960)  (7,129,138)  166,491,599
Fuel  10,726,469   33,860,662   419,016   (34,539,153)  (2,105,498)  8,361,496
 170,578,020   126,390,166   8,144,658   (121,025,113)  (9,234,636)  174,853,095

stock in transit
Spare parts  -     103,178,103   -     (53,699,981)  -     49,478,122
 -     103,178,103   -     (53,699,981)  -     49,478,122
total 170,578,020       224,331,217

12. trade receivables

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Rural Electrifi cation Board (REB):
 Dhaka Palli Bidyut Samity - 1  16,962,103   16,962,103   19,163,543   19,163,543   14,865,333   14,865,333
 Dhaka Palli Bidyut Samity - 1 (Expansion)  81,793,950   81,793,950   37,434,909   37,434,909   40,969,685   40,969,685
 Narsingdi Palli Bidyut Samity - 1  13,603,132   13,603,132   14,429,556   14,429,556   15,979,012   15,979,012
 Narsingdi Palli Bidyut Samity - 1 (Expansion)  54,257,727   54,257,727   29,284,010   29,284,010   32,000,527   32,000,527
 Comilla Palli Bidyut Samity - 1  13,523,063   13,523,063   14,738,170   14,738,170   15,896,762   15,896,762
 Comilla Palli Bidyut Samity - 1 (Expansion)  27,293,727   27,293,727   19,656,410   19,656,410   19,538,323   19,538,323
 Narayanganj Palli Bidyut Samity (REB)  80,178,900   -     93,870,254   -     39,629,541   -
 Mymensingh Palli Bidyut Samity (PBS) - 2  99,023,054   -     101,666,977   -     91,554,228   -
 Sirajganj Palli Bidyut Samity  30,518,254   -     30,943,640   -     31,555,104   -
Bangladesh Power Development Board - Comilla  105,410,908   -     92,206,188   -     91,484,499   -
Bangladesh Power Development Board - Narayanganj  461,088,275   -     -     -     -     -

  983,653,093   207,433,702   453,393,657   134,706,598   393,473,014   139,249,642
Less : Provision for doubtful debt  4,084,928   -     -     -     -     -

  979,568,165   207,433,702   453,393,657   134,706,598   393,473,014   139,249,642

13. other  receivables

Green Delta Insurance Co. Ltd.  77,555,828   77,555,828   28,383,837   28,383,837   28,383,837   28,383,837
Interest on FDRs  5,422,605   5,422,605   42,589,857   42,227,357   -     -
Sale of scrap  -     -     1,604,984   -     -     -
VAT deducted at sources  22,195,381   17,742,123   22,195,381   17,742,123   23,272,559   17,742,123

 105,173,814   100,720,556   94,774,059   88,353,317   51,656,396   46,125,960
Less: provision for doubtful debt  (888,771)  -     -     -     -     -

 104,285,043   100,720,556   94,774,059   88,353,317   51,656,396   46,125,960

Insurance claim has arisen against damages of power plants situated at Ashulia and Chandina for both the CAT and WAT plants.
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

VAT had been deducted at source by Rural Electrifi cation Board (REB) under the purview of regulations declared by the National Board of Revenue (NBR). 
In accordance with PPA, “Nothing herein, however, shall in any way limit or override any provisions of the Implementation Agreement, that provide certain 
Tax exemptions or this Agreement, that allow certain Taxes and charges to be reimbursed to the Company in accordance with Article X of this Agreement”. 
However, collection of outstanding from REB is in process.

14. inter company receivables

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Summit Purbanchol Power Company Limited  -     212,706,545   -     314,229,502   -     -
Summit Uttranchol  Power Company Limited  -     283,856,073   -     247,873,067   -     -
Summit Narayanganj Power Limited  -     29,876,070   -     43,390,277   -     -

 -     526,438,688   -     605,492,846   -     -

15. due from associates

Summit Saidpur Power Limited  1,897,864   1,897,864   -     -     -     -
Summit Shantahar Power Limited  848,931   848,931   -     -     -     -

  2,746,795   2,746,795
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16. Advances, deposits and prepayments

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Advances:
 Advance to fi nancial advisor  2,000,000   2,000,000   -     -     -     -
 Advance income tax  38,675,616   38,675,616   -     -     -     -
 Advance to suppliers  7,176,482   1,723,695   23,549,242   18,014,121   1,376,602   894,721
 Advance to employees  445,000   445,000   1,379,349   505,500   545,000   545,000

  48,297,098   42,844,311   24,928,591   18,519,621   1,921,602   1,439,721
 Less: provision for doubtful debt  (445,000)  (445,000)  -     -     -     -

  47,852,098   42,399,311   24,928,591   18,519,621   1,921,602   1,439,721

deposits:
Security deposit (non-interest bearing)  5,246,545   905,995   1,413,979   905,995   1,136,407   968,933
Bank guarantee margin:
 Controller of Import and Export  1,828,758   1,828,758   1,828,758   1,828,758   1,783,127   1,783,127
 Paschimanchal Gas Co. Ltd.  823,441   -     823,441   -     823,441   -
 Bakhrabad Gas System Ltd.  2,470,323   -     2,470,323   -     2,470,323   -
 Bangladesh Power Development Board  3,936,823   -     3,936,823   -     3,936,823   -
 Rural Electrifi cation Board (REB)  9,260,359   -     9,260,359   -     9,260,359   -
 Titas Gas Trans. ‘and Dist. Co. Ltd.  4,940,646   -     4,940,646   -     4,940,646   -

  23,260,350   1,828,758   23,260,350   1,828,758   23,214,719   1,783,127

  28,506,895   2,734,753   24,674,329   2,734,753   24,351,126   2,752,060
Prepayments:
 Agency fees  702,602   -     351,301   -     -     -
 Annual license fees  2,000,000   -     -     -     -     -
 Standby letter of credit commission  715,257   487,991   612,826   612,826   701,584   701,584
 Operation bond commission  1,923,382   1,923,382   -     -     1,923,382   1,923,382
 Insurance premium  10,609,439   3,142,614   7,799,922   3,142,615   7,566,853   3,165,571
 Land lease rental  976,866   259,380   1,462,704   748,418   9,256,800   8,542,514
 Donation and subscription  1,508,131   1,508,131   -     -     -     -
  18,435,677   7,321,498   10,226,753   4,503,859   19,448,619   14,333,051

Inter-company transaction:
 Summit Indus. & Mercantile Corp. (Pvt.) Ltd.  5,639,200   5,639,200   7,445,440   7,445,440   -     -
 Cosmopolitan Traders (Pvt.) Limited  5,280,673   5,280,673   5,746,203   5,746,203   -     -
 Summit Shipping Limited  15,000,000   -     -     -     -     -

  25,919,873   10,919,873   13,191,643   13,191,643   -     -

  120,714,543   63,375,435   73,021,316   38,949,876   45,721,347   18,524,832

Bank guarantee margin had been deposited with various schedule banks in Bangladesh as security for compliance with the Company’s operation obligation, as 
disclosed in note 44.1 with BPDB, REB and others in accordance with the agreement.
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

17. cash and cash equivalents

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

cash in hand  1,272,202   1,137,202   928,470   793,470   557,670   452,670
cash at bank:
 AB Bank Limited  -     -     239   239   2,975   2,975
 Bank Al-Falah Limited  251,907   251,907   22,925   22,925   30,241   30,241
 Bank Asia Limited  1,354,635   -     2,965,822   -     83,154,511   -
 BRAC Bank Limited  519,149,344   3,699,585   14,879,121   1,495,381   124,338,033   -
 Mutual Trust Bank Limited  1,822,700   -     1,826,000   -     1,829,860   -
 NCC Bank Limited  1,259,287   -     2,364,283   -     1,353,268   -
 Sonali Bank Limited  325,188   -     485,781   -     76,341   -
 United Commercial Bank Limited  333,792   -     336,562   -     339,616   -
 Citibank, N.A.  2,821,650   2,684,220   2,613,929   2,266,979   2,412,552   2,267,982
 Dhaka Bank Limited  2,119,641   1,999,957   3,762,544   3,617,386   3,465,089   3,465,089
 Dutch-Bangla Bank Limited  58,528,424   42,116,318   56,726,826   31,845,846   59,350,231   58,104,081
 The Premier Bank Limited  60,366,678   58,421,029   20,601,940   13,284,029   7,659,248   4,958,953
 Rupali Bank Limited  77,345   77,345   74,487   74,487   253,019   253,019
 Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited  1,539,895   1,539,895   1,418,963   1,418,963   276,868   276,868
 Standard Chartered Bank  77,828,374   77,828,374   11,177,267   11,177,268   191,293,044   191,293,044
 One Bank Limited  8,669,901   8,669,901   1,218,695   972,181   498,827   498,827
 Southeast Bank Limited  245,994   245,994   245,640   245,640   245,762   245,762
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon  3,232,247   3,232,247   1,019,439   1,019,439   661,400   661,400
 Exim Bank Limited  238,077   -     318,875   -     322,370   -
  740,165,079   200,766,772   122,059,338   67,440,763   477,563,255   262,058,241

Fixed deposit receipts (Fdr):
 AB Bank Limited  -     -     100,000,000   100,000,000   -     -
 Bank Asia Limited  106,445,030   106,445,030   150,000,000   150,000,000   -     -
 Bangladesh Commercial Bank Ltd.  -     -     -     -     12,925,020   12,925,020
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  14,626,249   14,626,249   13,484,303   13,484,303   -     -
 Delta Brac Housing Limited  54,971,370   54,971,370   52,500,000   52,500,000   -     -
 Exim Bank Limited  50,000,000   50,000,000   110,000,000   110,000,000   -     -
 Jamuna Bank Limited  -     -     100,000,000   100,000,000   -     -
 Mercantile Bank Limited  113,558,507   113,558,507   150,000,000   100,000,000   -     -
 The Premier Bank Limited  -     -     425,000,000   425,000,000   -     -
 Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited  -     -     50,000,000   50,000,000   -     -
 Standard Bank Limited  -     -     100,000,000   100,000,000 - -
 United Commercial Bank Limited  -     -     10,000,000   10,000,000 - -

  339,601,156   339,601,156   1,260,984,303   1,210,984,303   12,925,020   12,925,020

  1,081,038,437   541,505,130   1,383,972,111   1,279,218,536   491,045,945   275,435,931
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18. share capital

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Authorised:
 300,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk 10 each  3,000,000,000   3,000,000,000   3,000,000,000   3,000,000,000   3,000,000,000   3,000,000,000
 400,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk 10 each  4,000,000,000   4,000,000,000   4,000,000,000   4,000,000,000   -     -
 30,000,000 preference shares of 100 each  3,000,000,000   3,000,000,000   3,000,000,000   3,000,000,000   -     -

  10,000,000,000   10,000,000,000   10,000,000,000   10,000,000,000   3,000,000,000   3,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:
 65,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk 10 each  650,000,000   650,000,000   650,000,000   650,000,000   650,000,000   650,000,000
 6,500,000 bonus shares of Tk 10 each in 2006  65,000,000   65,000,000   65,000,000   65,000,000   65,000,000   65,000,000
 14,300,000 bonus shares of Tk 10 each in 2007  143,000,000   143,000,000   143,000,000   143,000,000   143,000,000   143,000,000
 68,640,000 right shares of Tk 10 each in 2008  686,400,000   686,400,000   686,400,000   686,400,000   686,400,000   686,400,000
 30,888,000 bonus shares of Tk 10 each in 2008  308,880,000   308,880,000   308,880,000   308,880,000   308,880,000   308,880,000
 37,065,600 bonus shares of Tk. 10 each in 2009  370,656,000   370,656,000   370,656,000   370,656,000   370,656,000   370,656,000
 55,598,400 bonus shares of Tk. 10 each in 2010  555,984,000   555,984,000   555,984,000   555,984,000   -     -
 25,361,973 ordinary shares of Tk 10 each in 2010  253,619,730   253,619,730   253,619,730   253,619,730   -     -
 91,006,191 bonus shares of Tk. 10 each in 2011  910,061,910   910,061,910   -     -     -     -

  3,943,601,640   3,943,601,640   3,033,539,730   3,033,539,730   2,223,936,000   2,223,936,000

shareholding position was as follows:

  name of shareholders Percentage of shareholdings Value of shares (taka)
 As at   As at   As at   As at   As at   As at
 31 Dec 2011   31 Dec 2010   1 Jan 2010   31 Dec 2011   31 Dec 2010   1 Jan 2010

Summit Industrial & Mercantile Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd.  46.22   46.22   49.00   1,822,866,770   1,402,204,260   1,089,728,600
Euro Hub Investments Ltd.  5.14   5.14   5.38   202,819,430   156,016,230   119,750,400
Other shareholders  48.63   48.63   45.62   1,917,915,440   1,475,319,240   1,014,457,000
  100.00   100.00   100.00   3,943,601,640   3,033,539,730   2,223,936,000
classifi cation of shareholders by holding:

 number of holders  % of holdings

 As at   As at   As at   As at   As at   As at
 31 Dec 2011   31 Dec 2010   1 Jan 2010   31 Dec 2011   31 Dec 2010   1 Jan 2010

Less than 500 shares  27,819   33,265   17,657   1.22   2.70   8.16
500 to 5,000 shares  18,953   15,476   1,331   6.86   9.13   7.58
5,001 to 10,000 shares  1,184   978   69   2.09   2.72   2.18
10,001 to 20,000 shares  555   412   29   1.99   2.23   1.88
20,001 to 30,000 shares  170   153   12   1.06   1.47   1.32
30,001 to 40,000 shares  82   83   6   0.72   1.12   0.95
40,001 to 50,000 shares  57   50   4   0.67   0.89   0.81
50,001 to 100,000 shares  108   95   9   1.95   2.62   2.94
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares  136   122   12   12.87   14.69   10.20
1,000,001 to 10,000,000 shares  21   14   3   70.57   62.43   63.98

  49,085   50,648   19,132   100   100   100
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

19. share premium

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Share premium from issue of 2,000,000 shares in 2005  80,000,000   80,000,000   80,000,000   80,000,000   80,000,000   80,000,000
Share premium from issue of 6,864,000 shares in 2008  308,880,000   308,880,000   308,880,000   308,880,000   308,880,000   308,880,000
Share premium from issue of 25,361,973 shares in 2010  2,745,940,817   2,745,940,817   2,745,940,817   2,745,940,817   -     -

  3,134,820,817   3,134,820,817   3,134,820,817   3,134,820,817   388,880,000   388,880,000
Less: Transaction costs  234,123,160   234,123,160   226,347,220   226,347,220   -     -

  2,900,697,657   2,900,697,657   2,908,473,597   2,908,473,597   388,880,000   388,880,000

20. deposit from shareholders

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Balance as at 1 January  185,000,000   -     -     -     -     -
Receipts of share money deposit  478,750,000   -     185,000,000   -     -     -
Transferred to share capital  (663,750,000) - - - - -
balance as at 31 december  -     -     185,000,000   -     -     -

The amount for share money deposit has been received from Summit Industrial & Mercantile Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. for Madanganj, Narayanganj power project.

21. Non controlling interests

 As at   As at   As at
 31 Dec 2011   31 Dec 2010   1 Jan 2010
 Taka   Taka   Taka

Investment by Summit Industrial & Mercantile Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. (SIMCL) in:
Summit Purbanchol Power Company Limited  10,283,396   6,946,805   5,767,900
Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited  296,144,970   5,055,727   3,933,900
Summit Narayanganj Power Limited  706,398,544   45,000,000   -
Share of profi t in Summit Purbanchol Power Company Limited (1%)  3,952,699   3,336,591   1,178,905
Share of profi t in Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited (48.52%, 1%)  133,282,376   2,294,821   1,121,827
Share of profi t/(loss) in Summit Narayanganj Power Limited (45%)  423,551,033   (2,351,456)  -
Cash dividend paid   (1,275,799)  -     -

 1,572,337,219   60,282,488   12,002,532
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22. project loan

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Long term portion:

Expansion Project - Narsingdi and Chandina:
 Standard Chartered Bank  -     -     -     -     45,000,000   45,000,000
 Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd.  63,898,214   63,898,214   128,758,272   128,758,272   171,496,021   171,496,021
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  -     -     35,000,014   35,000,014   70,000,010   70,000,010
 Bank Al-Falah Limited  -     -     -     -     32,000,000   32,000,000
 The Premier Bank Limited  507,100   507,100   22,144,168   22,144,168   51,034,733   51,034,733
  64,405,314   64,405,314   185,902,454   185,902,454   369,530,764   369,530,764

Expansion Project - Savar:
 Standard Chartered Bank  -     -     -     -     535,714,274   535,714,274
  -     -     -     -     535,714,274   535,714,274

New projects syndication loan:
 IIDFC  -     -     -     -     3,503,682,968   -
  -     -     -     -     3,503,682,968   -

New project - Madanganj, Narayanganj:
 DEG and FMO  3,010,171,875   -     -     -     -     -
 Less: Transactions costs  71,763,244   -     -     -     -     -
 Add: Amortisation of transaction costs  8,383,447 - - - - -
  2,946,792,078   -     -     -     -     -
  3,011,197,392   64,405,314   185,902,454   185,902,454   4,408,928,006   905,245,038
short term portion:
Expansion Project - Narsingdi and Chandina:
 Standard Chartered Bank  -     -     45,000,000   45,000,000   60,000,000   60,000,000
 Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.  53,866,840   53,866,840   45,286,595   45,286,595   45,286,595   45,286,595
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  35,000,018   35,000,018   35,000,000   35,000,000   35,000,000   35,000,000
 Bank Al-Falah Limited  -     -     32,000,000   32,000,000   32,000,000   32,000,000
 The Premier Bank Limited  27,391,435   27,391,435   29,718,492   29,718,492   21,044,443   21,044,443
  116,258,293   116,258,293   187,005,087   187,005,087   193,331,038   193,331,038

Expansion Project - Savar
 Standard Chartered Bank  -     -     -     -     238,095,232   238,095,232
  -     -     -     -     238,095,232   238,095,232

New projects syndication loan
 IIDFC  -     -     -     -     583,947,162   -
  -     -     -     -     583,947,162   -

New project - Madanganj, Narayanganj:
 DEG and FMO  636,628,125 - - - - -
  636,628,125   -     -     -     -     -

  752,886,418   116,258,293   187,005,087   187,005,087   1,015,373,432   431,426,270
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Notes to the financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

Repayment term

i)	 Standard Chartered Bank

	 This is repayable in 20 quarterly instalments of  Taka 15,000,000 each commencing from December 2006 bearing interest at the rate ranging from 
13% to 14.5% per annum.

ii)	 The Premier Bank Limited

	 This is repayable in 24 quarterly instalments of  Taka 7,429,623 each (including interest) commencing from March 2007 bearing interest at the rate 
of 13% per annum.

iii)	 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

	 This is repayable in 24 quarterly instalments of  Taka 8,750,000 each commencing from March 2007 bearing  interest at the rate ranging from 11% 
to 13% per annum. Interest is also  payable on quarterly basis.

iv)	 Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

	 This is repayable in 24 quarterly instalments of  Taka 18,285,156 each (including interest) commencing from March 2008 bearing interest at the rate 
ranging from 11.50% to 14.5% per annum.

v)	 Bank Al-Falah Limited

	 This is repayable in 20 quarterly instalments of  Taka 8,000,000 each commencing from March 2007 bearing interest at the rate ranging from 
11.50% to 14.66% per annum. Interest is also  payable on quarterly basis.

Security details

i)	 Standard Chartered Bank

	 The loan from Standard Chartered Bank is secured by the plant and machinery and other assets of the Company.

ii)	 The Premier Bank Limited

	 The loan from The Premier Bank Limited is secured by pari-passu charge with other lenders on the fixed and floating assets of the company.

iii)	 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

	 The loan from Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC is secured by pari-passu charge with other lenders on the fixed and floating assets of the expansion 
plant of the Company.

iv)	 Dutch-Bangla Bank Limited

	 The loan from Dutch-Bangla Bank Limited is secured by pari-passu charge with other lenders on the fixed and floating assets of the company.

v)	 Bank Al-Falah Limited

	 The loan from Bank Al-Falah Limited is secured by first charge on the expansion plant and machinery of the power plant at Chandina, Comilla and 
Madhabdi, Narsingdi of the company.

	 Industrial & Infrastructure Development Finance Co. Limited (IIDFC) along with other banks has arranged syndicated loan Tk. 3,950,000,000 as 
lead arranger in 2008. From this amount, Summit Purbanchol Power Company Limited and Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited have 
availed Tk 2,472,702,943 and Tk 1,614,927,187 respectively. The interest rate of this syndicated loan is13 - 14% per annum, subject to semi-annual 
review by the agent and the lenders, from the date of first advance. The first advance was made on 22 September 2008. The moratorium period 
of this syndicated loan is of 21 months/7 quarters commencing from the date of first advance. All the outstanding loan has been converted into 
redeemable preference shares on 12 August 2010.

	 Summit Narayanganj Power Limited, has taken project loan in foreign currency amounting to USD 45,000,000 from NEDERLANDSE FINANCIERINGS-
MAATSCHAPPIJ VOOR ONTWIKKELINGSLANDEN N. V. as FMO for USD 22,500,000 and DEUTSCHE INVESTITIONS-UND ENTWICKLUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 
MBH as DEG for USD 22,500,000 on 23 October 2011. The interest rate is of 3 months’ USD LIBOR plus 4 % p.a. The loan is repayable within 4.5 years 
in 16 equal quarterly instalments with first due date of repayment from June of 2012. Major part of the loan has been utilised to pay outstanding 
on account of deferred letter of credit with Wartsila Finland, OY. The loan is secured by the first ranking fixed charge on the fixed and floating assets 
of the Company.
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23. redeemable preference shares (Note 3.14)

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Opening balance  2,631,476,665   -     -     -     -     -
Project loan converted into redeemable preference share  -     -     2,822,467,500   -     -     -
New issue of redeemable preference share  -     -     300,000,000   -     -     -
  2,631,476,665   -     3,122,467,500   -     -     -
Less: Transaction costs  -     -     26,073,136   -     -     -
Add: Amortisation of transaction costs   8,829,314   -     3,451,201   -     -     -
  2,640,305,979   -     3,099,845,565   -     -     -
Less: Repayment of fi rst instalment  468,368,900   -     468,368,900   -     -     -
  2,171,937,079   -     2,631,476,665   -     -     -

Short-term portion  468,368,900   -     468,368,900   -     -     -
Long-term portion  1,703,568,179   -     2,163,107,765   -     -     -
  2,171,937,079   -     2,631,476,665   -     -     -

 Out of total redeemable preference shares, Tk 2,822,467,500 has been converted from project loan on 12 August 2010 and Tk 300,000,000 has been 
issued on 30 September 2010 bearing dividend @ 10 - 10.5% per annum payable half yearly commencing from December 2010. Preference shares 
will be redeemed over 6 years or by 7 instalments payable at the end of each year commencing from December 2010.

24. payable to simcl

Short term portion  650,000,000   650,000,000   -     -     -     -
Long term portion  1,255,526,342   1,255,526,342   -     -     -     -

  1,905,526,342   1,905,526,342   -     -     -     -

 Out of Tk 3,615,006,842, arising due to purchase of Khulna Power Company Limited’s shares from SIMCL, Tk 700,000,000 has been paid in cash 
on share purchase transaction date, Tk 1,009,480,500 through transfer of Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited’s shares to SIMCL and 
rest of the amount of Tk 1,905,526,342 through 15% interest bearing loan taken from SIMCL on 28 December 2011. Out of Tk 1,905,526,342, Tk 
400,000,000 is to be paid to SIMCL by June of 2012 and rest of the amount is to be converted into redeemable preference share which are to be 
redeemed from December of 2012 to June of 2015 by 6 equal instalments on half yearly basis. No provision for interest on this loan has been made 
in these fi nancial statements since the interest accrued for only 3 days.

25. finance lease

 Obligation under fi nance lease has been recognised as liability in the statement of fi nancial position at amount equal at the inception of lease 
to the lower of fair value of leased assets and present value of minimum lease payments. The interest rate implicit in the lease has been used to 
calculate the present value of minimum lease payments. The total of minimum lease payments at the date of statement of fi nancial position and 
their present value, for each of the following periods are as follows:
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

25.1 consolidated

    As at  As at
 Principal as at 31 december 2011 31 Dec 2010 1 Jan 2010

 Short-term   Long-term   Total   Total   Total
 Taka    Taka   Taka  Taka  Taka

Payable to United Leasing company  1,315,566   1,349,987   2,665,553   3,505,590   9,346,913
Payable to One Bank Limited  5,172,602   4,276,405   9,449,007   13,822,356   13,330,913
Payable to Prime Finance & Investment Ltd.  -     -     -     267,076   569,082
 6,488,168   5,626,392   12,114,560   17,595,022   23,246,908

The principal amount of lease obligation payable after the date of statement of fi nancial position is as follows:

    As at  As at
 Principal as at 31 december 2011  31 Dec 2010 1 Jan 2010
   Present value   Present value   Present value
 Future minimum    of minimum   of minimum   of minimum
 lease payment   Interest   lease payment   lease payment   lease payment
 Taka   Taka  Taka Taka Taka

Not later than one year  8,522,776   2,034,608   6,488,168   6,862,277   9,213,348
Later than one year but not later than fi ve years  6,240,262   613,870   5,626,392   10,732,745   14,033,560
Later than fi ve year - - - - -

total obligation under fi nance lease  14,763,038   2,648,478   12,114,560   17,595,022   23,246,908

25.2 separate

    As at  As at
 Principal as at 31 december 2011 31 Dec 2010 1 Jan 2010

 Short-term   Long-term   Total   Total   Total
 Taka    Taka   Taka  Taka  Taka

One Bank Limited  5,172,602   4,276,405   9,449,007   10,260,903   13,330,913
Prime Finance & Investment Ltd.  -     -     -     -     569,082

 5,172,602   4,276,405   9,449,007   10,260,903   13,330,913

The principal amount of lease obligation payable after the date of statement of fi nancial position is as follows:

    As at  As at
 Principal as at 31 december 2011  31 Dec 2010 1 Jan 2010
   Present value   Present value   Present value
 Future minimum    of minimum   of minimum   of minimum
 lease payment   Interest   lease payment   lease payment   lease payment
 Taka   Taka  Taka Taka Taka

Not later than one year  6,878,992   1,706,390   5,172,602   3,581,167   3,639,067
Later than one year but not later than fi ve years  4,660,980   384,575   4,276,405   6,679,736   10,260,928
Later than fi ve year   -     -     -     -     -
total obligation under fi nance lease  11,539,972   2,090,965   9,449,007   10,260,903   13,899,995
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26. deferred liability for gratuity

 The company, for its present eligible local employees, operates a gratuity scheme. This gratuity scheme is not recognised by the National Board of 
Revenue. The entitlement is equal to one last basic salary per employee per year.

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Opening balance  10,418,031   10,418,031   7,105,218 7,105,218 7,062,794   7,062,794
Addition during the year  5,564,347   5,564,347   3,312,813 3,312,813   1,639,918   1,639,918

  15,982,378   15,982,378   10,418,031 10,418,031   8,702,712   8,702,712
Less: payment during the year  3,293,100   3,293,100   - -     1,597,494   1,597,494

closing balance 12,689,278 12,689,278 10,418,031 10,418,031   7,105,218   7,105,218

27. liabilities for project development

Opening balance  2,676,338,766   -     -     -     -     -
Addition during the year:
Foreign vendors -
 Sumitomo Corporation   2,073,562   - 12,233,341 -     -     -
 Powerohm Resistor, Inc.   -     -     591,185  -     -     -
 ABB Limited   379,376   -     4,097,386  -     -     -
 Tianjin Stride Import & Export Co. Ltd.    576,820   -     5,072,788   -     -     -
 China Machinery Electric Equipment Co.   2,947,314   -     22,117,583   -     -     -
 Wartsila Finland Oy   841,484,348   -     2,529,343,327   -     -     -
 Siemens Aktiengesellschaft   -     -     4,382,477   -     -     -
 Reliant Commodities & Tech. PTE Ltd.   -     -     8,214,679   -     -     -

  847,461,420  -     2,586,052,766   -     -     -
Local vendors -
 M/S UDECO Ltd.   140,841,184   -     75,000,000   -     -     -
 Contech Construction Ltd.   19,243,702   -     8,000,000   -     -     -
 Shamolima Ltd.   -     -     2,316,000   -     -     -
 Sumcynet Ltd.   151,568   -     70,000   -     -     -
 M/S Rasrl Enterprise   737,082   -     2,100,000   -     -     -
 Technology Aid   318,200   -     2,800,000   -     -     -

  161,291,736   -     90,286,000   -     -     -

total due for payment  3,685,091,922   -     2,676,338,766   -     -     -

Payment during the year (3,614,685,343)  -     -     -     -     -
Reversal of provision made during last year  (12,644,620)  -     -     -     -     -

closing balance  57,761,959   -     2,676,338,766   -     -     -

The Company has settled a major part of last year’s ending project liabilities along with costs incurred in the current year utilising fi nance taken from DEG-FMO.
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

28. short term loan

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

 Interest rate

BRAC Bank Limited 11.00%  -     -     260,708,893   -     65,844,879   65,844,879

  -     -     260,708,893  -     65,844,879   65,844,879

 Short term loan including interest represents loan liability to BRAC Bank Limited bearing interest @11% per annum. This loan had been taken to 
fi nance margin on letter of credit against import of Wartsila engine. Short term loan has been fully settled on 25 September 2011.

29. trade creditors
Gas bill - Savar power plant  5,219,084   5,219,084   4,394,778   4,394,778   4,600,850   4,600,850 
Gas bill - Savar power plant (Expansion)  14,329,422   14,329,422   11,573,040   11,573,040   12,474,304   12,474,304 
Gas bill - Narsingdi power plant  4,246,747   4,246,747   5,096,947   5,096,947   4,292,297   4,292,297 
Gas bill - Narsingdi power plant (Expansion)  8,207,713   8,207,713   8,299,302   8,299,302   8,102,729   8,102,729 
Gas bill - Chandina power plant  3,653,339   3,653,339   5,451,608   5,451,608   5,071,127   5,071,127 
Gas bill - Chandina power plant (Expansion)  3,837,352   3,837,352   5,726,580   5,726,580   5,316,546   5,316,546 
Gas bill - Bakhrabad Gas Transmission and Dist. Co. Ltd.  12,321,296   -     22,740,836   -     21,971,070   -   
Gas bill - Titas Gas Transmission and Dist. Co. Ltd.  43,798,089   -     60,469,427   -     22,900,795   -   
Gas bill - Pashchimanchol Gas Co. Ltd.  3,458,053   -     9,723,775   -     4,646,987   -   
Mobil Jamuna Ltd.  1,026,901   894,601   912,150   824,048   511,888   511,888 
Ranks Petroleum Ltd.  315,136   18,607   291,616   5,167   5,011,648   187,388 
Navana Petroleum Ltd.  21,707,518   -     2,253,998   -     -     -   
Wartsila Bangladesh Ltd.  783,411   -     45,942   45,942   -     -   

   122,904,061   40,406,865   136,979,999   41,417,412   94,900,241   40,557,129 

30. other creditors and accruals
Foreign technical assistance fees  60,160,000   -     56,840,000   -     55,480,000   -   
Provision for income tax  58,462,450   58,462,450   -     -     -     -   
Liability for withholding tax and VAT  33,654,329   1,683,557   24,117,020   -     23,889,394   278,669 
Directors’ remuneration with TAX  2,373,723   2,373,723   195,538   195,538   2,583,418   2,583,418 
Gas and utility, rent, rate and taxes  3,064,676   3,064,676   175,500   175,500   137,384   137,384 
Payable to EPC contractor  2,100,000   2,100,000   -     -     39,887,558   -   
M/s Silicon Engineers  1,326,636   -     1,326,636   -     2,137,188   -   
Interest payable - Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.  3,225,065   3,225,065   4,490,581   4,490,581   5,935,051   5,935,051 
Audit and certifi cation fees  1,205,450   344,850   890,000   300,000   874,400   326,300 
Summit Shipping Limited  1,540,147   -    - - - -
Communication Expenses  398,782   398,782  - - - -
Operation and insurance bond commission   -     -     -     -     2,326,250   2,326,250 
Advertisement and publicity  -     -     171,750   171,750   171,750   171,750 
Security service expenses  566,077   312,114   445,898   215,790   245,307   179,635 
Legal expenses and environmental fees  190,000   190,000   175,000   175,000   60,000   60,000 
Liability for insurance premium  -     -     402,493   402,493   -     -   
M/s Business King   -    - - -  1,737,342   -   
Narayanganj PBS  424,111  - - - - -
Utility bills  580,000   580,000   -     -     -    -
Others  1,158,228   116,410   644,375   188,300   1,423,566   1,062,407 

   170,429,674   72,851,627   89,874,791   6,314,952   136,888,608   13,060,864 
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31. inter company payables

 As at 31 december 2011 As at 31 december 2010  As at 1 January 2010

 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Summit Purbanchol Power Company Limited  -     -     -  -     -     103,455,786
Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited  -     -     - -     -     63,923,422

  -     -     - -     -     167,379,208

Inter company payable represents short-term (generally three to six months) non-interest bearing working capital fi nancing arrangement within group companies. 
In keeping with the requirements of BAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement as the loans are payable on demand and are of maturities of up to 
six months no discounting is applied and the fair value of the loans is assumed to be equal to face value of such loans.

32. unclaimed dividend - ordinary shares

Unclaimed dividend  6,179,728   6,179,728   6,006,791   6,006,791   3,804,948   3,804,948

  6,179,728   6,179,728   6,006,791   6,006,791   3,804,948   3,804,948

As at 31 December 2011, the above amount of dividends remained unclaimed by the shareholders. The amount is deposited in a bank account and is payable on 
demand.

33. revenue

  2011   2010

  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
  Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Savar power plant   168,889,688   168,889,688   180,609,481   180,609,481
Savar power plant (expansion)   492,703,284   492,703,284   468,107,161   468,107,161
Narsingdi power plant   156,856,516   156,856,516   184,280,736   184,280,736
Narsingdi power plant (expansion)   410,417,338   410,417,338   394,726,694   394,726,694
Chandina power plant   152,019,856   152,019,856   184,873,015   184,873,015
Chandina power plant (expansion)   196,841,716   196,841,716   231,250,365   231,250,365
Jangalia power plant   569,804,127  -  563,643,317   -
Rupganj power plant   575,210,591   -     578,108,646   -
Maona power plant   610,740,924   -     613,667,394   -
Ullapara power plant   198,562,193   -     202,408,213   -
Madanganj Power Plant   1,225,162,296   -     -     -

   4,757,208,529   1,577,728,398   3,601,675,022   1,643,847,452
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34. cost of sales

  2011   2010

  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
  Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

0Gas consumption - Savar   45,890,026   45,890,026   56,151,092   56,151,092
Gas consumption - Savar (expansion unit)   157,274,770   157,274,770   139,789,945   139,789,945
Gas consumption - Narsingdi   55,605,204   55,605,204   60,263,157   60,263,157
Gas consumption - Narsingdi (expansion unit)4  115,659,182   115,659,182   121,944,635   121,944,635
Gas consumption - Chandina   52,992,288   52,992,288   64,059,893   64,059,893
Gas consumption - Chandina (expansion unit)  53,325,649   53,325,649   66,327,374   66,327,374
Gas consumption - Ullapara Power Plant   64,384,948   -     69,967,456   -
Gas consumption - Maona Power Plant   188,666,756   -     199,490,839   -
Gas consumption - Rupganj Power Plant   179,810,979   -     190,374,070   -
Gas consumption - Jangalia Power Plant   164,502,754   -     172,912,051   -
Tanker handling charge   17,155,096   -     -     -
Tools  and spare consumption   166,607,513   81,068,416   125,526,368   88,818,658
Lube and other oil expenses   168,413,350   48,602,506   76,218,598   34,547,774
Lube oil/meter/water testing expenses   3,785,625   2,301,244   1,359,330   824,048
Maintenance works expenses   46,265,282   15,286,661   15,522,707   14,556,657
Plant maintenance expenses   4,912,812   2,609,505   4,474,392   2,747,272
Depreciation on plant and machinery (5.1)   444,344,796   161,512,264   314,448,975   144,889,383

   1,929,597,030   792,127,715   1,678,830,882   794,919,888

35. other income, net

Sale of empty lube oil drums   8,399,160   2,936,724   5,968,300   2,827,120
Gain on sales of vehicles   405,000   405,000   -     -
Dividend income from subsidiaries and others  -     126,304,071   492,032   492,032
Capital gain on sale of share of subsidiary   822,539,650   822,539,650   -     -
Miscellaneous   2,593,742   2,593,742   2,305,673   700,689

   833,937,552   954,779,187   8,766,005   4,019,841

Dividend income is received for Tk 32,833,657 and Tk 93,470,414 from Summit Purbanchol Power Company Limited  and Summit Uttaranchol 
Power Company Limited respectively.

No provison for tax on capital gain arising out of Summit Uttaranchol Power Company Limited’s shares transferred to SIMCL is recognised as capital 
gain arising from share transfer is fully exempted by SRO No 188 dated 1 July 2009 under Income Tax Ordinance 1984.
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36. General and administrative expenses

  2011   2010

  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
  Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Salary and allowances   134,889,502   64,474,136   98,737,654   56,627,710
Directors remuneration (Note 36.1)   28,291,123   28,141,123   23,388,512   23,172,512
Tax on directors remuneration   5,950,620   5,950,620   5,039,298   5,039,298
Education and training   181,484   181,484   61,337   44,837
Board meeting expenses   597,900   450,000   508,900   420,000
Audit committee attendance fees   180,000   180,000   90,000   90,000
Travelling and conveyance   4,605,103   3,153,029   2,277,393   1,820,848
Vehicle fuel and maintenance   10,046,764   7,969,016   7,005,526   5,619,867
Entertainment and others   4,502,520   2,441,246   3,243,903   2,301,665
Food and lodging   255,094   255,094   168,432   168,182
Printing and stationery   2,312,218   1,910,734   1,402,164   1,227,636
General repair and maintenance    4,822,182   2,550,903   2,544,464   1,710,418
Offi  ce expenses   406,524   224,853   418,985   265,967
Communication expenses   8,436,735   6,490,136   6,665,312   5,537,680
Offi  ce rent, rates and taxes   10,233,009   3,410,246   9,137,535   4,821,335
Utility expenses   5,340,763   1,258,020   3,597,469   3,113,405
Trade license and other fees (Note 36.2)   8,312,527   5,648,788   12,165,425   7,828,617
Advertisement and publicity   10,608,525   3,468,684   5,559,795   2,853,272
Gift and compliments   386,910   309,360   492,110   322,180
Legal and professional consultancy fees    12,361,437   3,978,420   813,650   763,650
Uniform and liveries   1,998,495   1,074,920   1,252,070   709,740
Security and temporary contract worker   14,108,904   5,873,213   22,146,820   17,674,701
Insurance premium   28,294,412   7,484,806   18,773,917   7,311,914
Land lease rental   5,765,368   3,168,568   4,628,253   2,028,253
Environmental compliance cost    1,616,918   400,000   905,400   495,400
Donation and subscription   8,843,019   3,393,207   5,734,786   2,867,143
Statutory audit fees   1,284,750   377,550   890,000   300,000
Interim audit fees and certifi cation expenses   429,200   -     -     -
Credit rating fees   713,500   313,500   350,000   350,000
Depreciation (Note 5.1)   21,668,964   15,312,007   15,704,228   9,466,333
Amortisation (Note 7)   682,930   582,930   622,679   556,012
Medical welfare expenses   38,424   30,323   314,447   -
ISO certifi cation expenses   90,000   90,000   90,000   90,000
AGM expenses   19,940,388   19,940,388   9,590,397   9,590,397
EGM expenses   1,616,920   1,616,920   1,560,859   1,560,859
Tender expenses   578,070   578,070   1,031,703   1,031,703
Bad debts expenses   5,418,699   445,000   -     -
Miscellaneous expenses   651,999   166,625   970,495   587,175

   366,461,900   203,293,919   267,883,918   178,368,709

36.1 directors remuneration

Salary and allowances   21,389,682   21,389,682   16,994,736   16,994,736
Festival bonus   3,794,946   3,794,946   3,162,456   3,162,456
Utility expenses   1,980,000   1,980,000   1,980,000   1,980,000
Board meeting attendance fees   1,126,495   976,495   1,251,320   1,035,320

   28,291,123   28,141,123   23,388,512   23,172,512
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36.2 Trade license and other fees include BERC fee, BOI registration fee, trade licence renewal fee, annual and application fees of SEC, DSE, CSE, 
CDBL and registration fee for increase of share capital.

37. finance (costs)/income, net

  2011   2010

  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
  Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

37.1 Finance income

 FDR accounts   157,371,876   132,381,471   59,008,610   54,503,232
 STD and others   1,766,553   1,766,553   11,041,802   7,540,917
 Foreign exchange gain   58,763,360   418,241   -     -

   217,901,789   134,566,265   70,050,412   62,044,149
37.2 Finance expenses

 Interest on term loan:
  Standard Chartered Bank   3,930,765   3,930,765   96,014,371   96,014,371
  Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd.  14,223,635   14,223,635   27,005,761   27,005,761
  Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  10,131,919   10,131,919   12,127,016   12,127,016
  Bank Al-Falah Ltd.  2,538,223   2,538,223   6,819,556   6,819,556
  The Premier Bank Ltd.  5,682,216   5,682,216   9,516,484   9,516,484
  One Bank Limited  1,969,422   1,548,192   1,854,278   1,854,278
  DEG-FMO  51,947,191 - - -
  Dividend/fi nance exp. on red. pre. Shares  269,822,781   -     119,413,257   -
  United Leasing & Co.  459,138   -     938,748   -
  IIDFC  -     -     346,860,726   -
  Prime Finance & Investment Limited  7,156   -     328,248   37,383
  Amortisation of transaction costs  17,212,761   -     3,451,201   -

   377,925,207   38,054,950   624,329,646   153,374,849

 Interest on short term loan:
  Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  -     -     2,977,714   2,977,714
  BRAC Bank Limited  11,869,428 - - -
  Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited  2,989,330   2,989,330   4,392,045   4,392,045

   14,858,758   2,989,330   7,369,759   7,369,759

  Bank charges and others  5,805,430   2,320,255   5,620,313   2,720,310
  Bank guarantee commission  5,785,437   5,709,679   1,184,045   1,028,284
  Operation and insurance bond commission  2,325,875   2,325,875   2,670,500   2,670,500
  Loan arrangement/ agency fees  1,150,000   -     447,398   -
  Foreign exchange loss  -     -     1,360,000   -
   15,066,742   10,355,809   11,282,256   6,419,094
   407,850,707   51,400,089   642,981,661   167,163,702
   (189,948,918)  83,166,176   (572,931,249)  (105,119,553)
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38. earnings per share (eps)

  2011   2010

  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
  Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

basic earnings per share

Profi t attributable to the ordinary shareholders 2,511,150,489   1,561,789,677   1,087,515,022   569,459,143

Weighted average number of shares outstanding
 Ordinary shares fully outstanding   303,353,973   303,353,973   277,992,000   277,992,000
 Bonus shares/shares converted from preference shares  91,006,191   91,006,191   8,453,991   8,453,991

  394,360,164   394,360,164   286,445,991   286,445,991

earnings per share (ePs)   6.37   3.96   3.80   1.99

restated earnings per share    -     -     2.76   1.44

Since the bonus issue is an issue without consideration, the issue has been treated as if it occurred prior to the beginning of 2011, the earliest 
period reported for the purposes of EPS calculation.

diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the years presented as there was no scope for dilution during these years.

39. financial risk management

The group has exposures to the following risks from its use of fi nancial instruments:

-  Credit risk
-  Liquidity risk
-  Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s/group’s risk management framework. The 
Board oversees how management monitors compliance with risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk 
management framework in relation to risks faced by the group. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by Audit Committee. Internal Audit, under 
the purview of Audit Committee, undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which 
are reported to the Audit Committee.

40. credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of fi nancial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a fi nancial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and 
arises principally from the group’s receivable from customers and investment securities. The group’s sales are made to Government entity, Rural 
Electrifi cation Board (REB) and Bangladesh Power Development Board (BPDB) under the conditions of the long term Power Purchase Agreement 
(PPA). Sales made to the entity is fully secured by  Letters of Credit issued by local scheduled banks.
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
As At And FOr the yeAr ended 31 deceMber 2011

40.1. exposure to credit risk

 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

  2011   2010

  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
  Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

 Trade receivables  983,258,885   211,124,422   453,393,657   134,706,598
 Other receivables  104,285,043   100,720,556   94,774,059   88,353,317
 Cash and cash equivalents  1,081,038,437   541,505,130   1,383,972,111   1,279,218,536
 Advances, deposits and prepayments  82,038,927   24,699,819   73,021,316   38,949,876

  2,250,621,292   878,049,927   2,005,161,143   1,541,228,327

40.2. Aging of receivables

 Invoiced 0 - 30 days  661,095,575   211,124,422   453,393,657   134,706,598
 Invoiced over 180 days  322,163,310   -     -     -

  983,258,885   211,124,422   453,393,657   134,706,598

41. liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company/group will not be able to meet its fi nancial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s/group’s approach 
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have suffi  cient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s/group’s reputation. Typically, management 
ensures that it has suffi  cient cash and cash equivalent to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of fi nancial obligation 
through preparation of the cash forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the fi nancial obligation and accordingly arrange for suffi  cient 
liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date. Moreover, the Company/group seeks to maintain short term lines of credit with 
scheduled commercial banks to ensure payment of obligations in the event that there is insuffi  cient cash to make the required payment. The 
requirement is determined  in advance through cash fl ows projections and credit lines facilities with banks are negotiated accordingly.

 It may be noted that the Company/group repaid a portion of its liabilities (liabilities for project development for CWIP) in 2011 in due dates. Rest 
of the fi nancial liabilities are expected to be repaid in due time which are to expected to be fi nanced from operational cash fl ow.

 The following are the contractual maturities of fi nancial liabilities:

 As at 31 december 2011 (taka in Million)

 Carrying  Contractual 6 months 6 - 12 1 - 2 2 - 5 More than
 amount cash fl ows or less months  years   years   5 years
 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka

Project loan, foreign  3,583.42   3,583.42   223.96   447.93   895.86   2,015.67
Project loan, local  180.66   5,759.27   506.00   506.00   1,012.00   3,735.27   -
Redeemable preference shares  2,171.94   3,122.00   -     464.00   464.00   1,401.48   302.00
Liability for project development  57.76   57.76   57.76   -     -     -     -
Finance lease  12.11   33.80   3.43   4.57   9.60   16.20   -
Trade creditors   122.90   122.90   122.90   -     -     -     -
Others creditors and accruals  111.97   111.97   111.97   -     -     -     -

 2,657.35   9,207.70   802.06   974.57   1,485.60   5,152.95   302.00
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Liquidity risk (contd..)

 As at 31 december 2010 (taka in Million)

 Carrying  Contractual 6 months 6 - 12 1 - 2 2 - 5 More than
 amount cash fl ows or less months  years   years   5 years
 Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka

Project loan  372.00   5,759.27   506.00   506.00   1,012.00   3,735.27   -
Redeemable preference shares  2,631.00   3,122.00   -     464.00   464.00   1,392.00   802.00
Liability for project development  2,676.34   2,676.34   2,676.34   -     -     -     -
Finance lease  17.60   33.80   3.43   4.57   9.60   16.20   -
Trade creditors   137.00   137.00   137.00   -     -     -     -
Others creditors and accruals  90.00   90.00   90.00   -     -     -     -

 5,923.93   11,818.41   3,412.77   974.57   1,485.60   5,143.47   802.00

 It is not expected that the cash fl ows included in the maturity analysis could occur signifi cantly earlier, or at signifi cantly diff erent amounts.

42. market risk

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will aff ect the Company’s/group’s income or 
the value of its holding of fi nancial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

42.1. currency risk

 The Company/group is exposed to currency risk on purchases of spare parts and plant and machinery that are denominated in a currency other 
than the functional currency primarily Euro and U. S. Dollars. The Company/group has not entered into any type of derivatives instrument in order 
to hedge foreign currency risk as at 31 December 2011.

42.1.a. exposure to currency risk

 The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arising from currency denominated liabilities was as follows:

  2011   2010

  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
  Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Project loan/capital work in progress:
Currency denominated in USD  3,583,420,203  -  51,735,760  -
Currency denominated in Euro - - 2,534,317,006  -

Other creditors and accruals
(currency denominated in USD) 60,160,000  - 56,840,000 -

  3,643,580,203 - 2,642,892,766 -
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Notes to the fiNANciAl stAtemeNts
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42.1.b. Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis for foreign currency expenditures in 2011

 A change of 10 basis points in foreign currencies in 2011 would have increased/(decreased) equity and profi ts or loss by the amounts shown below. 
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates remain constant.

 Profi t or loss (taka in million) equity (taka in million)

  10 bp 10 bp  10 bp 10 bp
  increase decrease increase decrease
 
 Year 2011 (Consolidated)

Expenditures denominated in Euro  (4.24)  4.24   (4.24)  4.24
Expenditures denominated in USD  (38.53)  38.53   (38.53)  38.53

cash fl ow sensitivity (net)  (42.77)  42.77   (42.77)  42.77

the following signifi cant exchange rates are applicable during the year:

   2011 2010
   taka taka

U. S. Dollar (USD)    75.20   69.80
Euro    105.00   101.00

42.2. Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. Local loans are however not signifi cantly aff ected by 
fl uctuations in interest rates.  Foreign loans and borrowings are aff ected by fl uctuations in interest rates. Interest risk primarily arises regarding 
borrowing from DEG-FMO where the rate is of LIBOR plus 4%. The Company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to 
hedge interest rate risk as at the reporting date.

43. capital risk management

 The Company’s/group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s/group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order 
to provide returns for shareholders and benefi ts for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages 
and security aff orded by a sound capital position. The Board also monitors dividend trend to ordinary shareholders.
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44. contingent liability

44.1 Contingent liability existed for the group represents amount in relation to issue of construction bond, operation bond, insurance bond and bank 
guarantee by third parties.

 2011   2010

    Nature of contingent liability Expiry date  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
  Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Operation Bond
All 11 MWh plants 31.08.2012  70,260,000   70,260,000   70,260,000   70,260,000
Savar expansion plant 03.12.2012  54,210,000   54,210,000   54,210,000   54,210,000
Narsingdi expansion plant 16.12.2012  39,200,000   39,200,000   39,200,000   39,200,000
Chandina expansion plant 16.12.2012  22,400,000   22,400,000   22,400,000   22,400,000
BPDB AG. Jangalia Project  05.08.2014   39,368,234   -     39,368,234   -
REB AG. Rupganj Project  05.08.2014   39,368,234   -     39,368,234   -
REB AG. Maona Project  05.08.2012   39,368,234   -     39,368,234   -
REB AG. Ullapara Project  04.08.2012   13,867,126   -     13,867,126   -

Bank Guarantee
BPDB - Madanganj 03.10.2012  252,259,587   -     70,000,000   70,000,000
CCD (SIBL) 27.08.2012  1,433,396   1,433,396   1,433,396   1,433,396
Rangs Petroleum Ltd. (PBL) 08.03.2012  2,837,050   2,837,050   2,837,050   2,837,050
CCIE (SIBL) 05.02.2012  66,025   66,025   66,025   66,025
Titas gas T&D- Rupganj  25.01.2014   24,703,233   -     24,703,233   -
Bakhrabad- Jangalia  25.01.2014   24,703,233   -     24,703,233   -
Titas gas T&D- Maona  25.01.2014   24,703,233   -     24,703,233   -
Pashchimanchol Gas - Ullapara  05.01.2015   8,234,409   -     8,234,409   -

  656,981,994   190,406,471   474,722,407   260,406,471

44.2 contingent liability relating to liquidated damage of summit narayanganj Power Limited

 In accordance with Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Bangladesh Power Development Board (BPDB), the Required Commercial Operation 
Date (RCOD) of the power plant was on 20 March 2011. Due to unavoidable Force Majeure events, the Company was unable to achieve the RCOD 
and the COD of the plant was achieved on 1 April 2011, i.e. 12 days later from the required date. As a result of such delay, BPDB has claimed 
liquidated damage from the Company amounting to USD 459,000 after allowing three days for country wide strike (hartal). However, the Company 
has taken the position that it is not liable for the delay in achieving COD as such delay had taken place due to a Force Majeure event, i.e. due to an 
accident in transporting major piece of equipment for the power plant.

45. commitments of capital expenditure

 The Company has no commitment of capital expenditure as at 31 December 2011 apart from its subsidiaries.
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46. foreign currency transactions

46.1 the group has the following payments during the year:

 2011    2010

  Taka   Taka   Taka   Taka
 Currency   Consolidated   Separate   Consolidated   Separate

Spare parts   USD   2,784,397   2,784,397   946,836   946,836
Spare parts   EURO   4,040,890   2,798,421   1,307,259   251,255
Plant and machinery and others  Euro   32,072,032  -  3,484,862   -
Plant and machinery and others  USD   2,043,032   -     2,543,195   -
Plant and machinery and others  SGD   -     -     1,979,206   -
Plant and machinery and others  INR   -     -     4,179,663   -

46.2 The group has the following letters of credit (LC) in hand as at 31 December 2011 to be paid during 2012:

   name of company Lc number Lc opening date currency type Invoice value

Summit Power Limited 265511011426 24.10.2011 USD  83,757.12
 2655110844 13.06.2011 USD  14,966.00

Summit Narayanganj Power Limited 308511011640 10.10.2011 Euro 1,514,728.86

 308511011886 21.11.2011 Euro 81,703.12

47. related party transaction

 During the year, the Company/group carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business. The names of the 
related parties and nature of these transactions have been set out in accordance with the provisions of BAS 24: Related Party Disclosures

47.1 transactions with key management personnel

 2011  2010

 Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Consolidated Separate Consolidated Separate

Employee benefi ts (short term)  25,170,455   10,952,204   20,975,379   9,778,753
Employee benefi ts (provident fund)  2,415,985   1,540,977   2,013,321   1,375,872

 27,586,439   12,493,180   22,988,699   11,154,625

 Key management personnel includes managing director, directors, executive directors, managers and assistant/deputy managers.
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47.2 Other related party transactions

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

 Outstanding balance
  name of related party relationship nature of transactions transaction during the year as at 31 december 2011

   Taka Taka Taka Taka
   Consolidated Separate Consolidated Separate

Summit Industrial and 
Mercantile Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. Ultimate parent of Group Rental and utility accrued  -    1,400,451,560 5,639,200 5,639,200

Summit Industrial and Mercantile
 Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. Ultimate parent of Group Interest bearing short term fi nancing  -    1,905,526,342 1,905,526,342 1,905,526,342

Cosmopolitan Traders (Pvt) Ltd. Group company Service charge and rental  -    465,530 5,280,673 5,280,673

Summit Uttaranchol Power 
 Company Limited Subsidiary Short term fi nancing/sharing of exp.  -    599,343,032  -    283,856,073

Summit Purbanchol Power 
 Company Limited Subsidiary Short term fi nancing/sharing of exp.  -    394,687,421  -    212,706,545

Summit Narayanganj Power Limited Subsidiary Short term fi nancing/sharing of exp.  -    178,984,581  -    29,876,069

Summit Shipping Limited Group company Service provider 34,054,800 34,054,800 15,000,000  -

Summit Shipping Limited Group company Service provider 4,682,777 4,682,777 -1,540,147  -

Summit Saidpur Power Limited Associate Short term fi nancing 1,897,864 1,897,864 1,897,864  -

Summit Shantahar 
Power Limited Associate Short term fi nancing 848,931 848,931 848,931  -

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2010

 Outstanding balance
  name of related party relationship nature of transactions transaction during the year as at 31 december 2010

   Taka Taka Taka Taka
   Consolidated Separate Consolidated Separate

Summit Industrial and Mercantile 
 Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. Ultimate parent of Group Rental and utility accrued  -    9,855,360 9,855,360 7,445,440

Cosmopolitan Traders (Pvt) Ltd. Group company Service charge and rental  -    465,530 465,530 5,746,203

Summit Uttaranchol Power 
 Company Limited Subsidiary Short term fi nancing  -    417,573,507 417,573,507 247,873,067

Summit Purbanchol Power 
 Company Limited Subsidiary Short term fi nancing  -    666,702,088 666,702,089 314,229,502

Summit Narayanganj Power Limited Subsidiary Short term fi nancing  -    84,598,175 83,390,277 43,390,277
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48. capacity

 Licensed Installed
 Name of plants capacity capacity   Plant factor (% on licensed)    Energy sold (MWH)

   2011 2010 2011 2010

Ashulia - Savar 11 MW 11.99 MW Average 73.48 Average 77.47  70,808   74,629
   Maximum 83 Maximum 82.88

Madhabdi - Narsingdi 11 MW 11.99 MW Average 69.24 Average 80.10  66,717   77,169
   Maximum 76 Maximum 85.34

Chandina - Comilla 11 MW 11.99 MW Average 66.07 Average 80.03  63,670   77,086
   Maximum 80 Maximum 85.93

Ashulia - Savar (Exp) 33.75 MW 34.92 MW Average 60.96 Average 63.17  180,240   186,646
   Maximum 65 Maximum 68.97

Madhabdi - Narsingdi (Exp) 24.30 MW 26.19 MW Average 69.30 Average 75.08  147,509   159,887
   Maximum 82 Maximum 87.22

Chandina - Comilla (Exp) 13.50 MW 13.94 MW Average 63.10 Average 82.14  74,617   97,114
   Maximum 83 Maximum 93.04

Ullapara- Sirajgonj 11.00 MW 11.99 MW Average: 73.93  Average: 71.20   71,239   79,419
   Maximum : 90 Maximum : 94.51

Maona - Gazipur 34.92 MW 33.00 MW Average: 83.84 Average: 86.38   241,501   256,816
   Maximum 94 Maximum 92.80

Rupganj -Narayangonj 34.92 MW 33.00 MW Average 76.03 Average 80.87   219,786   233,993
   Max : 89.00  Maximum 91.72

Jangalia - Comilla 34.92 MW 33.00 MW Average 75.51  Average 75.50  218,281   217,925
   Max : 89.00  Maximum 90.50

Madanganj - Narayanganj 102.00 MW 102.456 MW Average 64.12   -     449,441   -
   Maximum 88.39   -

49. decommissioning obligation

 As per paragraph 3.9 of the Land Lease Agreement between the Rural Electrifi cation Board (the lessor) and the Summit Power Limited (the 
lessee), the lessee, at its sole expense, shall engage the services of an expert in the area of generation facility construction and environmental 
remediation to determine the total costs and expenses of decommissioning within a period of not later than the beginning of 10th 
Agreement Year. The sole purpose of the decommissioning fund shall be for the commencement and completion of decommissioning of 
the demised premises. The “Decommissioning Fund” shall be the amount not less than the Decommissioning cost. The determination of 
such decommissioning shall be made and notifi ed to the parties not later six months following the beginning of such 10th Agreement Year. 
The lessee shall then establish a cash reserve fund or a letter of credit in favour of the lessor with an escrow agent approved by the lessor. 

 The management are in the process of organizing a committee for determining the estimated amount of decommissioning expenses, creating a 
fund for that and discharging other decommissioning obligations accordingly.
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50. events after reporting date

 There is no material events that had occurred after the date of statement of fi nancial position of issue of these fi nancial statements, which could 
aff ect the fi gures stated in the fi nancial statements.

51. other disclosures

51.1 During the year ended  31 December 2011 there were 445 employees who received salary of Tk 36,000 and above per annum (2010: 426) for the 
group.

  Type of employee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  No. of employees

  Full-time employees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  265
  Contractual employees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  109
  Casual employees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  71

51.2 Previous year’s fi gures have been rearranged, where necessary to conform to current year’s presentation.
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I/We ........................................................................................................................................................................ of ......................................................
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Note :
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must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting.

		  Signature Verified

		  ......................................................................
		  Authorised Signatory

I/We hereby record my attendance at the 15th Annual General Meetingof the Company to be held on Wednesday, the 10.30 a.m. on 25th April, 2012 at 
Bashundhara Convention Center-02, Block-C, Umme Kulsum Road, Bashundhara R/A, Baridhara, Dhaka-1229.

	 Signature Verified by

	......................................................................	 ......................................................................
	 Signature of the Member/Proxy	 Authorised Signatory of the Company

NOTE :
1.	 Please note that AGM can only be attended by the honourable shareholder or properly constituted proxy. Therefore, any friend or children 

accompanying with honourable shareholder or proxy cannot be allowed into the meeting. 
2.	 Please present this slip at the reception desk.

Name of the member/Proxy
(in Block Letter)

BO ID No.

Mobile Number

E-mail address (if any)
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Stamp
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Summit Power Limited, the first Bangladeshi Independent Power Producer 
(IPP) has been awarded “AA” Credit Rating in the long term and ST–2 rating in 
the short term by an internationally linked joint venture rating agency Credit 
Rating Information & Services Limited (CRISL) in collaboration with Rating 
Agency Bernhard, Malaysia and JCR-VIS Rating Company Limited, Pakistan. 

The rating is a unique distinction for a Bangladeshi company in private sector 
power generation to receive such an internationally recognized credit rating. 
Entities rated in this category are adjudged to be high quality, offer higher 
safety and have high credit quality. This level of rating indicates a corporate 
entity with a sound profile and without significant problems. Risks are modest 
and may vary slightly from time to time because of economic conditions. The 
short term rating indicates high certainty of timely payment. Liquidity factors 
are strong and supported by good fundamental protection factors. Risk 
factors are very small.

Summit’s Power plants are operated and maintained wholly by Bangladeshi 
engineers and technicians setting an example of growing entrepreneurial and 
technical sufficiency of Bangladeshi industrial enterprises.
The company has also received ISO 9001:2000 certification in 2002 for 
its quality management and for the maintenance of high environmental 
standard.

Achievements

Summit supported the first ever Bangladeshi 
Mountaineer Musa Ibrahim to reach the summit of the world, Mount Everest.
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